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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment cbjective of TR Property Investment Trust plc is to maximise shareholders’
total returns by investing in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses intemationally and also in investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the “Company™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated property investar
since 1982. The Company is an Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Benchmark
The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total Return Indax in Stering
Investment Policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by investing in shares and securities of property companies and
propery related businesses on an international basis, although, with a Pan-European benchmark, the majotity of
the investments will be located in that geographicat area. The Company also invests in investment property located
in the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Palicies, the Asset Allocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of gearing are
set gut in the Strategic Report on pages 24 to 25 and the entire partfolia is shown on page 17.

Investment Manager

F&C Investment Business Limited acts as the Company's alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM™) with
portfolioc management delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (“the Portfolic Manager” or "the Manager™).
Marcus Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolio since 1 April 2011 and been part of the Fund Management
team since 1997.

Independent Board

The directors are all independent of the Manager and meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies and to review performance. Details of how the Board
operates and fuffils its responsibilities are set out in the Report of Directors on page 41.

Performance

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out opposite and Historical Performance can be found on
page 2. Key Performance Indicators are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 26 and 27.

Retail Investors advised by IfAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that its shares can be recommended by independent Financial
Advisers ("IFAs") in the UK to ordinary retail investors in accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA")
rules in relation to non-mainstream investment products and intends to continue to do so. The shares are excuded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply to non-mainstream investment products, because they are shares in an
authorised investment trust.

Further information

General shareholder information and details of how to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be found on pages 96 to 99. This information can also be
found on the Trust's website www.trproperty.com




Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March %
2018 2007 Change
Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share 3g5.64p  352.42p +12.3%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,255,559 1,118,424 +12.3%
Shares in 1ssue at the end of the year (m) 3174 3174 +0.0%
Net debt' 14.6% 13.3%
Share Price
Share price 382.50p  314.50p +21.6%
Market caputalisation £1,21am £998m +21.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March Lo
2018 2007 Change
Revenue
Revenue eamnings per share 13.22p 11.38p +16 2%
Dividends’
Interim diidend per share 4.65p 410p  +13.4%
Final dwidend per share 7.55p 6.40p  +18.0%
Total dividend per share 12.20p 10.50p +16.2%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total returm? +15.5% +8.0%
Benchmark total return +10.2% +6.5%
Share price total return® +25.5% +9.1%
Ongoing Charges’
including performance fee +1.48% +0.80%
Excduding performance fee +0.65% +0.69%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +061%  +064%

1. Net debt 15 the total value of loan notes, loans {induding nononal exposure to CFDs) less cash as a proportion of net asset value.

2 Owidends per share are the dwidends in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2018. An itenm dwidend of 4.65p was paid in
January 2018 A final dwidend of 7.55p (2017. & 40p) will be paid on 31 July 2018 to shareholders on the register on 22 June 20318

The shares will be quated ex-dwidend on 21 June 2018

3 The total return NAV performance for the year 1s calculated by remnvesting the dvidends in the assets of the Company from the relevant
ex-dvidend date, Dwidends are deemed to be reinvested on the ex-dimdend date as this is the protocol used by the Company's

benchmark and other indices

4 The total refurn share prce performance 1s calculated by reinvesting the dvidends 1n the shares of the Company from the relevant

ex-dividend date

5. Ongoing charges calculated in accordance with the AIC methodolegy

TR Property Investment Trust



STRATEGIC REPGRT

Historical Performance

For the years ended 31 March

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
NAVA) -229 405 526 154 -85 21.5 22.4 28.3 82 8.0 15.5
Benchmark® ~230 -486 60.6 152 -8.9 178 149 233 54 6.5 10.2
Share Price(@ -248 -412 60.3 126 9.5 258 377 29.5 -1.6 9.1 255
Shareholders’ funds
(E'm)
Total 707 400 598 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256
Ordinary shares 568 324 476 531 470 6384 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256
Sigma shares®™ 139 76 123 140 118 - - - - - -
Ordinary shares
Net revenue
(pence per share)
Earnings 579 6549 518 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 889 8.36 1138 13.22
Dhvidends 560 5.75 575 6.00 6.60 700 7.45 770 8.35 10.50 12.20
NAV per share
{pence) 21960 12610 18520 20710 18360 21525 25494 318,12 33556 35242 395.68
Share price
{pence) 18825 10600 15240 17710 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 382.50
Indices of growth
Share price(®} 100 56 85 94 82 99 131 165 158 167 203
Net Asset value® 100 57 84 94 84 93 16 145 153 160 180
Dmdend 100 103 103 107 118 125 133 138 149 188 218
RPI 100 100 104 110 114 17 120 121 123 127 131
Benchmark () 100 49 75 a2 72 81 a7 104 107 iRh! 119

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS

(A) The total mcome NAV performance for each year 1s calculated by renvesting the dwidends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dmdend date
Dwdends are deermed 1o be reinvested at the ex-dwdend date as this is the protoce! used by the Company's benchmark and other indices

(8) Benchmark Index composite index comprsing the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed Europe Capped Index Source Thames Rver Capitel

(C) The total return share price performance 1s calculated by reinvesting the dvidends in the shares of the Company from the refevant ex-dnidend date

(D) The Sigma share class was launched 1n 2007 and Sigma shares redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012

(E} Share pnces only These da not reflect dwdends pad

{F) Capstal only values These do not reflect dwvidends paid

{C) Price only value of the indices set out in {B) above

2 TR Property Investment Trust
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s Statement

N S

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman

Introduction

it has been a very good year for the Trust. Perfformance
has been strong in both absolute and relative termns and
we have enjoyed healthy revenue growth,

The Net Asset Value {NAV) total return at 15.5% was well
ahead of the benchmark at 10.2%, and results in a
five-year cumulative total return of 111.16%. Coupled to
this revenue has increased by 16.2% for the year.

Although the first ha!f of the year saw the sector benefit
from healthier economic growth and improved poltical
stability the overriding theme is that particular sub-markets
have provided growth across all geographical regtons and
these include logistics, industrial and rented residential. As
a result, the Trust has benefited from increased exposure
not just in continental Europe, but in the UK as well, as
some of the sectors with potential such as self-storage and
student accornmodation, are only available in the UK.

The attraction of the property sector is s ability to deliver
reliable and predictable earnings. Where businesses are
growing their earnings faster than inflation without
increasing risk, they are attracting strong share price
performance. This coupled to an expectation of higher
inflation as Europe inches towards normalising monetary
conditions, has led our manager to increase exposure to
companies offering more index linked income and longer
underlying leases, most particularly in the UK where the
expectation is of slower rental growth.

* Share price discount to capital only NAY

4 TR Property Investment Trust

Investors dernand for the underlying assets has remained
strong with the exception of retall property which faces
structural challenges which are unlikely to abate soon. This
steady investrnent demand has even been the case with
central London offices where overseas capital in particutar,
has been prepared to look beyond Brexit uncertainty.

Although our physical portfolio 1s a small part of the Trust,

1t has had a very good year with returns matching the
strength of the equity portfolio. Our managers have taken
advantage of strong demand for industrial and well located
suburban offices by selling in Plymouth and Wimbledon.
Interestingly, one of these assets had less than four years
on the lease and the other was a development
opportunity, both providing usefu! indicators of the market's
optimism for future tenant demand.

NAV and Share Price performance

As mentioned earlier the NAV total return was a healthy

15.5%, well ahead of the benchmark at 10.2%. The share

price total return was higher at 25.5% as the discount*

between the share price and the asset value narrowed

materially from 10.7% to 3.2% aver the year i

More detal and commentary on performance is set out In
the Manager's Report.

Revenue Results and Dividend

Earnings per share for the full year increased by 16 2% to
13 22p per share. Most of the increase occurred in the
first half of the year We reparted & 22.8% increase in
revenue at the interim stage while second half revenue
grew by a more modest 5.0%.

As set out in the Intenm Reponrt, first half earmings were
enhanced by a significant withholding tax reclaim and
weaker Sterling when compared to the same period in the
previous year. The second half did not have the benefit of
this one-off itern and the Sterling/Euro rate was stable
compared to the previous period.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of 755p
per share resulting in a total dvidend for the year of
12.20p, 16.2% ahead of the 2017 full year dividend of
10.50p per share, matching the growth in earnings.



Chairman’s Statement

continued

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

Revenue Qutlook

Earnings in the first few months of the current financat
year have been robust. The most signfficant factor in the
strong earnings growth seen over the last two years has
been the impact of weakening Sterling. With a more stable
currency any increase in earnings (when measured in
Sterling) will be from growth in the underlying dwidends
and we therefore expect to return to longer term norma’
growth rates. Once again, 1 wou'ld caution that having
benefited from weakening currency, there will be

a negative mpact on revenue when this reverses and
Sterling strengthens.

Debt

Gearnng has increased from 13.6% reported at the end of
September 2017 to 14.6% at the year end Both our
revolving credit facilities were renewed during the year,
although in the case of the more recent renewal with RBS,
the facility was reduced from £40m to £35m. We
continue to actively use CFDs as a source of competitively
priced geaning which does net cany non-utilisation costs

if undrawn.

Currencies

Currency movements have been mare significant to the
revenue account than the capital account over the period

* share prce discount to capral only NAV

as described above. We continue to use X forward
contracts to mamtain the currency exposure of our
balance sheet broadly in line with that of the benchmark
The result is significant expostire to the Eure and in
absolute terms, this has had an impact, although the
change in rates between the 2018 and 2017 year-end
balance sheet dates has been quite modest.

Shareholders can see the currency exposure in Note 11 to
the Financial Statements.

Discount and Share Repurchases

The discount* narrowed during the year from 10.7% to
3.2% at the year-end, well ahead of the 10-year average
of 8.6%.

No shares were repurchased during the year.

New Regulation

| mentioned in my Interim Statement that a number of
new regulations were due to come into effect in 2018
which would have implications for the Trust.

MiFID 1l which came into effect at the beginning of
January has been a huge challenge for the industry
introducing onerous trade reporting obligations on the
Manager and a change to the way n which research from
brokers is paid for. Commissions on transactians have

TR Praperty trwesiment Trusy 5
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s Statement

continued

reduced significantly, resultting in lower charges to the
capital account when the Trust buys and sells shares, as
the cost of research, previously covered as part of the
(higher) transaction commussion, is now agreed in
advance through Research Agreements and charged
separately to the Manager. As noted in the Management
Engagement Committee report on page 46 the Board has
negotiated revised temrms for the Investment Management
Agreement to reflect these changes and to ensure that the
research and investment capability available to the
rnanager remains appropriately remunerated and
protected.

| would also like to draw your attention to one other
regulatory requirement.

PRIIPs (Packaged Retall and Insurance-based Investrnent
Products) regulation took effect at the beginning of the
year. One of the responsibilities of our Manager under this
regulation is to publish a Key Information Document (KID)
which 15 available on our website In our Interim Report

I highlighted that the way the information is required to be
calculated and presented is prescribed by the regulations
and is based purely on recent historical data. The
regulations require that there is no judgement applied and
the calculations take no account of forecasts or market
conditions. As a consequence the Board is concemed that
the investment performance scenarnos which are based
on such short-term recent performance, may indicate over
optimistic future returns.

The AIC (Association of Investment Companies) has
recently announced that as a result of research it had
conducted, the Association believes that too many KIDs
overstate likely future performance and understate
investment risk and has called on the FCA to take steps to
protect consumers.

We welcome this intervention by the AIC and hope that
the FCA responds. in the meantime | feel it appropriate to
rernind shareholders that past performance should not be
taken as a guide 1o the future.

[ TR Property Investment Tust

Awards

The Trust was Highly Commended in Best Property Trust
in the Money Observer Trust Awards 2018,

Board Changes

It has been my pleasure to welcome Tim Gillbanks who
joined the Board in January.

QOutlook

In November | noted that we remained positive about the
merits of property as an income generating asset class
and that we were focused on high qualty businesses with
strong recurring cashflows Six menths on, that statement
remains valid but subject to heightened vigilance. The
level of dergence between those businesses with growth
prospects and those without continues to widen and the
advantage of being able to consistently reduce the cost of
debt is coming to an end.

Real estate continues to provide an income advantage
particularly when compared to prevailing bond yields. Our
manager is focusing on businesses in areas and sectors
which provide the prospect of rental grawth, combined
with sustainable debt levels. Therefore, with the caveats
referred to above, we remain confident of the attributes of

6 June 2018



Manager's Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge MRICS
Fund Manager

Performance

The Net Asset Value total retumn for the year of 15 5% was
ahead of the benchmark total return which was 10.2%. The
Chairman has already commented on the 25.5% share
price total return driven by a further reduction in the level of
the discount between the share price and the net asset
valse.

The growth 1n net assets was primarily driven in the first half
by our continental European stacks. They began to benefit
fram both improving economic data and a broad
expectaton that the largest Eurozene ecanomies of France
and Germany would both gain from a new political erder
{Macron} and an older one (Merkel) Regional returns in
the second half of the year were much doser with the UK
component of the benchmark shightly outperforming, 4.1%
in GBP versus Furope (ex UK) returning just 2% in EUR.
However the fund's relative outperformance of the
benchmark was not primarily dnven by geographical focus
{we were in fact overweight in the UK throughout the year)
but by subsector exposure and stock selection particularly
amongst our small caps.

The resounding theme of the penod, which ! flagged at the
interim stage, and one that continues to be the case today
is the huge divergence of performance (and investor
sentiment) between sectars, The mast extreme of these
deserve to be highlighted early in this report as they were
primary drivers of performance.

Retal property remains deeply unpopular whilst the other
side of the online, omni-channel retailing phenomenon,
namely warehousing, continues to experience stellar
returns. In the UK our principal retail exposure was through
Capital & Regional, whose centres focus on a local
catchment and where rens remain affordable. While the
stock underperformed the broader index it was the best
perferming UK retail stock. We remam firmly of the view

that the value of prime shopping centres are on a
downward glide path which is being smicothed by a lack of
market transactions allowing independent valuers multiple
reporting penads to get to the current market values. 1t s
now merely a matter of time, Sharp eyed investors will
notice that we have acquired a holding in Hammerson. This
occurred just a few days befare the year end and was
entirely driven by our expectaticn of corporate activity which
il explain later. intu {which we do not hold) once again
‘won' the prize for poorest performing UK stock with a tota
return of ~20.6%. Negative investor sentiment towards this
particular sector 15 geographically agnostic and Eurcpean
names also suffered regardless of whether they are well wn
businesses exposed to premier malls (Unibail) or own
secondary malls and lack management skills {Wereldhave).

Set against our retail underweight, the industrial and
logistics subset rernains our largest collective overweight
and was a key performance driver. More on this subject
later in the report.

Politics continued to have an impact. The result of the

UK election last June reverberated through the market
leading to relative underperformance of the UK properfy
stocks versus ther Continental cousins in the first half of the
year. The London centnec businesses (both large caps such
as Landsec as well as the specialist developers such as
Creat Portland Estates) suffered from the angeing concern
that rental growth woutld reverse as London employment
levels (particularly in financial service related businesses)
dropped.

Given the underperformance of the UK, the fund's
ovenweght to that region as mentioned earlier, requires an
explanation. [n summary, our exposure to alternative sectors
such as student accommodation, self storage, healthcare,
budget hatels, index-linked and secure income has
increased matenally alongside an increased exposure to
South East (ex Londan} office markets. Virtually all of these
investments exceeded the benchmark retum with the
strangest performances from CLS Holdings (36.8%),
McKay Securities (36.2%) and Sefestore (33.4%).

Property Investment Markets

Capital continues to flow into the asset dlass. Investors
remain focused an income even as we move to & world of
tightering monetary policy and a reduction in unorthodox
stimulus (the ECB reduced their bond buying from €60bn
to €30bn in October). Bond yields rose over the period but

TR Property Investment Trust 7
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Manager's Report

continued

the 10 year Bund peaked in February at 76bps. Three
quarters of 1% for 10 years and your money back not
adjusting for inflation doesn't seem very appealing when
the German economy is expected to grow at 2.5% this year
(IMF forecast). Hence mvestors continue to seek
altematives.

Even London where rental growth is subdued and the
economic outlook uncertain international capital flows have
held yields at historically low levels, albeit this capital is
focused on prime assets. Knight Frank calculated that last
year B3% of all London office transactions were from
overseas investors, totallng over £14bn. Transaction levels
were 33% higher than the previous year although the
figures were skewed by the twa largest deals ever —

20 Fenchurch St (‘the Walkie Talkie”) and 122 Leadenhall
Street (the ' Cheesegrater’) This agent's confidence for next
year is underpinnied by the fact that a third of all buyers for
assets over £100m were making their first foray into the
London market. The pool of potential purchasers appears
deep. The UK capital remains a gateway for new investors
and the uncertainty of Brexit doesn't seem to bother those
with a much longer investment harnizon.

Markets which continue to see rental growth driven by

a positive demand/supply imbalance such as
industrial/warehousing, residential (Germany, Spain,
Sweden), and offices in Paris, Madrid, Stockholm and most
major German aties have all experienced further yield
compression and elevated transaction levels.

UK industrial transactions reached a £7.5bn record with arn
acceleration in Q4 which saw £2bn traded. MSCI/IPD
report that average industnal yields tightened by 0.29% to
5.5%, another record, and are now lower than the
equivalent for all retail property.

However, for assets which are expenencing serious
downward prassure on rents and deep structural challenges
we have seen a collapse in transaction volumes. Shopping
centre sales volumes fell 1o £2.2bn the lowest level since
the depth of the recession in 2009. Many of these
transactions were acquisitions by local authenties using
cheap finance from the Public Works Loan Board, This
cohort's spending across all sectors exceeded £1,8bn in
2017 up from £1.2bn in 2016. Their motwation is often
broader than merely financial retums as they seek to
irnprove their own local retail environmenits which have
suffered from under investrent.

8 TR Property Investment Trust

It remains our central concern that these reduced
transaction volumes, particularly in retall, are holding back
the downward adjustrment to prices which the independent
valuers need to make. They continue to ate lack of
evidence when producing independent valuations, whereas
the equity market already knows the direction of travel and
has the shopping centre owners standing at discounts of
between 15% (Unibail) and 45% {Intu) to their last
reported asset vafues.

Offices

JLL report that Central London take up at 11 3m sq ft was
some 119% ahead of 2016 and comfortably ahead of
longer term averages. Those most concerned about the
likely impact of Brexit may be surprised to read that

Q4 2017 was the strongest quarter of the year for City take
up with the full vear figure at 6.2m sq ft, 15% ahead of the
10 year average. The West End equivalent figure was

4.4m sq ft, the highest since 2007. What is going on?
Before we subject the Brexit bears 1o a tirade about ‘Project
Fear we need to dig into the data. The flexible office space
operators (led by WeWork) accounted for 28% of all take
up in the last quarter and 20% of the 2017 figure. Whilst all
this office space is part of the take up data it does then
require real businesses to fill it who might otherwise take
more traditonal longer leases elsewhere. We must also
remain cognisant of the fact that traditiona! financial services
are not increasing their headcount. The loosely described
‘creative’ industries continue to increase their proportion of
take up and rents remain most stable in their preferred
focations of City fringe and Mid Town, also known as the
Tech Belt. However this huge growth in serviced offices
skews the data.

investors, quite nghtly, were concemed that the inevitable
slowdawn in employment growth ahead of the conclusion
af the Brexit negotiations would meet an increase in the
supply of new developments which were commenced
before the Referendum vote was even a twinkle in UKIP's
eve. It s pleasing to report that whilst 2017 development
completions were the third highest on record, this new
supply was quickly absorbed with new build vacancy at
0.6% (less than half the 10 year average). Vacancy has
merely edged up from 4.8% to 4.9% in the Cy whilst
being unchanged in the West End at 4.4%. Development
completions scheduled for 2018 and 2019 are ahead of
long term averages but then the 2020 delivery is



Manager's Report

continued

significantly lower than average. We would charactense this
profile as a healthy but contained level of space completion.

Paris continues to enjoy the recavery in tenant demand
which we wrote about last year. Total take-up for 2017
reached 2.6m sq m, 15% ahead of the 10 year average
and the highest level seen since 2007 and Q1 2018 has
matched this pace. Incentives continue to fall particularly in
the more central locations. Vacancy levels remain hustonically
low in the pnme CBD (Pans Centre West) at 2.5%
compared to a 10 year average of 5% La Defense is
broadly in line with its long run average of 7.3%. The issue
has always been around supply and whilst there are

30 projects due for completion in 2018, over haff of these
are in the centre of Paris which has been starved of
maodermn, high quality space due to planning and histonic
building constramnts, By way of example, CLS Holdings (we
hold 5% of the company) will shortly complete a

2,000 sg m office close to Place des Victoires in the 1st A,
in Paris and had litle difficutty letting the budding ahead of
completion. Of the estimated 1.8m sq m to be delivered
over the next 3 years, 50% s already pre-let,

A similar theme runs across all the major cities of Europe
with employment growth translating into falling vacancy.
Subdued levels of speculative development reflect the
ongoing reluctance of banks to provide nsk capital and this
generates the virtuous circle of tenant demand meeting
modest supply.

Madrid and Barcelona (despite the disruption caused by the
Catalonian separatist mavement) have bath expenenced

a strong recovery in take up which has absocrbed significant
vacancy and dnven rents higher, Madrid CBD saw rents 8%
higher as incentives drop to pre-crisis levels and take up
reached 560,000 sq m, 30% higher than 2016. With new
space delvery at just 1.5% of current stock further rental
growth 1s anticipated

According to JLL, Germany’s 7 top aities colfectively reached
an all time high take up of 4.2m sq m beating the previous
2016 record by 7% Vacancy at 4 7% 1s the lowest iIn

15 years. Once again supply 1s anaemic with lower levels of
new space delivery in 2017 than in 2016. The top performer
in terms of rental growth was, again, Berln (+119%) but
Stuttgart, Munich and Hamburg also alt saw 4 (0%.

Retail

The retail sector continues to suffer from structural
headwinds and retail preperty landlords remain out of
favour. in some instances poor management decisions —
princpally around too much leverage — will continue to
compound the pain of falling asset values and anaemic
rental growth. Retailers of all shades are focusing their
capital expenditure cnline not on stores. Aimost every
retailer must continue to rationakise their physical store
estate. Many observers believe this just means a
concentration of location and larger units. Our view 1s that it
is much more nuanced and there is a place and a price for
local everyday shopping. Landlords and valuations are
adjusting to these lower rental levels. In fact 1t 15 the rents in
many ‘prime’ centres which are becoming increasingly
unaffordable as retailer margins continue to be squeezed.
Lord Wolfson, the veteran retailer and CEG of Next
commented that he expects, on average, all lease renewals
gong forward to be renegotiated at c25% below current
passing rent. The current values of most centres are at
yields implying growth which doesn't exist.

The moderately good news is that supply has all but dried
up, paricudarly in the UK Bracknell and Oxford were
enhancements of existing schernes and both badly needed
in wealthy catchments. Continental Europe has been slow to
reduce supply but it 15 now happening Cushman repert

1 2m sgm of new space in H1 2017, down 11% from

H1 2016 They estimate a calendar year decline of 16%.

The lack of market evidence due to the expectation gap
between buyers and sellers, which is so apparent in the UK,
15 also a feature across Europe with investment volurmes
below average. However there has been more evidence of
international and institutional capital continuing to pay
record yields for prime assets, particularly city centre as
evidenced by Eurccommercial’s sale of 74 rue de Rivoll,
Paris at an inihal yield of 3.0% and their purchase of
Woulwe, a shopping centre outside Brussels for €468m at
a yield of 4.0%

Both occupiers and landlords are still grappling with the
longer term ramifications of digital sales penetration. The
UK remains the beliwether with the highest level of online
penetration. A year ago | commented that online sales as

a percentage of all sales has reached 15%, the ONS update
for March 2018 is 17.4% It is also interesting to note that
onlne sales of food (as & % of total sales) have grown
much more slowly from 5 3% to 5.4% over the period.

TR Praperty lnvestment Tust 9
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Nat all retailers have been able to successfully navigate
these difficult times and the headline news in the UK
around administrations and retailers’ restructuring lease
obligations through CVAs (creditor voluntary arrangements)
has been a blizzard of hausehold names — New Laak,
Campetright, Byron Burger, Brantano, lones the Bootmaker,
Multiyork, House of Fraser and Toys R' Us to name a few,
The CVA structure is a useful tool for tenants 1t enables
themn to extract themselves from underperforming stores or
to rebase rents back to market levels with the threat of
bankruptcy {and therefore an empty store) as the
alternative and less palatable course of action for a landlord.

Distribution and Industrial

The optimistic expectations for this sector {and our
ovenweight position) have, if anything been exceeded. Last
year | gave a range of statistics on the rate of rental growth
and further yield compression. These rates have been
matched or surpassed with MSC/IPD reporting a total
return of 19.6% for 2017. However, whilst investars have
prled into the sector, actual take up (when Amazon's market
share is stripped out) is just in Iine with the 5 year average.
The last five years have seen extraordinary rates af growth
in take up and that was at an unsustainable pace. What is
encouraging and the rationale for further investor interest
has been the pace of rental growth. According to LSH, rents
in the UK's 60 key markets increased on average by 4.9%.
Their 5 year projections average 3.5% pa versus that for all
UK Property of sub 2%. Lack of availabifity remains the key.
The threat to logistic networks posed by Brexit has deterred
speculative development. UK wide availability has fallen to
an all time low

The situation across Europe is much the same, Segra’s Q1
2018 trading statement included a series of record breaking
statistics on leasing, take up and pre-lets. They operate
across 6 European countnes alongside the UK and it is very
encouraging to see tenant demand across all countries and
fypes of assets — bigbox, fast mile urban locations as well as
traditional industrial users. Whilst their ERV (Estimated
Rental Value) was fastest in the UK (+3.9%), Germany and
ttaly both recarded 1.9% on top of further averall yield
compression. CBRE recorded the strongest growth in Spain
with one year growth of 5% in Madnd and a staggering
8.7% in Barcelona.

Amazon continue to be at the forefront of this land grab. In
April 2017, it announced that it was seeking 1,300
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warehouses across Europe primarily to serve as last mile
centres for its Prime service They remain the fargest
acquirer of logistics space across Europe as the ability to
provide same day delivery is rolled out beyond the largest
cities m the UK to those in France, laly, Spain, Germariy
and the Netherlands.

Residential

In the intenm report | wrote at length about the attractions
of the private rented sector (PRS) and those attributes
remain in place. Followng the £250m IPG of PRS REIT n
May 2017, the company raised almost the same again in
further pnmary 1ssuance in February this year, such is the
demand for the asset class.

Meanwhile, the Central London prame residential market
cantinues to deflate under the weight of changes to stamp
duty, capital gains and second home taxation as well as the
inewvitable expectation that continental European buyers will
defer investment decisions until they see the outcomne of
the Brexit negotiations.

Fisewhere in Europe we continue to see strong
performance from the German listed residential businesses.
These companies are effectively PRS businesses on a grand
scale. The largest, Vonowia, now has 350,000 apartments
following its acquisition of Buwog. Employment levels are at
record highs in Germany and wage growth is assured which
helps investors feel confident that tenants can continue to
pay rents which are rising at 3% per annum.

The only other weak residential market, besides London, is
Stockholm. 1t had enjoyed stellar growth over the previous
10 years however the Riksbank's macro prudential tools
aimed at limiting borrowing and lowering mortgage
thresholds have finally begun to bite and Swedish house
prices have corrected 10% over the last year and even
more in prime Stockholm.

Debt and Equity Markets

[ commented in the Interim on the amount of capital raised
in the UK over the previous 12 months (£2bn) and the
second half of the period saw an acceleration in that rate
with a further £2bn raised in the final six months of the
finanicial year. The previous penod had been marked by

a large number of 1P0s focused either on assets with
secure income (social housing, healthcare, supermarkets)
or industrial/warehousing, the ‘secteur du jour’. The Trust
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partcipated in @ number of the former but none of the
latter Our industrial exposure is focused on businesses
which already own the assets (and the development
opportunities) as opposed to investing in blind pools of
cash seeking to acquire in an increasingly heated
environment.

In the latter part of the year, the largest raisings were from
existing businesses with strong managements and we
added to our holdings in Secure income REIT (who raised
£315m), Shaftesbury (£265m), Unite (£169m) and Assura
(E173m). The largest raise was Civitas (F350m) a business
investing in social housing let to a range of housing
associations We did not invest and recently one of the
smaller associations has run into finanaal difficulties,

Cur largest single parhapation (which was detailed in the
Interim) was Supermarket Income REIT which raised
£100m i July and followed that with a small addinonal
raise of £20m in October. We anticipate further raisings and
remain keen for this business to grow

Equity capital markets were also busy across Europe with

a total of € 3.3bn raised. Spain and France dorninated the
leader beard with Colomal, the Pans and Madrid office
owner raising € 670m to acquire Axiare and Merlin adding
€ 150m to acquire more Madrid offices. The largest pan
European raising was by the Paris office specialist Gecina
who raised € 1,0bn to acquire Eurosic, The resulting € 15bn
Pans portfolio is now twice the size of its nearest nval.

It was also ancther busy year in the debt capital markets. In
the year to March 2018, pan European property companies
raised €22.8 bn exceeding the prior year's figure of
€19.3bn Companies continue to take advantage of cheap
debt and in many cases have retired existng expensive
debt. Whilst there 1s a short term cost of this strategy we
welcome managements’ desire to secure longer term
financing at historically record low pricing,

Property Shares

At the interim, | reported the stark gap in performance
between Continental Europe and the UK which had
reached nearly 6% in focal currency terms The second half
saw the gap narrow with the twelve month performance of
Continental Europe reaching a total return of 10.3%

{in ELR} versus & 6% for the UK {in GBP) The
underperformance in the UK in the first half was driven by
weakness in the largest companies Landsec, British Land

and Hammerson all of whom are focused on the two
markets which investors are least enthused about, namely
retail and Central London offices. The second half saw

a recovery In sentiment towards Central London offices with
Denwent London, Great Portland and British Land all rallying
+10%. The laggard was Landsec which has record low
leverage and is dearly positioned for a bear market.

Hammerson's performance would have been doser to
intu’s -20%, if it wasn’t for the appreach from Klepierre
which resulted in the Hammerson share price rallying 24%
in the last two weeks of the financial year. For those readers
who haven't been following this corporate finance calamity
the briefest of summaries is as follows In December,
Hammerson and Intu announced that they reached
agreement for Hammerson to acquire Intw with a mix of
shares and cash. By mid March the share prices of both
companies had fallen 20% from their 315t December
2017 closing prices Investors did not ke the deal. On

16th March the Board of Hammerson confirmed

(in response to press speculation) that Klepierre had
approached them with an indsicative offer of 615p
subsequently mcreased to 635p. The Hammerson Board
rejected both bids out of court stressing its desire to
continue with the Intu merger. Klepierre walked away and
then on 18th April Hammerson announced that they no
longer wished to pursue the deal with Intu citing changes in
market conditions. In 20 years of working on the Trust | can
safely say that I've never seen anything quite ike this saga.
The only thing we can be sure of is that this is not the end
of the tale

The somry story of Hammerson, Intu and Klepierre
temparanly overshadowed the much larger piece of retail
landlord corporate activity — the takeover of Westfield by
Unibail for a msx of cash and shares. Again investors are
nervous about this transaction with concerns focused on
price, post transaction leverage and the lack of synergies
with Uniball buying intc a completely new market in North
America. Uniball's 12 month total return was a poor -
10.5% and the stock stands at a discount to its asset value
a position it hasn't been in since the Global Financial Crisis
in 2008/9. The share price weakness in shopping centre
landlords was universal and whilst well run businesses such
as Uniball did suffer, those with poorer balance sheets and
weaker managements expenenced a rout with Wereldhave
down —17.4%, Deutsche Euroshop returning ~18.6% and
Citycon —13.6% None of these are held by the Trust
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As expected the strongest performances came from the
industrial and logistics players with Segro, the outstanding
performer returning 35.4% with Londonmetric

a respectable 16.3%. Both are significant holdings. Tritax
Bigboy, the purest play on logistics reaf estate
underperformed the wider UK sector with a retum of just
4.3%. This business is extemally managed and the
management team are incentivised to grow the portfolic
They have been extraordinarily successful at exceeding all
expectations on that metric with nine capital raises since
June 2014. However the share price return this year reflects
the fact that what s good for the management team may
well not be good for investors. Quite simply they raised too
much capital and took too long to invest it, all agamnst the
backdrop of a market which i1s becoming increasingly
crowded. However, we are confident that they have now
learnt the requirement for capital disciphne and their latest
raise was much more modest.

German residential businesses retumed to the top of the
performance Jeague table with the Berlin focused small cap,
ADO Properties retumning 37.3% whilst the larger names,
Deutsche Wohnen, LEG and Vonovia all returned between
22 5% and 26%. The latter continued its acquisition spree
with the purchase of Buwog, the listed Austnan residential
developer and owner, The Trust had a significant holding in
Buwog and the deal announced in November was at a
20% prermium to the undisturbed price. Germany now
accounts for almost a third of all Eurozone economic
output. High employment has resulted in wage infiation
which s positive for all residential rental businesses where
tenant affordability is crucial as rents continue to nse.

Spain continues to be a bright spot as its economy
maintained its rapid growth. This year saw further M&A
activity with Colonial buying Axiare for € 1.5bn whilst
Hispania (one of aur largest overweight positions) teceived
a bid from Blackstone, who have recently acquired 2 16%
position from a founder investor. We consider the offer
from Blackstone at € 1745 per share to be insufficient.
Hispania's total retum for the year was 32.5% with the
stock currently slightly higher than the offer price. Merlin, the
largest hsted owner of offices in Madrid and Barcelona also
enjoyed a strong year returning 21.6%.

The Nordics were a microcosm of sector performance. City
centre office owners, Fabege (Stockholm} and Entra (Oslo)
performed well returning 26.9% and 17.9% respectively,
whilst the logistics focused Catena returned 28.2%. Retail
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focused stocks suffered with Hufvudstaden (central
Stockholm retail and offices) the only negative performer in
the region returning -4.1%.

[nvestment Activity

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by two) totalled
£370m or 31.2% of the average assets over the period
almost exactly in line with the 31.6% in the previous

12 months, This heightened level of activity over the [ast
two years reflects the amount of corporate activity in our
universe through primary issuance and follow on raisings,
secondary placings and merger activity. Real estate equities
have remained a popular source of income and raisings
have enabled large wealth managers to participate fully in
some relatvely small companies.

The fund's overall geographical positioning between the UK
and Continental Europe did not change markedly over the
penod with exposure to UK equities being 33.4% of assets
up from 31.3% a year earlier. As | commented earlier cur
traditional retail exposure in the UK for almost the entire
period, has been through Capital & Regional and NewRiver
Retall, as opposed to Intu and Hammerson. However | did
ncrease our overall exposure to retail through investing in
the IPO of Supermarket Income REIT. Unlike virtually all
other retailing, the execution of omni-channel food retailling
remains technically difficult. Consumers want the choice of
going to the store, click & collect or home delivery and

a decade on from the launch of ‘Tesco.com’ the major
operators appear to have settled on using the existing store
network to execute home delivery. Tesco cutrently use
approximately 330 of their 750 stores for home delivery
and have only 6 pure online fulfilment only ‘dark’ stores.
This REIT aims to acqurre only ‘amn-channel stores,

ie those which are dominant enough to sunvive and thrive
as the major supermarket operators’ delivery network
evolves. They have raised £120m and acquired four stores,
with an average lease length of 18 years let to Tesco and
Sainsburys yielding 5%. The stock has a dividend yield of
5.5%. Further capital raises will be supported particularly
given the inflation linked leases. The strategy of increased
exposure o secure, longer leases which have an element of
inflation hedging has seen increased investment in
healthcare through Assura and Primary Hea'th Properties,
PRS (sea below) and student accommadation through
Unite. | added to our position in the appropriately named
Secure Income REIT participating in the £315m raise to
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acquire a portfolio of long let budget hotels and the
Manchester Arena leisure complex,

I maintained our Central London office postioning through
Great Portland, Derwent London and Workspace.

As detatled earlier global investors continue 1o buy

London comrmercial property and whilst equity prices are
discounting the potential issues of an unruly Brexit the
reality has been much more solid tenant demand than
expected. All these stocks performed well in the second
half. However the real winners were our two businesses
focused on suburban markets CLS Holdings and McKay
Securities, both returning over 36%. The former sold its
Nine Elms development site to an Asian buyer at

& significant premium te book, reinvesting the proceeds n
a German office portficho whilst the latter announced the
pre-let of its 58,000 sq ft Lombard St development before
practical completion. Both management teams are to be
congratulated on derisking almost thewr entire respective
development programmes just as we enter the next stage
of the Brexit negotations

Although Central London commercial values have remained
robust over the period, the residential market hasn't. Capital
& Counties, the awner of the huge Earls Court development
site fell 5.5% over the year. it could have been a much
greater fall were it not for the success of its Covent Garden
retall estate. Qur residential expesuse is focused on PRS
(the prvate rented sector) through our investment in The
PRS REIT and Telford Homes The latter is a London
developer focused on affordable units (average apartment
price £550k) who have markedly increased their exposure
to PRS development.

The over exposure to Eurapean retail (countenng our
underweight in the UX) was a mistake. Whilst the share of
online sales as a percentage of all retail sales is far below
that of the UK, sentiment towards all retail property
weakened aver the year. At the Interim, | highlighted that

I had consclidated our exposure into four businesses,
Unibail and Klepierre focused on prime and Mercialys and
Eurocommercial in the sub-regional space. The exit from
Citycon (Finland), Wereldhave (Netherlands, France and
Span) and Deutsche Euroshop (Germany) was the correct
strategy. In the second half 1 reduced exposure to Klepierre
based on valuation and the company’s reluctance to sell its
long 'tail’ of higher yielding, secondary assets where such
dispesals would damage earnings in the short run but
create a better portfolic for the longer term Klepierre's offer

for Hammerson was a mw of cash and shares and the
share price plunged as investors realised how much paper
might need to be issued With that saga temperarly in
abeyance the shares have recovered.

Our large exposure to warehousing and industrial has been
well flagged over several years. The top performing stock in
this subsector was Argan, the spedalist French logistics
developer/owner which returned 37.6%. This company
with a market cap of €700m 1s 50% owned by its founder
and his family. For the first time this year it raised capital
thraugh buying property with newly issued shares which the
property vendar then sold into the market. We acquired
15% of these new shares lifting our holding to nearly 3%
of the company. Such has been the investor demand for
this asset class, the warehouse/industriat companies were
always amongst the top performers i every region. For
example in Belgium, Warehouses de Pauw retumned 20.6%
whilst the EPRA Belgium Index returned just 5 3%. In
Sweden, the national index returned 15.6% but Catena
retumed 27.5%.

The largest geographical underweights remain Switzerland
and Belgium and collectively stocks in both regions
underperformed the wider index

Revenue and Revenue Outlook

We reported strong growth in eamings at the interm stage,
drven by a combination of weaker sterling in the first half of
the: year in comparison to the sarme penod of the pricr year,
plus the receipt of a significant withholding tax reclaim. We
expected earnings in the second half to be mere on a par
with the prior year and this has indeed been the case
Overall this led to a 16.2% year on year increase in
earnings. Over a five-year period earnings have grown by
96.14%.

There have been a number of factors cantributing to this
growth, most property companies have retired and
refinanced debt over this penod and as interest rates have
fallen significantly they have received a strong boost to their
revenue accounts fram much lower finance costs. This
process has broadly been completed. Corporate activity has
fed to an increase 1 the number of special ane-off
distributions as have changes in dividend payment
schedules In the last two years the weakening of sterling
has had a material impact as our eamings from continental
Europe have been worth more in sterling terms
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The withholding tax reclaim received this year boosted
earnings by around 0.67p per share (after paying the
professional fees in connection with the reclaim) and this is
naot expected 1o be repeated. We continue to make reclaims
in countries where appropriate but the more recent
distributions were received after the equwvalent tax
transparent vehicles had been established in many other
countries and therefore the amounts we can attempt to
reclaim are much smaller.

The underlying message s that this rate of earnings growth
is not likely to continue. The debt refinancing and
restructunng of the last five to ten years has strengthened
balance sheets and we feel optimistic about earnings from
these companies but further growth has to be generated
from underlying rental growth. A recovery in sterling’s
fortune would have a well-flagged detnmental impact on
OUr €arnings.

Without any currency impact, our eamings may be slightly
lower in the forthcoming year because the revenue account
will not have the benefit of the one-off items we saw in the
year to March 2018.

Gearing and Debt

Gearing increased a little over the year ending the period at
14.6%. As a reminder, our property porifolio represents just
over 7% of our investment exposure and this is ungeared,
so the gearing against our equity portfolio is quite modest.
As set out in the Chairman's statement, both our loan
facilives were renewed and we are also n conversation with
other suitable providers. We are keen to spread the risk of
our debt portfolio and are happy to have a number of
sources, including the ability to invest through CFDs.

Direct Physical Portfolio

The physical property portfolia produced a total return of
14.6% for the twelve months to March 2018 with an
income return of 3.5% and a capital return of 11.1%. This
compares well to the total retumn from the IPD Al Property
index of 11.3% which comprised a higher income return of
5.4% but lower capital return of 5.5%.

Dunng the year the Trust completed the sale of two
properties. An industnal unit in Plymouth was sold for
£4.3m following the settlement of the August 2016 rent
review at a 14.4% uplift to the previous passing rent. The
asset, the smallest in the portfolio, had 3.5 years to lease
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expiry and the tenant was not in occupation. The sale was
concluded 2.69% ahead of the September 2017 valuation
and 8.6% ahead of the March 2017 valuation. The sale of
our office building in Wimbledon, for £5.8m, was reported
at the Intenm and completed as expected in November
2017, Whlst the rationale for the sale of Plymouth was the
conclusion of an asset management initiative (the rent
review) n kne with the busness plan, the safe of
wimbledon was an opportunity to aystallise profit at

a specific pont in the market without the need to commit
further capital on a risky planning apphication.

At the Colonnades the lease to the restaurant operator,
Babaji was completed following the successful appeal
against Westminster Counail's refusal to grant planning
permission to amalgamate the two units In addition, we let
Urit 2 to a high-end gym operator, 1Rebel, for their

4ih opening in London They have completed their fit out
and opened for business. This leaves two areas of vacancy
at the Colonntades; the final and smallest retail unit and the
public house. Between them they account for the vacancy
rate of 5.8% for the property. Following another protracted
planning application with Westminster Crty Coundil we have
finally receved planning consent to split the ground floor
pub and the 1st floor 3 bed flat We can now proceed with
the facade improvements, internal alterations on the ground
floor as well as the comprehensive refurbishment of the
flat.

in the summer we concluded the letting of two industnat
units at Ferier Street, Wandsworth, taking the estate to full
occupancy. In addiion, we have successtully secured a
change in the local planning policy to a mare "mixed use”
designation. We continue to develop our proposals for the
redevelopment of the site, in consuftation with Wandsworth
Council and envisage submitting a planning application in
the next 9 months.

Regulation

This is not a regular heading in my Report but the weight of
new regulation over the last year warrants comment,

The Chairman has referred to MiFID I and the PRIPS
regulation n his report so L will not expand on that much
here other than to endorse that we welcome the statement
from the AIC on KIDs. There has been widespread cancern
across the Investment Trust industry that the investrnent
performance scenarios which are based on short-term
recent perfermance may indicate over optimstic future
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returns and this is particularly pertinent after the sustained
period of strong positive performance that we have seen
over recent years, The AIC wam that KiDs will encourage
investars to “buy high, sell low". Due to the way the forecast
returns have to be produced, KIDs will suggest to investors
that after a sustained bull market they will get higher returns
in the future and after a sustained bear market, that
investors will get lower future retumns. They have called on
the FCA to take steps to protect consumers. We hope that
the FCA will be quick to respond but in the meantime the
Board and the Manager are keen to ensure the investors
understand the nature of this document,

Mare recently, GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation)
which came nto effect on 25th May 1s an extension of the
Data Protection Directive setting out a more rigorous data
protection regime, placing more obligations on controllers
and processors of personal data and providing more nights
for data subjects. The Company has taken steps t¢ comply
with this new regulation and has ensured that third party
supplters are also compliant.

Outlook

A year ago my outlook projection was positive based on the
fact that property is a pro-cychcal asset class with a core
ncome driver. As economic growth returns market rents
nise, subject o the levels of supply of avallable property. We
also expected bond yields to rise as Europe began the
process of normalising base rates. In the Intenm in
November, | highlighted that only those markets with rental
growth would outperform rising bond yields and we
therefore expected the divergence in performance between
property comparnties expased to markets with growth and
the rest to widen even further and that has been the case.

The last quarter of the financial year proved investors are
quickly spocked if monetary tightening expectations are
brought forward faster than expected. However, in the last
few weeks we have had sight of the Q1 economic data as
well as central bank commentary from both the Bank of
England and the European Central Bank Both are again
erring on the side of caution anmdst signs of a slowing in
the rate of growth, although it remains postive. This
deceleration has been most abrupt In the UK as it moved
from the top of the European growth table to the bottom
(with only italy below us) such is the * Brexit drag with
investment and censumer confidence weakening Our one
year outlook for the UK remains jaundiced by the political
back drop and the range of negotiated outcomes 15 still too

broad to prowide effective probabiliies. We remain wary
particularly for London offices and retail. Our additional
exposure over the year has been to altematives and longer
dated indexed income from a variety of property types. Thus
is set to continue.

Across Europe we have an opportunity to remain more
optimistic, particularly gven Mr Draghi's recent dovish
remarks. Here we continue to focus on those sectors with
the strongest rental growth prospects and we believe that
the divergence in performance will persist. We continue to
avold businesses which appear attractively priced but which
ultimately have weaker (or potentally negative) earnings
growth. Economic growth across the region remains robust,
Office rents are nsing in every dominant city across the
Continent, in stark contrast to Central London.

Two final Investment themes to highlight. M&A actwity has
increased over the last year. Real estate can of course be
owned publicly or privately (way more in the latter) Private
companies can afford higher debt levels away from public
market scrutiny and we may well find that, fuefled by the
angoing availability of cheap leverage, we see more
businesses taken private. The acquisition targets are likely to
be those cheaper and higher yielding businesses. Generally
not the ones the Trust owns at this point i the cycle.

Whilst | have highlighted the political backdrop, particularly
in the UK, we also consider the lack of progress in the
development of a banking union across the Eurozone as
a potential existential issue. The European Union still has
much mare harmonisation to complete armongst the
remaining 27 countries and the inmal further reform
impetus of the Macron presidency appears tc have met
with resistance from the German Chancellor and her
Finance Minister. Such issues as the ongoing indebtedness
of Greece and the ltalian banks' bad debts continue to
simmer in the background The ECB's careful and cautious
pragress in moving from guantitative easing to monetary
tightening is proceeding at an appropnate pace and real
estate continues to ook attractive against long duration
fixed income alternatives.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
6 June 2018
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Portfolio

( A (I;iscributian of Investments h
as at 31 March
2018 2018 2017 2017
£'000 Yo £'000 %
UK Secunties
~ quoted 402,120 30,6 329,153 387
UK Investnent Properties 98,013 74 97304 8.5
UK Tatal 500131 38.0 426,457 372
Continental Europe Secunties
- guoted 815,915 62.0 718319 626
investrents held at fair value 1,316,046 180.0 1,144,776 558
~ CFD debtor 495 - 2,146 02
Total Investment Positions 1,316,531 100.0 1,146,922 1000
. ) L
4 A Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
2018 2018 2007 2017
E'000 % E'000 %
UK Securntes
- quoted 402,120 27.9 329,153 26.1
~ CFD exposure? 79,440 5.5 65119 5.2 !
UX Investment Properties 98,011 6.8 97304 77
|
UK Total 579,571 40.2 491,576 39.0
Continental Europe Secunhes
- quoted 815,915 56.6 718319 571
— CFD exposure? 46,237 32 49,067 33 !
Total Investment Exposure® 1,421,723 100.0 1,258862 100.0
N AL
rPurtfolio Summary W rNet Currency Exposures N
as ar 31 March a5 at 31 March
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 Fund Benchmark
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 % %
Total investments £1,316m  £1,145m  £1,099m  £1,056m £880m
Nat assets £1,256m  £1,1)8m  £1,065m  £1,000m  £sogm | | CBF 281 2990
EUR 56.9 570
UK quoted property shares 3% 29% 310% 41% 41%
UK fixed interest 0% 0% 0% 1% 1% CHF 5.5 55
Overseas gquoted property shares 6204 &3% &0% 51t 500
Overseas fixed interest 0% 0% 0% 0% o | | SEK 80 79
NOK )
Diract property (externally valued) T% 8% 9% % 8% 0 06
. S )

1 Net uniealised gan on CFD contracts held as balance sheet debtor

2 Grass value of CFD posinons

3 Total investments llustrating market expasure Indluding the gross value of CFD positons
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Investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2018

Market value Market vaiue
£'000 % £000 %
Austria Switzerland
CA \mmobihen 12,077 09 PSP Swiss Property 18,771 1.4
12,077 0.9 18,771 1.4
Belgium United Kingdom
warshousing and Distrbution de Pauw 13,362 10 Landsec 55,805 4.2
Befimmo 2,008 02 SEGRO 40,314 31
Wereldhave 532 - Unite Group 36,579 28
CLS Holdings 35,433 2.7
15908 12 Great Portland Estates 29,225 22
France McKay Secunties 25,625 19
Umibail-Rodamco 90,597 69 Londonmetric Property 23,510 18
Fonciére des Régions 29710 23 Shaftesbury 18,621 14
Ceana 27545 21 Safestore Holdings 15,235 12
Argan 22,610 17 Workspace Group 11,705 09
Terrers 20,216 16 St Modwen 11,697 09
Meraialys 11,823 0s PRS REIT 10,895 08
Kléperre 11,096 o8 Secure Income REIT 10,542 08
Altarea 1,774 01 Caprtal & Regionai 10,164 08
Supermaket Income REIT 9,999 08
15,371 K]
AL LEN— L2 Derwent London 8,798 07
Germany Telford Homes 8,443 06
Vanowia 123,895 94 Assura 8,442 06
LEC 75937 58 NewRiver 6,473 (1353
Deutsche Wohnen 67779 51 Big Yellow Group 6,284 G.5
VIB Vermoegen 17,149 13 Sinus 6,162 05
Aroundtown 14013 11 Primary Health Properties 4,182 G3
2987173 227 Picton 2,977 0.2
—_— Target Healthcare 2,223 02
reland Hammerson 1,879 ot
Green Reit 14921 [ Local Shopping REIT 855 0.}
13,921 1.1 Alrato Cap|tal 153 -
Netherlands 402,120 30.6
Eurocommercial Properties 22,782 1.7 Direct Property 98,011 7.4
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 2,061 02 1,316,046 100.0
24,843 1.9 o - .
_— CFD Positions (included in
Norway current assets) 495 -
Entra 20,343 16 Total investment Pasitions 1,316,541 100.0
Nonwegian Property 1,511 01 Ea—
21,860 1.7
Spain
Hisparna Actvos 53019 40
Mertin 18,004 14
lnmobiliana Colomal 5,422 04
76,445 5.8
Sweden
Fabege 32,895 25
Kungsteden 21,542 16
Wihlborgs 18,788 1.4
Fastighets Balder 16,583 1.3
Castellum 8,977 07
Pandox 8,355 06
Catena 7,309 06
D Camegee 2,258 0.2
Victoria Park 244 -
116,951 8.9
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Twelve Largest Equity Investments

" Vonovia Unibail-Rodamco LEG
(Germany) (France) (Germany)
31 March | 31 March 31 March | 3} March 31 March | 31 March
2018 2017 2018 017 2018 2007

Shareholding value £123.9m | €66 9m Shareholding value F1056m { £1253m Shareholding value £759m | E684m
%% of investment % of Investment % of investment
portfolio! 10.0% B0%  rtaliof 85% | T12% oot 6.1% 6 1%
% of equity owned 0 7% 0.5% % of equity owned 06% 0 7% T of equity owned 1.5% 1.7%
Share pnce €4025 €33.03 Share pnce €£18565 €2191 Share pnce €91.34 ] €76.84
Vonovia is the largest German Europe’s largest quoted property LEG 1s a German residental company
residential  landlord  following  the company by both market cap and gross  focused on the economically  strong

acquisition of Gagfah in 2014, Sudewo
portfolio in 2015, conwert n 2016 and
Buwog 1 2017 with more than
350,000 units under management. In
the last couple of months, the company
has been exploring further international
expansion {after a first-step in Austna
through  conwert and  Buwog
acquisitons) by  announcing a
cooperation agreement with French
CDC Habitat (SNI) and launching a bid
for Swedish company WVictona Park
which owns 14,000 residential units in
the Stockholm, Gothenburg and Malmo
regions valued at EUR1.5bn. Vonovia
runs  a large inthouse craftsman
organization  which  enables  the
company to run an innovative strategy
focusing on improving and madernising
its €34bn portfolic, whilst offering
further economies of scale by acquirning
additonal  portfolios and  modular
construction. In addition, the acquisition
of Buwog allows the company to add
development for sale to its business
model. Vonowia reported a hike-for-like
rental growth of 4.20 in 2017 while
indicatng a midterm target level of
around 5%. In the first quarter, the
company increased its FFO guidance
following the integration of Buwog
assets while completing a capital
increase of EURS36m to fund the
Victoria  Park  acquisiton. The total
shareholder return since hsting in July
2013 has been 173%.

assets with a €43bn portfoho located in
France {54%), Central Eurape (12%),
Scandinavia (%), Spain  (9%),
Cermany and Austria (14%) and the
Netherlands (4%). The focus is on large
dominant shopping centers in the main
European cities, which generate higher
sales  density/footfall  and  lower
structural vacancy To  supplement
returns the group also pursues an
opportunistic strategy (buy/build and
sell) in offices (9%) mostly located in
Pans CBD and La Défense. At the end of
2017, the company announced an offer
for Westfield which would create a
EURG1bn REIT wath exposure to the
US (22% of GAV) and to the UK (8% of
GAV). This transformational transaction
would also create a EUR13bn
development pipeline, this compares
with Klepierre's pipeline standing at
EUR3.1bn Post acceptance from both
Uniball and Westfield shareholders, the
deal will close on the 7 of June. On a
standalone basis the company is
guiding for 6% EPS growth in 2018 and
6-8% for the medium tem. The
guidance is likely to be updated
following the integration of Westfield.
The five-year total shareholder retumn
has been 30.4%

tPercentage of Investment Pordalio, posibions include expasute through CFOs,
Note: The Porticlio set out on page 17 includes the physial haldings only ncluded in Investments beld a* far value in the Balance Sheet The CFD profit of loss postian 15 induded

in Current assats
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region of North Rhine-Westphalia. The
cormpany s ane of the largest real estate
companies 1 Gemmany with nearly
130,000 units under management wath
a combined value of €9.0bn LEG is
characterized by a strong balance sheet
with a net LTV of 429, an average debt
maturty of more than 8yrs and an
average cost of debt of 18%. The
company is run by a well-regarded
management team and has a
well-maintained  portfolio with 9729
occupancy and an efficient platform from
which it intends to grow further The
company disdoses a two-year guidance
thustrating the good visbility on eamings.
For 2018, the company 15 guiding for a
like-for-ike rental growth at 3.0% and a
FFO increasing by 8% compared to
2017, For 2019, the company is seeing a
35% lkeforlke rental growth and a
FFO per share growing by 7% while on
mid-tem honzon the hke-for-ike rental
growth is expected to range between
30% and 3.5% The fiveyear total
shareholder return has been 150.7%.



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

continued

4 Deutsche Wohnen

5 Landsec

Hispania Activos

(Germany) (UK) (Spain)

31 March | 31 March 31 March | 31 March 31 March | 31 March

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 207

Sharehalding value £678m | £212m Shareholding value £658m | £906m Shareholding value £530m | E£356m
% of nvestment % of invesiment % of Investment i |
portfoho' 5 5% 1,800 portfoliat 5 3% 81% portioligt 4 30 33%
% of equity owned 0 5% 0 2% % of equity owned 0 9% 1.1% % of equity owned 3.2% 2.8%
Share price €379 €309 Share price 9371p | 1,0590p Share price €1728 €13 47

Deutsche Wohner s Germany's second
largest residential company with the
bulk of 1ts exposure to Greater Berlin
{78%) The company owns a
high-quality portfalio consisting of more
than 160,000 units with a combined
value of neady €19bn. Deutsche
Wohnen experienced another strong
year m Berin with valuation uphft of
+17%, thereby increasing its NAV by
20% compared to a year earlier. In
addition to its residential exposure, the
company is developing a Nursing and
Assisted Living business which currently
represents 8% of the Group EBITDA
and could grow to 15% in the coming
years. Management is guiding to FFO
growth of 9% and fike-for-lke rental
growth between 4% and 5% for 2018,
The fiveyear total shareholder retum
has been 197.7%

The UK's largest real estate investment
trust (REIT) by market cap and porticlio
value, with a portfoio of £13.9bn
including share of joint ventures and
developments. The company is exposed
to Central London Offices and Retat
(569%), Shopping Centres (28%), Retail
Warehouses & Supermarkets (6%) and
other investments (predormsnantly Accor
hotels and leisure-focused  assets)
(10%) The group has recently
undertaken multiple refinancing actions
by purchasing expensive legacy bonds
and reissuing cheaper alternatives. While
this has reduced NAV and increased LTV
shghtly (last reported LTCV of 23% likely
to increase to ¢. 27% at year-end), 1t will
lead to supenor eamings growth giving
LAND a higher eamings yield than s
main peer Brtish Land. Management
hold a negative outlook for the UK real
estate market and espedially Central
London Offices. As a result, management
are remaining cautious and waiting for a
correction before becoming active The
group completed all s outstanding
developments in the current financial
year and now has no further
development nsk. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 33.4%.

'Percentage cf Investment Exposure, pasimoss nclude exposure through CFDs

Hispania 15 a Spanmish soami (REIT)
invested in hotels in the Canary and
Baleanc Islands (65%), offices (25%)
and sesidential units  (10%). The
company is benefiting from strong
tounsm numbers as many traditonal
travel destinations are out of favour due
to continued threat of terorist attacks
Unlike tradiiona! triple net hotel leases,
Hispania is benefiting from this
favcurable trend as most of the
contracts have a substanuial vanable
element. In March 2017 the company
announced it would crystalise the value
of the portfolic by the end of 2020 and
reurn  all  proceeds back to
shareholders, This was indine with the
original proposal at the time of the IPO
in 2014 In the meantime the company
15 upgrading and refurbishing existing
hotels which will drive further revenue
growth In Aprl 2018, following the
purchase of a 16.56% stake owned by
Soros, Blackstone made an unsol:cited
offer to buy &ll the reminder shares of
the company at EUR17.45. in May, the
bid was approved by the Spanish's
competiion regulator CNMC while the
CNMV (stock exchange regulator) 15 due
to approve or reject the deal in the
coming weeks. The total shareholder
return since listing i March 2014 has
been 90.7%
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Twelve Largest Equity Investments

continued

7 Fonciére des Régions Segro Unite Group
(France) (UK) (UK)
31 March | 31 March 31 March | 31 March 31 March | 371 March
2018 2017 208 2017 2018 2017
Shareholding value €48 tm | E370m Shareholding value £472m | E384m Shareholding value £418m | £279m
% of investment % of nvestment % of investment
ponttliot 3.9% 3 3% portfolio! 38% 3 4% portialia! 3 40k 2 5%
% of equity owned 0 8% 0.8% % of equity owned 0 8% 08% % of equity cwned 2.0% 20%
Share prce €89 65 €783 Share pnce 601 2p 456 Op Share price 791.5p 626.5p

Fonciére des Régions is a dversified
European property company with a
consolidated portfolio of €21bn of
assets (€12 8bn in group share) The
company 1s mainly invested in French
and ltalian offices (56% group share),
German Residential exposure (24%
group share) and hotels {14%). In April
2018, the company announced its
intention to merge with Beni Stabill, its
52.4% owned subsidiary, with the aim
of simplifying the company structure
while Increasing its exposure to an
Italian market which is showing signs of
recovery. Fonciére des Régions also
holds a 420 stake in Foncigre des Murs
(FDM}, a French German and Spanish
leisure and lodging business. In May
2018, FDM signed an agreement with
Starwood Capital to acquire a portfolio
of fourteen 4 and 5-star hotels, located
in the main aties of the UK for £858m.
This marks a first step 1n to the UK. The
company saw on average a 6 2% uphft
in valuation over the year, mainly dnven
by strong revaluations in its German
Residential portfolio  (+15.0%). The
group has a 40.4% LTV, with an average
cost of debt of 1.9%, down from 2 2%
a year ago, with an average maturty of
6.2 years. The five-year shareholder
total return has been 97.49%,

Segra 15 the largest operator of logistics
and industrial property histed in the UK,
with a total portfolio of £7.2bn split 70%
in the UK and 30% in Continental
Europe. In the UK, the group 1s exposed
to Greater London industnal and
logistics space and national logistics
space. Rental growth in these markets 1s
running at record levels as there
remains an acute supply-demand
imbalance. In Europe, Germany and
France are the group's largest markets
with Poland in third, these markets have
a flatter rental outlook but are
experiencing yield compression as
investors continue to chase income The
group also  has an  extensive
development exposure that it manages
1o largely pre-let and develop at yields
signficantly in excess of investment
values. We expect this to drive strong
eamings growth over the shert to
medium term and high shareholder
total returns The loan-to-value ratio 1s
c30% and is expected to be
maintained at these levels despite the
large development expenditure. The
five-year total shareholder retun has
been 197.6%.

'Percentage of Sharehalding Value and Equiy Imvestment Portfol, postions include exposure through CFDs
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Unite is the UK's largest purpose-built
student housing developer, owner and
operator. The group manages Just over
49,600 student beds either
wholly-owned or within joint ventures,
Over 2017/18 the asset class has
remamned attractive for institutional
investment. While yeld compression
has slowed rental growth has remained
stong and Unite continues to
outperform the market. Unite offers a
strong development pipeline funded
through retained resources and active
portfolio  recycling  This, alongside
conttinued 3-4% rental growth, is
expected to drve 13 4% compound
annual growth in earnings per share
over the next three years. Concerms over
a collapse 1 EU student numbers post
the UK-EL referendum have proven to
be unfounded. While the UK is
experiencing a demographic decline in
the numbers of 18-yr-olds and this has
led to a2 dechne in overall student
applications, there remains an excess of
applicants to university acceptances. As
a result, the demand-supply dynamic
remains strongly in landlords’ favour.
The LTV of 31% continues to decline
and provides the group with sufficent
firepower to continue its development
activity. The five-year total shareholder
return has been 176 19%.



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

continued

‘I McKay Securities ‘I 'l Cecina 'I CLS Holdings

(UK) (France) (UK)

31 March | 31 March 31 March { 31 March 31 March | 31 March

2018 2017 2018 2007 2018 2017

Shareholding value EAD3m [ E158m Sharehalding valug £390m | E£172m Sharehalding value £354m | £22 7m
% of snvestment % of nvestment % of investment

portfolio’ 33% 4% o coliof 3.2% 5% il 29% 2.0%

% of equity owned 15 6% 8.5% % of equity owned 0.4% 03% % of equity owned 3.7% 3.1%

Share price 275 0p 210.0p Share price €141.1 €1272 Share price 2355p | 1770p*

McKay Secunties owns and manages a
£404m South East focused portfolio
split 61% Thames Valley Cffices, 14%
London Offices, 20% Thames Valley
Industrial and 5% in Other sectors. The
group tecently de-nsked its large
development pipeline wath pre-lettings
at its major schemes. Management also
announced a refinancang of the group's
remaining legacy, very expensive
interest rate swaps These actons will
deliver significant earnings growth in the
coming years 1n a portfolio that we
beleve is undervalued. The pro-forma
LTV will be ¢ 32%. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 138.5%

Following the acgusition of Eurosic
realized in 2017, Gecma has reinforced
its number 1 position in offices within
Eurcpe. Its total portfolio 1s valued at
rmore: than EUR19bn and split between
French Offices (73%), Residental
(17%) and Retall (7%). Despite the low
yielding nature of the residential assets
(c 3.5% net yeld) 1t prowides a very
resilient cash flow In addimon, this
portfolio saw a significant value uplift of
+27% 1n 2017 as a result of substantal
yield compression (80bps). In an
environment where portfolio yields for
offices are hiting rock bottom for most
of the companies, Gecina can rely on its
large  development  pipeline  of
EURS.2bn (27% of current GAV) to
create further value in the coming years.
The company 1s following a total retum
strategy which 1s ilustrated by a disposal
programme of EUR! 2bn. At the end of
the Q1-18, the company had secured
70% of the planned sales with
EUR436m realised at 10% above
appraisal  values  The five-year
shareholder total return has been
101.5%.

'Percentage of Investrent Portfolo, pesibons include exposure through CFOs

CLS Holdings 1s a pan-European office
owner with a £1.8bn portfolio split 51%
UK (mainly London), 16% France and
3206  Cermany. Management has
actively been growing s Cerman
exposure, with this area doubling as a
proportion of total assets over the last
two years Typically the group targets
higher yielding assets with a preference
for leases which include fixed annual
rental growth and aims to finances
these with a very low cost of debt. It
recently improved its attracton to
institutional sharehelders by moving to
a normal annual dividend (previously it
undertook tender offers for shares). It
also simplfied the investments by
disposing of its large Vauxhall Square
development for a significant prafit in
2017. While the balance sheet gearing 15
higher than peers (LTV 39%) it has
reduced substantially in the last year
through  disposals and  property
revaluations. We beleve the group's
assets remain consenvatively valued and
the LTV will continue to reduce The
five-year total shareholder return has
been 186 3%.

* Historic price adjusted for 10 for § stock splt
n May 2017

TR Property Investment Trust 21

L0438 D1D31VHLS



STRATEGIC REPORT

Investment Properties

as at 31 March 2018

/Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%) w (Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio
as at 31 March 2018 Residential as at 31 March 2018 Crass rental income
and Oto 5 years 400
Ground
Office Retal  Industaal Rents Clher Total 510 10 years 26%
1 00
West End of London ~ 389 ~ 131 05 525 Oto 15 years @
15 to 20 years 33%
inner London 52 12 158 - - 222 20+ years 1%
Around M25 9.0 - - - - 9.0 T00%
¥ 0
Other South East - - - - - - =
South West - - 163 - - 16.3 Contracted Rent
Total 142 401 321 131 05 1000 Year | £4,100,000
ota : - ' ' - - Years 2-5 £12,000,000
*nner London defined as inside the North and South arcular J
L \Years 5+ £18,850,000

Value in excess of £10 million

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road, London W2

Sector Mixed Use
Tenure LFre;il;IJ S S S
Size {sq ft} ’ :64,;)00
Frincibal fenants ,Wai‘trose td 1Rebel
,Graham & Green Babaji Pide Ltd

The property comprises a large mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed in the mid-1970s, The site extends to
approxmately 2 acres on the north east comer of the junction of Bishops Bridge Road and Porchester Road, dlose

to Bayswater tube station and the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The commercial element was extended and refurbished
in 2015 with a new 20 year |ease being agreed with Waitrose.

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate, Wandsworth, London SW18

Sector Industrial

Tenwre  Freehatd
size(sqfy  Beoes )

Principal tenants  ‘AbsofuteTaste ~ Mossimans

i\l(ougar Too! Hire Ltd Page Lacquer

Site of just over an acre, 50 metres from Wandsworth Town raitway station in an area that is predominantly residential.
The estate comprises 16 small industnial units generally let to a mix of small to medim-sized private companies
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Investment Properties

as at 31 March 2018 — continued

Value less than £10 million

Yode! Unit, Woodlands Park, Almondsbury, Bristol BS32 _

Tenure
Sizei;q t) u
Principal tenants.

" ls3.000

’ T‘ro:iweﬂlnDelﬁivery

llndustr{af )

| etwork Ltd

Located on the junction of the M4 and M5, this industnal building is let to Yodel, the parce! delivery company, on a lease

expiring in 2019 at a low rent of £5 per sq ft. The building
yard offernng a variety of alternatives uses for the site.

sits on a 5 75-acre site giving a low site density and a large

IO Centre, Gloucester Business Park, Gloucester GL3

Sector
Tenure )
Size {sq ft)

Princibalit;enarilts

‘Industrial

7 7Freei'mld

" ‘63,000

SCI-MX tnvestments
Infusion GB

The 1Q Centre comprises six industrial units occupied by five tenants and sits on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business Park
15 located to the east of Junction 11A of the M5 and one mile to the east of Gloucester City Centre. The property also has
easy access to the A417 providing good hinks to the M4 via junction 15.

Field House, Station Approach, Harlow CM20

Sector - loffices I T
Tenure ) ilér;eﬂuld

Size (sq ft) " 66,000

l;rin_ci_palTenaﬁE TevaUKLtd T B

Located next to Harlow Town rallway station, the building was constructed in the late 1980s and cdmpnses a 66,000-sq
ft office building on a site of 3 5 acres. 80% of the bulding by ERV 1s let to Teva UK Ltd on leases expirng in 2023,
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company's Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total retum by investing in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses intemationally and also in investment property located n the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The index,
calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and currently has 103 constituent companies. The index Imits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The benchmark website www.epra com contains further
details about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business model follows that of an externally managed investment trust.

The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-executive Board of five Directors retains responsibility for corporate
strategy; corporate governance, nsk and control assessment; the overall investment and dvidend policies; seting limis
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed F&C Investment Business Limited as the Alternative Investment Fund Manager with portfolio
management delegated to Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company on
behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur s Deputy Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property
Manager and Joanne Elfiott the Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the Investment Management Agreement can be
found in the Repert of the Directors on pages 36 and 46 to 47

In accordance with the AIFMD, BNP Paribas has been appointed as Deposttory to the Company. BNP Paribas also provide
custodial and administratron services to the Company. Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company
Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on pages 46 to 47,
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Strategy and Investment Policies

The investmant selection process seeks to identfy well managed companies of alt sizes The Manager generally regards
future growth and capital appreciation potential more highly than immediate yield or discount to asset value,

Although the investment objective allows for investment on an international basis, the benchmark is a Pan-European
Index and the majority of tha investrmeants will be located in that geographical area. Direct property investments are
located in the UK only.

As a dedicated investor In the property sector the Company cannot offer diversification outside that sector, however,
within the partfolio there are limitations, as set out below, on the size of individual investments held to ensure
diversification within the portfolio.

Asset allocation guidelines

The maxmum holding in the stock of any one 1ssuer or of a single asset 15 lmited to 15% of the portfolio at the point of
acquisition In addition, any heldings in excess of 5% of the portfolio must not in aggregate exceed 40% of the portfolio,

The Manager currently applies the following guidelines for asset allocation,

UK {isted equities 25 - 50%
Continental European listed equities 45 — 75%
Direct Property — UK 0 - 20%
Other hsted equities 0-5%
Listed bonds 0 - 5%
Unquoted investments 0 - 5%
Cearing

The Company may employ levels of gearing from time to time with the aim of enhancing returns, subject to an overall
maximum of 25% of the portfolio value.

In certain market conditions the Manager may consider it prudent net to employ gearing on the balance sheet at all, and
to hold part of the partfolio in cash.

The current asset allocation guideline is 10% net cash to 25% net geanng (as a percentage of portfolio value).

Property Valuation

Investment properties are valued avery six months by an external independent valuer. Valuations of ali the Group's
properties as at 31 March 2018 have been carred out on a “Red Book” basts and these valuations have been adopted in
the accounts.

Allocation of costs between Revenue & Capital

On the basis of the Board's expected long-term split of retums in the form of capital gains and income, the Group
charges 75% of annual base management fees and finance costs to capital. All performance fees are charged to capital.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Key Performance indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust's objective against the following Key

Performance Indicators ("KPIs")-

KPI

Net Asset Value Total Return
relative to the benchmark.

The Directors regard the Company’s net asset
value total return performance in comparison
with the benchmark as being an overall
measure of value delivered to the
shareholders’ over the longer-term.

Board monitoring and outcome

@ The Board reviews the performance in defail at each meeting and
discusses the results and outlook with the Manager.

Qutcome
1 Year 5 Years
NAV Total Return® (Annualised) 15.5% 16,19
Benchmark Total Return
{Annualised) 10.2% 11.9%

* NAV Total Return s calculated by re-investing the dnidends 1n the assets and the Company
from the relevant ex-dwidend date Dividends are deemed Lo be re-invested on the
ex-dmdends date

Delivering a reliable dividend which
is growing over the longer term

The principal objective of the Company is
a total retum objective, however, the fund
manager aims to deliver a reliable dwidend
with growth over the longer-term.

o The Board reviews statements on income received to date and
income forecasts at each meeting.

Outcome
1 Year 5 Years
Compound Annual Dividend
Growth* 16.2% 11.8%
Compound Annual RPI 3.3% 2.3%

* The final dwdend n the tme senes dwided by the inival dnadend in the pened raised to
the power of 1 dwvided by the number of years i the senes

The Discount or Premium at
which the Company’s shares trade
compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectations of investment
performance 1s a key dnver of the share price
discount or premium to the net asset value of
an investment trust over the longer-term,
there are periods when the discount can
widen. The Board is aware of the vulnerability
of a sector-specialist trust to a change of
investor sentiment towards that sector, and
the impact that can have on the discount.

e The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and issue
shares. When considenng the merits of share buy-back or
issuance, the Board looks at a number of factors in addition to the
short and longer-term discount or premium to NAY to assess
whether action would be beneficial to the shareholders overall,
Particular attention is paid to the current market sentiment, the
potential impact of any share buy-back actvity on the liquidity of
the shares and on Ongoing Charges over the longer-term.

Quicome

Average discount® 5.6% 5.2%
Total number of shares

repurchased Nil 525,000

* Average dally discount throughout the penod of share prce to caprial only NAY
Source: Bloomberg
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Key Performance Indicators

continued

KPI

Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 1s conscious of expenses and arms
to deliver a balance between excellent service
and costs.

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges
includes any direct property costs in addition
to the management fees and all ather
expenses ncurred in running a publicly listed
company As no other investment trusts hold
part of their portfolio in direct property (they
either hald 100% of their portfolio as
property securties or as direct property), In
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by
the AIC, this statistic 13 shown without direct
property costs to allow a clearer comparison
of overall administration costs with other
funds investing in secuntes.

The Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, in
comparison 10 a range of other Invastment
Trusts of a similar size, both property sector
specialists and other sector specialists.

| Board monitoring and outcome

® Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the Board
reviews regular reperts on actual and forecast expenses
throughout the year.

Qutcome

5 Years*

1 Year

Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees 0.65% 0.72%
Ongoing charges
excluding Performance Fees and 061% 0.67%

Direct Property Costs

® The ongeing charges are competitive when compared to the peer
group.

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue to operate In
order ta meet the requirements for Section
1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

# The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at each
meeting which set out the requirements outlined in Section 1158,

#& The Directors believe that the conditions and ongoing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to 31 March
2018 and that the Company will continue to meet the
requirements.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the risks that have been taken in
order to achieve that return. The Board has included below details of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and the appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

The risks are all in line with the prior period and none are considered more or less significant than in the prior year.

Risk Identified

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the Lendon
Stock Exchange and the share price is determined by
supply and demand The shares may trade at a discount
or premium to the Company's underlying NAV and this
discount or premium may fluctuate over time.

‘ Board monitoring and mitigation

® The Board monitors the level of discount or premium
at which the shares are trading over the short and
longer-term

® The Board encourages engagement with the
shareholders. The Board receives reports at each
meeting on the activity of the Company’s brokers,
PR agent and meetings and events attended by the
Fund Manager

o The Company's shares are available through the F&C
share schemes and the Company participates in the
active marketing of these schemes The shares are
also widely available on open architecture platforms
and can be held directly through the Company's
registrar,

¢ The Board takes the powers to buy-back and to issue
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the
portfolio relative to the benchmark.

The Company's portfolio is actively managed. In addition
to investment securities the Company also invests in
commercial property and accordingly, the portfolio may
not follow or outperform the return of the benchmark.

e The Manager's objective is to outperform the
benchmark The Board regularly reviews the
Company's long-term strategy and investment
guidelines and the manager's relative positions
against these,

® The Management Engagement Committee reviews
the Manager's performance annually. The Board has
the powers to change the Manager f deemed
appropriate.

Market risk

Both share pnces and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company's portfofio.

Although the portfalio is diversified across a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate 1s focused
on a single sector and therefore the portfolio will be
sensitive towards the property sector, as well as global
equity markets more generally.

Property companies are subject to many factors which
can adversely affect therr investment performance, these

® The Board receives and considers a regular report
from the Manager detailing asset allocation,
mvestment decisions, cuirency exposures, geanng
levels and rationale in relation to the prevalfing market
cenditions.

® The report considers the potential impact of Brexit and
the Manager's response in positioning the portfolio.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continued

Board monitoring and mitigation

Risk tdentified

include the general economic and financial emvironment
in which their tenants operate, interest rates, availability of
investment and development finance and regulations
issued by governments and authorities.

As highlighted since the result of the UK referendum in
June 2016, parts of the UK property market may be
adversely affected by Brexit. The negotatians are shil in
progress and the imphcations are unclear together with the
impact on occupabion acrass each sector.

The Company is unable to maintain ® The Board receves and considers regular mcome
dividend growth forecasts

Lower eamings in the underlying portfolio putting pressure | ®  Income forecast sensitiity to changes in FX rates Is
on the Campany’s ability to grow the dividend could result also monitored.

from a number of factors;
' ® The Company has revenue reserves which can be

® [ower earnings and distributions in investee companies drawn upon when required
® prolonged vacandies in the direct property portfolio

® strengthening sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in sterling terms

® adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or
other Income received by the company

® changes in the timing of dividend receipts from
investee companies .

The Company has seen a matenal increase in the lavel of
earnings in the last two years. A significant factor in this has
been the weakening of sterling foliowing the Brexit
deasion This may reverse in the near or medum term as
the negotiations progress, leading to a fall in eamings.

® Third party service providers produce periadic reports

to the Board on their control environments and
Disruption or failure of systems and processes business continuation provisions on a regular basis
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the risk that these supphers provide a sub-standard
service,

Accounting and operaticnal risks

® The Management Engagernent Committee considers
the performance of each of the service providers on
a regular basis and considers ther ongoing appointment
and terms and conditions.

® The Custodian and Depository are responsible for the
safeguarding of assets. In the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must return assets of an identical type
or corresponding armount unless able to demonstrate
that the loss was the result of an event beyond their
reasonable control.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continued

Risk 1dentified

Board monitoring and mitigation

Financial risks

The Company’s investment activities expose it to a vanety
of financial risks which include counterparty credit nsk,
fiquidity risk and the valuation of financial instruments.

e Details of these risks together with the policies for
managing these risks are found in the Notes to the
Financial Staterments on pages 63 to 88.

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, subject to continuing to
meet the relevant eligibility conditions. As such the
Company i1s exempt from caprtal gains tax on the profits
realised fram the sale of investments

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could lead
to the Company losing investrment trust status and being

subject to corporation tax on capital gains realised within

the Company's portfalio.

® The Investment Manager monitors the investment

portfolio, ncome and proposed dividend levels to
ensure that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not
breached. The results are reported to the Board
at each meeting.

e The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company's
tax advisor through the year who alse reports to the
Board on the year-end tax position and an CTA 2010
compliance,

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange Listing
Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency rules;
failure to meet the requirements under the Alternative
investment Funds Directive, the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and other UK, European and
overseas legislatan affecting UK companies. Failure to
meet the required accounting standards or make

appropriate disclosures in the Interim and Annual Reports.

e The Board recewes regular regulatory updates from
the Maneger, Company Secretary, legal advisors and
Auditors. The Board considers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly.

® The Board receives an annual report and update from
the Deposttory.

o |nternal checkiists and review procedures are in place
at service providers.

e FExternal auditors review Interim & Annual Reports and
audtt year end Financial Statements.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or through
the use of derivatives may be utilised from time to time.
Whilst the use of gearing is intended to enhance the NAY
total return, it will have the opposite effect when the
return of the Company's investment portfolio is negative.

# The Board receives regular reports from the Manager
on the levels of gearing in the portfolio. These are
considered against the gearing limits set in the
Investment Guidelines and also in the context of
current market conditions and sentiment.

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager or other key staff

e The Chairman conducts regular meetings with the
Fund Management team.

® The fee basis protects the core infrastructure and
depth and quality of resources. The fee structure
incentivises good performance and is fundamental in
the ability 10 retain key staff.
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Viability Statement

(n accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK Comporate Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess the prospects
of the Company over the longer term, the Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company over the coming five years,
This penod is used by the Board during the strategic planning process and the Board consider this period of time appropriate for
a business of our nature and size.

This assessmment takes account of the Company's current pesition and the policies and processes for managing the principal risks
set out on pages 28 to 30 and the Company's ability to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
period of assessment. In making this statement the Board carmed out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Company, Including those that might threaten its business mode, future performance, solvency and hquidity.

In reaching therr condlusions the Directors have reviewed five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity analysis to a number
of assumptions; investee company dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, t@ax rate and asset value growth,

In the assessment of the viability of the Company the Directors have noted that:

® The Company has a long-term investment strategy under which 1t invests mainly in readily reahsable, pubhdly listed secunties
and which restncts the level of borowings.

& Of the current portfolio, 69% could be liguidated within ten trading days

® Current liabilites exceed current assets at the Balance Sheet Date by a small amount. This net kability can be readily met
through !nvestrnent Portfolio sales or drawing down on the loan faclites in place. At the Balance Sheet Date the Company
had £24 million undrawn an its revolving loan facilities

® The Company invests In real estate related companies which hold real estate assets, and invests i commercial real estate
directly These investments provide cash receipts in the form of dividends and rental income

® The Comnpany is able to take advantage of its closed-ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold a proportion of its
portfolio in less hquid direct property with a view to long-term outperformance.

® The structure has also enabled the Company to secure finance in excess of 10 years.

¢ The expenses of the Company are predictable and modest in compansan with the assets. Regular and rebust monitoring of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken throughout the year.

® The Company has no employees and consequently does not have redundancy or other employment related liabilities or
responsibilties

® The Company retains title to its assets held by the Custodian which are subject to further safeguards imposed on the
Depositary.

The following assumptions have been made in assessing the longer-term viability:

® Real Cstate will continue to be an investable sector of international stock markets and investors will continue to wish to have
expasure to that sector,

@ Closed-ended Investment Trusts will continue to be wanted by investors and regulation or tax legislation will not change to
an extent to make the structure unatiractive in comparison to other investment products

e The performance of the Company wil! continue to be satisfactory. Should the performance be less than the Board deems to
be satisfactory, it has the appropriate powers to replace the Investment Manager.

The Board has concluded that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the coming five years. The Company’s business model, capital structure and strategy have enabled
the Company to operate over many decades, and the Board expects this to continue into the future.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Responsibility

Exercise of voting power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voting policy which, in its opinion, accords with current best practice
whilst maintaining a primary focus on financal returns.

The exercise of voting rights attached to the Company’s portfolio has been delegated to the Manager who takes a global
approach to engagement with 1ssuers and their management in all of the jurisdictions in which it invests. The Manager is
required to include disclosure about the nature of thewr commitment to the Finandal Reporting Cornmittee’s Stewardship
Code and details may be found at www.fandc.com

Environmental policy & Socially Responsible Investment

The Company considers that good corporate governance extends to policies on the enviconment, emplayment, kuman
rights and cornmunity relationships. Corporates are playing an increasingly important role in global economic activity and
the adoption of good corporate govermance enhances a company's ecanomic prospects by reducing the risk of
governiment and regulatory intervention and any ensuing damage to its business or reputation.

The Company has adopted an environmental policy in respect of its investments in bath physical property and listed
property companies. Within the context of the overall aim of the Company to maximise shareholders’ retums the
Directors will seek to hmit the Company's and its investee companies’ impact on the environment and will comply with
all relevant legislation relating to its operations and activities.

The erwvironmental policies and behaviour of all the companies in which the Company invests are taken into account in
decision making.

Good environmental management can play a role in overall nisk management and also have a financial impact in terms
of savings through energy and water efficiency. Where appropriate the Manager will engage with investee cempanies to
raise concerns about environmental matters.

So far as direct propetty investments are concerned, the Company conducts environmental audits prior to purchase to
identify contamination or materials considered environmentally harmful. The Company will take remedial action or
enforce tenant obligations to do so wherever appropnate. The Company's advisers assess the environmental impact of its
properties on an ongoing basis and will take all necessary action to comply with environmental responsibilities.

The Company has no greenhouse gas emissions to report from the operatons of the Company, nar does it have
responsibility far any other emissions producing sources under the Compariies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors'
Reports) Regulations 2013, including thase within its underlying investment portfolio

Diversity, Gender Reporting and Human Rights Policy

The Board recognises the requirement under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 to detail nformation about employee
and human rights; including information about any policies it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness of these
policies As the Trust has no employees, this requirerment does not apply. The Directors are also satisfied that, to the best of
their knowledge, the Cornpany’s pringpal suppliers, comply with the provisions of the UK Modermn Slavery Act 2015.

The Board currently comprises four male Directors and one female Director. The Board's diversity policy is outlined in
more detatl in the Corporate Governanice Report. The Martager has an equal opportunity policy which is set out on its
website www fandc.com.

By order of the Boar
Hugh Seaborn
Chairman

6 lune 2018
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Directors

Hugh Seaborn

David Watson

Hugh Seaborn, joined the Beard of the
Company on 24 July 2007 and became
Chairman in July 2016 He is a Chartered
Surveyor and has censiderable
expenence in the property arena, he 15
the Chief Executive Officer of the
Cadegen Estate He was a mermber of
the Counal and Audit Committee of the
Duchy of Lancaster untd December
2013, From 2000 to 2009, he was Chief
Executrve Officer of the Portman Estate,
he is Charman of the Knightsbndge
Business Group, is past Chairman of the
Estates Business Group and past
Charman of the Westrminster Property
Owners Assocation

David Watson, joined the Board of the
Company on 1 Aprl 2012 He became
Chairman of the Comnpany's Audit
Committee on 1 January 2013 and also
became the SID n fuly 2016. He 15

a Chartered Accountant and has had

a distinguished career 1n the Financsal
Services industry He spent 3 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group ple,
where he was a director of four equity
investment trusts, and more recently at
Aviva plc as Chief Finance Officer of Aviva
General Insurance He 15 currently
Deputy Chairman of Countrpmde ple and
& non-executive director of Kames
Capttal plc and Hermes Fund Managers
Limited, where he 1s Chairman of the
Audit Committee He s also Chairman of
The Tennis & Rackets Association Limited

Sitmon Marrison

Suzie Procter

Tim Gillbanks

All directors are iIndependent of the manager and are members of the Audit Comemttee

Simon Marrison, joined the Board of
the Cornpany on 28 September 2011
Mr Mamson is CEO of Europe at LaSalle
Investment Management and has
responsibility for a pertfolio of aver

€ 20bithon across Europe Mr Marnson
has been based in Pans since 1990
hawing started his career in Lendon Until
1997 he was a partner at Healey & Baker
{now Cushman & Wakeheld) and from
1957 to 2001 he was at Rodamco
where he became Country Manager for
France. He joined LaSalle in 2001 as
Managing Director for Centinental
Europe and became CEO of the entire
European business in 2007

Suzie Procter, joined the Board of the
Cormpany on 1 March 2013 She has

36 years' expenence in financial markets
with specific expertise in asset
management nduding 11 years as

a glebal fixed income portfolvo manager
and 16 years in business
development/marketing across all asset
classes Her executve roles include Head
of Institutional Sales and Consultant
Relations at INVESCO, Managing Director
at Lazard Asset Management and Partner
and member of the Fxecutve
Committee at Cantillon Capital
Management

Tim Gillbanks, joined the Beard of the
Cornpany on 23 January 2018 Timis

a Chartered Accountant, with 30 years'
expenence n the finanaal services and
investments industry Most recently he
spent 13 years at Columbia
Threadneedle nvestments, inially as
Chiet Finanaal Officer, then Chief
Qperating Officer and finally as intenm
Chief Executve Officer. Tim brings a wide
expenence of investment management
to the Board

TR Propeny Investrant Trust 23

IONYNHIACD



GOVERNANCE

Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Jo Elliott

George Gay

|
|
|
|

Alban Lhonneur

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the Management team for the Company at Henderson
Global Investars in January 1997, imitially ranaging the Company’s direct property portfolo and latterly
focusing on real estate equitres, managing @ nurmber of UK and Pan Eurapean real estate equity funds
in addition to activities i the Trust Marcus moved to Thames River Capital In Catober 2004 where he 15
also fund manager of Thames River Property Growth & Incorne Fund Lumited. Prior to joiming Henderson,
Marcus was an mvestment surveyor at Knight Frank {1990) and was made an Assoaate Partner m the
fund management division (1995) He qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hons)
i Land Management from Reading University

Jo Elliott, Finance Managee, has been Finance Manager since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors
then, since lanuary 2009, at Thames River Capital, when she joined as CFQ for the property team. She
joned Henderson Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held the position of Director of
Property, Finance & Qperations, Europe Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager with London

and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was an wvestment/treasury analyst with Hergn Corporation pic
Jo has a BSc (Hons) 1 Zoology from the University of Notingham and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Ernst & Young 1 1988 1o 15 a Non-Executwe Director and Audit Committee Chair of Polar
Capital Global Financials Trust plc

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008

He [oned Thames Rivar Capital in 2005 as assstant direct property marnager and qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 2006 George was previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper where
as an investment graduate he ganed considerable industry expenence He has an MA m Property
Valuation and Law from City University

Alban thonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames River Capttal in August 2008. He was previously
at Ogroup Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on Continental European Real Estate.,
Prior to that he was at Societe Generale Securties, where he focused on transport equiy research. He has
a BScin Business and Management from the £5C Toulouse including one year at the Brunel University,
London He also attended CERAM Nice High Business Schocl. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCF-EAP



Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report and
Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust pic and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. As permitted by legislation, some matters normally included in the Report of the Drrectors
have been included in the Strategic Report because the Board considers them to be of strategic importance. Therefore
review of the business of the Company, recent events and outlook can be found on pages 4 to 32.

Status

The Company is an investment company, as defined in Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006, and operates as an
investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010.

The Campany has a single share class, Ordinary shares, with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium listed on
the London Stack Exchange

The Campany has recawed confirmation from HM Revenue & Customs that the Company has been accepted as an
approved nvestment trust for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the Company
continuing to meet the eligbility conditions af Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing requirements for
approved companies in Chapter 3 of Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company} (Tax) Regulations 2011 (Statutory
Instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as to
maintain investrment trust status. The Company has also conducted its affairs, and will continue to condudt its affairs, in
such a way as to comply with the Indwidual Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can be held in individual
Savings Accounts {ISAs),

Results and Dividends

At 31 March 2018 the net assets of the Company amcunted to £1,256m (2017: £1,118m), on a per share basis
395.64p (2017: 352.42p) per share.

Revenue earnings for the year amounted to 13.22p (2017: 11.38p) and the Directors recommend the payment of

a final dividend of 7.55p (2017: 6.40p) per share bringing the total dividend for the year to 12.20p (2017: 10.50p), an
increase of 16.2% for the full year. In arriving at their dividend proposa, the Board also reviewed the income forecasts for
the year to March 2019,

Performance details are set out i the Finanaial Highlights on page 1 and the outcome of what the Drrectors consider to
be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 26 to 27. The Chairman’s Statermnent and the Managers Report give full
detalls and analysis of the results for the year.

Share Capital and Buy-back Activity
At 1 Aprii 2018 the Company had 317,350,980 (2017: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue.
At the AGM in 2017 the Directors were given power to buy back 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since this AGM the

Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at the neminal value of 25p each under this authority The
outstanding authority is therefore 47,570,311 shares

This authonty will expire at the 2018 AGM. The Company will seek to renew the power to make market purchases of
Crdinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 April 2018 to the date of this report, the Company has made no market purchases for cancellation The Board
has not set specific discount at which shares will be repurchased.
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Report of the Directors

continued

Management Arrangements and Fees

Details of the management arrangements and fees are set out 111 the Report o the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 46. Total fees paid to the Manager in any one year (Management and Performance Fees)
may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2018 amount
10 1,200 (2017: 0.6%) of Group Equity Shareholders Funds. included in this were performance fees earned in the year
ended 21 March 2018 of £10,188,000 (2017: £1,148.000).

Basis of Accounting and IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared on a going
concern basis 1n accordance with International Finandal Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the \nternational Accounting Standards Board (JASB), together with interpretations of the
International Accounting Standards and Standing interpretations Committee approved by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Committee (1ASC) that remain in effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the European Urion and
as regards the Group and Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006.

The accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements on pages 63 to 67.

Going Concern

The Directors’ assessment of the longer-term viability of the Companiy is set out on page 31

As the Board 1s of the opinion that the Company can continue in operation for the foreseeable future, being for a period
of at [east 12 months from the date that these financial statements were approved, it has been concluded that the going
concern basis should be adopted for the preparation of the Financral Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systemns of internal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness.
The Portfolio Manager 1s responsible for the day to day investment management decisions on behalf of the Group.
Accounting and company secretanal services have bath been outsourced,

The internal controls aim to ensure that the assets of the Group are safeguarded, proper accounting records are
maintained, and the financial information used within the business and for publication is rehable, Control of the nsks
identified, covering financial, operational, comphance and risk management, is embedded in the controls of the Group by
a series of regular investment performance and attribution statements, financial and nsk analyses, AlFM and Portfolio
Manager reports and quarterly control reports. Key nsks have been idenufied and controls put in place to mitigate them,
including those not directly the responsibility of the AlF#M or Portfolio Manager. The key nisks are explamed in maore detar
in the Strategic Report on pages 28 to 30.

The effectiveness of each third party provider's ntema! controls 15 assessed on a continuing basis by the Compliance and
Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company Secretary. Each maintains its
own system of internal controls, and the Board and Audit Committee receive regular reports from them. The control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstaternent or loss and to
manage, rather than elminate, risk of failure to achieve objectives.
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Report of the Directors

continued

As the Company has no employees and its operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit Committee
does not consider it necessary for the Company to establish its own internal audit function, Instead, the Audit Committee
relies on interal control reports receved from its principal service providers to satisfy itself as to the controls in place.

The Board has established a process for identifying, evaluating and managing any major nsks faced by the Group.

The Board undertakes an annual review of the Group's system of internal cantrols in line with the Tumbull guidance.
Business risks have also been analysed by the Board and recorded in a risk map that is reviewed regularly. Each quarter
the Board receives a formal report from each of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company
Secretary detailing the steps taken to monitor the areas of nsk, including those that are not directly their responsibility, and
which report the detalls of any known internal control failures.

The Board also considers the flow of information and the interaction between the third party service providers and the
controls In place to ensure accuracy and completenass of the recording of assets and income. The Board receives
a report from the Portfolio Manager setting out the key controls and the results of the audtt testing of these.

The Board also has direct access to company secretanal advice and semvices provided by Link Company Matters
(previously called Capita Company Secretarial Services) which, through its nominated representative, is responsible for
ensunng that the Board and Committee procedures are followed and that applicable regulations are comphed with.

These controls have been in place throughout the period under review and up to the date of signing the accounts.
Key risks identified by the Audrtors are considered by the Audit Committee to ensure robust internal controls and

momtonng pracedures are in place in respect of these risks on an ongoing bass.

Annual General Meeting (the “AGM")

The AGM will be held on 24 July 2018 at 2pm The Notice of AGM s set out on pages 89 to 90. The full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each is contained in the Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 93 to 94.

Material Interests

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end of the year in which a director of the Company 15 or was
materially interested and which is or was significant in relation to the Company’s business No Director has a contract
of service with the Company. Further details regarding the appointment letters can be found on page 44.

Donaticns

The Company made no political or charitable danations during the year {2017: £nil).

TR Property Investment Trust z7

FONVNYIAOD



GOVERNANCE

Report of the Directors

continued

Voting Interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders’ rights, shares may be issued with such nghts and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution decide, or (if there is no such resalution or so far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide. Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders' rights,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board.

Voting
At a general meeting of the Company, when voting 1s by a show of hands, each share affords its owner one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitled to vote if he has been served with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure 10 provide the Company with information concerning interests in those shares required 1o be provided under the
Companies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights
Votes are exercisable at the general meeting of the Company in respect of which the business being voted upon 1s being
heard. Votes may be exeraised in person, by proxy, or in relation to carporate members, by corporate representatives

The Articles provide a deadline for submuission of proxy forms of not less than 48 hours (or such shorter time as the
Board may determine) before the meeting (not excluding non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject to the Articles, any mermber may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrurnent of transfer in any usual form or in any other form which the Board may approve

Significant Voting Rights
At 31 March 2018, no shareholders held over 3% of voting rights on a discretionary basis. However, at 31 March 2018
the following shareholders held over 3% of the voting nghts on a non-discretionary basis:

% of

Ordinary share

Shareholder voting rights*
Brewin Dolphin Ltd 8.6%
Alliance Trust plc 7.0%
Rathbone Investrment Management Ltd 6.0%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 5.40%
Investec Wealth & Investment Lid 5.2%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 4.1%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.0

* See above for further informatien on the veting nghts of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2018 to the date of this report, the Company has not been informed of any notifiable changes with
respect to the Ordinary shares,
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Report of the Directors

continued

Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors i1s accountable o shareholders for the governance of the Company's affairs.

This staternent desenbes how the prinaiples of the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) issued by the Financial
Reporting Coundil {the "FRC") in 2016 have been applied to the affairs of the Company. The Code can be viewed at
www.fre.org.uk.

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In applying the principles of the Code, the Directors have also taken account of the Code of Corporate Governance
published by the AIC {'the AIC Code"), which established the framework of best practice specifically for the Boards of
mvestrnent trust companies. There is some overlap in the principles laid down by the two Codes and there are some
areas wheare the AIC Code 15 more flexible for investment trust companies. The AIC Code can be viewed at
wwwtheaic.co.uk.

The Directors believe that during the penod under review they have complied with the Main Principles and relevant
provisions of the Code, insofar as they apply to the Company's business, and with the prowisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement
The Directors note that the Company did nat comply with the following provisions of the Code in the year ended
31 March 2018;

A 21 Due to the nature and structure of the Company the Board of non-executive directors does not feel it 15 necessary
to appoint a chief executive.

C 3.5 & C3 6 As the Company has no employees and its operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Committee does not consider it necessary for the Company to establish its own internal audit function.

D 2.1 The Board does not have a separate Remuneration Committee. The functions of a Remuneration Committee are
carned out by the Management Engagement Committee.

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of five directors, all of whom are nen-executive and are Independent of the Manager. None
of the Directors have any other links to the Manager. The Board believes that diversity of experience and approach,
including gender diversity, amongst board members is of great importance and it1s the Company's policy to give careful
consideration to issues of board balance and diversity when making new appointments.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company’s Artictes of Association, the Companies Act 2006 and any directions gven by special resolution,
the business of the Company is managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Cornpany, whether
relating to the management of the business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise ail the powers
of the Cempany to borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled
capital and to issue debentures and other securities and to give secunty for any debt, liability or obligation of the
Company to any third party

There are no contracts or arrangements with third parties which affect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company,
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Report of the Directors

continued

Directars

The Chairman is Mr Seaborn and the Senior Independent Director is Mr Watson. The Directors’ biographies, on page 33,
demanstrate the breadth of fvestment, commercial and professional expenence relevant to ther positions as Directors of
the Company.

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election is subject to the Articles of Association. In accordance with the Code, all
directors will be subject to annual re-election

Mr Marrison, Mr Seaborn, Ms Procter and Mr Watson will retire at the forthcoming ACM in accordance with the Cade and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Mr Giflbanks was appointed to the Board with effect from 23 January
2018. 1n accordance with the Articles of Association, a resolution to elect Mr Gillbanks will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. All Directors are regarded as being free of any conflicts of interest and no issues in respect of independence arise.
The Board has concluded that all Directors continue to make valuable contributions and beileve that they remain
independent in character and judgement,

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee, 2 Nomination Commuttee and a Management Engagement Commuttee,
which also carries cut the functions of a Remuneration Committee. All the Directors of the Company are non-executive
and serve on each Committee of the Board It has been the Company's palicy to include &l Directors on all Committiees.
This encourages unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of discussion between the Board and the
Committees. The roles and responsibilities of each Committee are set out on the mdwidual Committee reports which
follow. Each Committee has written terms of reference which clearly defines its responsibilities and duties. These can be
found on the Company's website, which are available on request and will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

Board Meetings

The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of
individual Directors, are shown below:

Board Audit MEC Nomination

Aftended Eligible Attended Elgible Artenced Eligible Atended Elgible
Hugh Seaborn 8 6 2 2 1 1 3 3
John Clen* 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0
Simon Marrison & 6 2 2 1 i 3 3
Suzie Procter 6 6 2 2 1 1 3 3
David Watson 6 6 2 2 i 1 3 3
Tim Gillbanks** i 1 0 0 i 1 1 1

*John Clen retired from the Board on 29 July 2017
*Tim Gillbanks was apponted to the Board on 23 January 2018.

In addion to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the interests of the Company.
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continued

The Board

The Board is responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs. Certain strategic issues are monitored by
the Board at meetings against a framework which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may be
arranged as required. The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categorised under various headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal
controls, geanng, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts, investment palicy, finance, risk, iInvestment restrictions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments.

in order to enable them to discharge therr responsibilities, all Directors have full and tmely access to relevant information,
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment performance and considers financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature. The Board monitors compliance with the Company's objectives and is responsible for
setting asset allocation and investment and geanng limits within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfolio, which 1s contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager

The Board has responsibifity for the approval of investments in unquoted investments and any investments in in-house
funds managed or advised by the Portfolio Manager It has alsc adopted a procedure for Directors, in the furtherance of
their duties, to take independent professional advice at the expense of the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

In hre with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the power to authanse any patential conflicts of interest that may
arise and impase such limits or condttions as it thinks fit. A register of potential conflicts is maintained and is reviewed
at every Board meeting to ensure all detalls are kept up-to-date, Appropriate authcnisation will be scught prior to the
appointment of any new Director or if any new conflicts arise

Relations with Shareholders

Sharehalder relations are given high pnority by the Board, the AIFM and the Portfollo Manager. The prime medium by
which the Company communicates with shareholders 15 through the Intenm and Annual Reponts which aim to provide
shareholders with a dear understanding of the Company's actwities and their results. This information 1s supplemented by
the daily calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Company's Ordinary shares which is published on the Londan Stock
Exchange.

This information is also available on the Company’s website, www trproperty.com together with a monthly factsheet
and Manager commentary

At each AGM a presentation is made by the Manager following the business of the meeting. Shareholders have the
opportunity to address guestions to the Chairmman and the Charman of the Audit Committee at the AGM. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM.

It is the intention of the Board that the Annual Report and Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued to shareholders so
as to provide at least twenty working days’ notice of the AGM. Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in advance of the
AGM, or to contact the Board at any other time, are invited to do so by writing to the Company Secretary at the registered
address given on page 95.

General presentations are given to both shareholders and analysts following the publication of the annual results
All meetings between the Manager and shareholders are reparted to the Board
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Report of the Directors

continved

Directors’ Indemnity

Dwectors’ and Officers’ hiability msurance cover is in place in respect of the Directors. The Company's Articles of Association
provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislation, an indemmity for Directors in respect of costs which they may incur
relating to the defence of any proceedings brought agamnst them arising out of their postions as Diractors, in which they
are acquitted or judgement is given in their favour by the court.

To the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s Arides of Assaciation, the Company has entered into deeds of
indemnity for the benefit of each Director of the Company in respect of liabhties which may attach to them in their
capacity as Directors of the Company. These provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by
section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were intreduced in January 2007 and currently remain in force.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who were members of the board at the time of approving the Directors’ report are listed on page 33.
Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the Company's auditors, each of these Directors confirms that:

® to the best of each director's knowledge and belef, there is na information (that is, mformation needed by the
Company's auditors in connection wath prepanng thelr report) of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

® cach Director has taken all the steps a director rmight reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This information is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

)
By order of the Boa
Hugh Seaborn

Charrman
6 June 2018
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee

Chairman: Mr Seaborn

Key Responsibilities
® Review the Board and its Committees and make recommendations in relaton te structure, size and composition, the
balance of knowladge, expenence and skl ranges;

® Consider succession planning and tenure palicy; and
¢ Review the outcome of the board evaluation process

The Nomunation Committee meets at least on an annual basis, and more frequently as and when required and last met
in March 2018,

Activity during the year

A key 1ssue that the Committee considered this year was the appointment of a new Non-Executive Director following the
resignation of John Glen frem the Board at the end of luly 2017. Spencer Stuart, who do not have any connection with
the Company, were engaged to assist in identfying potential candidates and were given a role profile outlining the skills,
attnbutes and experience that the Board was looking for in 8 successful candidate A range of candidates from various
backgrounds and industnes were considered and a short list was compiled Those on the shortlist were then formally
interviewed by the Chairman and the Senior Independent Director. The preferred candidates then met with the other
Directors Following this process, the Committee concluded that Tim Gillbanks was the best candidate for the role, with
his wide expenience of the investment management industry and background as a chartered accountant, which waill be
influential in contnbuting in the Audit Cormmittee and supporting the Cempany’s focus on succession planning by
bringing vatuable skills to the Board. On the recommendation of the Committee, the Board agreed the appomntment.

The Committee annually reviews 1its s1ize and structure of the Board and will continue to review succession planning and
recruitment further. When considering future appointments of Directors, the Nomination Committee, will look at the
balance of skills, knowledge and expenence, including gender dersity of the Board and will also take mto account
recommendations from the external board evaluations. The Committee will also consider the use of external consultants,
as appropriate, when shortlisting candidates

Board Evaluation

in order to review the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees and of its individual Directors, an evaluation was
cartied aut for the Board. This was done in the form of a questionnaire. The process was considered by the Board to be
constructive in terms of identifying areas for improving the functioning and performance of the Board and the
Commitiees, areas for additanal focus going forward, the contribution of indwidual Directors, as well as bulding on and
developing indvidual and collective strengths

The Chairman's effectiveness was assessed by all other Board members and views fed back to the Senior independent
Director. The Chairman and Senior Independent Drrector confism that the performance of each diector continues to be
effective and demonstrates their commitment to the role. This includes extensive time for ad hoc communications
througheut the year in addition to formal Board and Committee meetings. The Board believes it has a good balance of
skills, experience and length of service to ensure it operates effectively The performance of the Company is considered
in detail at each Beard meeting. In accordance with the prowisions of the Code, it 1s the intention of the Board to engage
an external facilitator to assist with the performance evaluation every three years An external Board evaluation was last
cartied gut in January 2017,
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Report of the Nomination Committee

continued

Directors' Training

When a new Director is appointed, he/she is offered training to suit their needs. Directors are also provided with key
information on the Company's activities an a regular basis, including regulatory and statutory requirements and internal
conirols. Changes affecting Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they arise. Directors ensure that they are
updated on regulatory, statutory and industry matters

Letters of Appointment

Ne Director has a contract of employment with the Company. Directors’ terms and conditions for appointment are set out
in letters of appointment which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and will be on display

at the AGM.

Hugh S

Chairm f nfation Comglittee
6 June 2018
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement Committee

Chairman: Mr Seaborn

Key Responsibilities
® Monitor and review the perfarmance of the AIFM and Portfaho Manager,

® Review the tarms of the Investment Manager Agreement,

Annually review the contract of terms and agreements of each external third party service provider; and
® Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration of the Directors

In addition to the Investrnent Management role, the Board has delegated to external third parties the depositary and
custodial services (which include the safeguarding of assets), the day to day accounting, company sectetarial services,
administration and registration services. Each of these contracts was entered into after full and proper consideration of
the quality of the services offered, including the control systems in operation insofar as they relate to the affairs of the
Company.

The MEC determines and approves Directors’ fees following proper consideration, having regard to the level of fees
payable to non-executive Directors in the Industry generally, the role that indwidual directors fulfil n respect of Board and
Committee responsibilities and the time committed to the Company's affairs. For further details please see the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 48 to 49

The MEC meets at least on an annual basts, towards the end of the financial year and last met in March 2018

Activity during the year
At the MEC meeting n March 2018, the Committee reviewed the overall performance of the AIFM and Portfolic Manager

and considered both the appropriateness of the Manager's appontment and the contractual arrangements (including the
structure and level of remuneratior) with the Manager

In addition to the reviews by the MEC, the Board reviewed and cansidered performance reports from the Portfolio
Manager at each Board meeting. The Board alsa received regular reports from the Administrator and Company Secretary.

The Board believe that the Manager's track record and performance remains outstanding. As a result, the MEC confirmed
that the AIFM and Portfolio Manager should be retained for the financial year ending 31 March 2019. A summary of the
significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement and the third party service providers who support the Trust
are set out below.

During the year the MEC also reviewed the performance of all their third party service providers including BNP Paribas,
Link Company Matters, Computershare, both the Company's brokers and PwC {as tax advisors). The Portfolio Manager
provides regular updates on the performance of all third party providers during the year and attended this part of the
MEC Meeting. The MEC confirmed that they were satisfied with the level of services delvered by each third party
provider.
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

continued

Management Arrangemenits and Fees

On 11 July 2014, the Board appointed F&C Investment Business Limited as the Alternative Investment Fund Manager
(in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive) with portfolio managermnent delegated to the
Investment Managet, Thames River Capital LLP.

The significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement with the Manager are as follows.

Notice Pertod

The Investment Management Agreement ("IMA") provides for termination of the agreement by either party without
compensation on the provision of not less than 12 mionths’ written notice

Management Fees

The fee for the period under review was a fixed fee of £3,195,000 plus an adf valoremn fee of 0.20% pa based on the
net asset value {determined in accordance with the AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June, September
and December, payable quarterly in advance

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board for the year to 31 March 2019. For this period the fixed element
of the Management Fee will be £3,565,000.

This is a larger than usual increase and worthy of further comment. 1t anses from a cormbination of the increased costs of
comphance and research for the manager as a result of MIFID |l referred to elsewhere in this Annual Report. On a like for
Iike basis (assuming an identical net asset value for the penod as the prior year resulting in the same ad-valorum fee) this
will represent an increase of 6.7% However, the net cost increase to the Trust is expected to be under 3% after taking
account of commission savings which will be made on transaction costs In the captal account. The Board continues to
consider that the fee structure aligns the interests of the shareholder and the manager as well as being highly
competitive.

The fee arrangements will continue to be reviewed on an annual basis.

Performance Fees

In addition to the management fees, the Board has agreed to pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of
an accounting period if certain performance objectives are achieved.

A performance fee is payable if the totat retumn of adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base Management Fees and
cther expenses), as defined in the IMA, at 31 March each year outperiomms the total retum of the Company’s benchnark
pius 1% (the “hurdle rate"); this outperformance (expressed as a percentage) is known as the “percentage
outperformance”. Any fee payable will be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets at 31 March each year
mu'tiplied by the percentage outperformance, then multiphied by 15%. The maximum perfarmance fee payable for

a period is capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets. However, if the adjusted net assets at the end of any period are
less than at the beginning of the penad, the maximum performance fee payable will be imited to 1% of the adjusted net
assets.

if the total return of shareholders’ funds for any performance penod s less than the benchmark for the refevant
performance period, such underperformance (expressed as a percentage) will be carried forward to future
performance periads.

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance {expressed as a percentage) will be carried forward and applied to
offset any percentage underperformance in future performance periods.
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continued

In the event that the benchmark is exceeded but the hurdle is not, that outperformance of the benchmark can be used
to offset past or future underperformance. These amounts can be used for offset purposes only and therefore cannot
have the effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee in that year.
At 31 March 2018 there is a carry forward of outperformance of 1.8% (2017: 1.8%).

No fee will be payable unless the adjusted net assets outperfonm the hurdie rate, after taking into account any
accumulated percentage underperformance brought forward at the beginning of the financial year.

Performance fees eared in the year ended 31 March 2018 were £10,188,000 {2017: £1,148,000).

Total fees paid to the Manager in any one year (Management and Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Equity Sharehalders’ Funds Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2018 amount to 1.2% (2017 0.6%) of Group
Equity Shareholders Funds.

Depository Arrangements and Fees

BNP Faribas was appointed as Depository on 14 July 2014 i accordance with the Altemative Investment Fund Managers
Drrective. The Depository's responsibilities include. cash monitoring, segregation and safe keeping of the Company's
financial instruments; and monitonng the Company's compliance with nvestment and leverage requirements The
Depository receives for its services a fee of 2.0 basis ponts per annum on the fiest GBP 150m of the Company's assets,
1.4 basis ponts per annum on assets above GBP 150m and below GBP 500m and ©.75 basis points on assets above
GBP 500m.

Review of Third Party Provider's Fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided by BNP Paribas and Company Secretanal Senvices by Link Company
Matters The fees for these services are charged directly to the Company and separately disclosed in the accounts,

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman of the
6 June 2018

/ﬂ Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

introduction

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors Remuneration Policy, n accordance with the requirements of
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013. An
ordinary resolution for the approvat of this report will be put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The law requires the Company’s Auditors, KPMG LLP, to audit certain of the disclosures provided. Where disclosures have
been audited, they are indicated as such. The Auditors’ opinion 1s included in the ‘Independent Auditors’ Report.

Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Committee

The MEC met in March 2018 and considered the feedback received as part of the Board evaluation alongside other
factors Non-executwe fees of listed compamies continue to rise, and the regulatary burden continues ever upwards
Following the MEC meeting 1in March 2018, it was agreed that Non-executive Director’s fees would be increased from
£33,000 to £34,000 with effect from 1 April 2Q78. [t was also agreed that those Directors holding the rofe of Audit
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect their responsibility
It was further agreed that the Chairman's fee would remain at £70,000 per annum,

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Company's policy is that the fees payable to the Directors should reflect the tme spent by the Board an the
Company's affairs and the responsibilines bormne by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of high
calibre to be recruited. The policy is for the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Audit Committea and the Semior
Independent Cirector to be paid higher fees than the other Directors in recognition of their mare onerous roles. This policy
was approved by the members at the 2017 AGM, and the Directors’ intention is that this will continue for the year encing
31 March 2019 and subsequent years. In accordance with the regulations, an ordinary reselution to approve the Directors’
remuneration policy will be put to Sharehalders at least once every three years.

The Directors are remunerated in the form of fees, payable monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or to a third
party specified by that Director. There are no long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related to the Directors” perfarmance, either individually or collectively.

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directors, who are appointed with the expectation that they will serve for

a period of three years. Directors’ appointments are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the Board as

a whole. None of the Directors have a contract of service and a director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time; there are no notice periods The terms of their appointment are detailed in a letter to them when they join

the Board. As the Directors do not have service contracts, the Company does not have a policy on termination payments.

There 1s no notice period and no payments for loss of office were made during the penod The Company's Articles of
Association currently limit the total aggregate fees payable to the Board to £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’ remuneration are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taken into
account in formulabng the Directors remuneration pohcy. At the last AGM, over 98 5% of Shareholders voted for the
resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration Report (1.4% against), and over 98% voted for the resolution
approving the Directors’ Rermnuneration Policy (1.5% against), showing significant shareholder support.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Annual Remuneration Report

For the year ended 31 March 2018, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman: £70,000

(2017, £70,000) and all other directors: £33,000 (2017: £32,000). An additiona! £5,000 is pad per annum for each of
the roles of Audit Committee Chairman and Senior Independent Direcior. The actual amounts paid to the Directors
during the financial year under review are as shown below.

/Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited) h
The fees payable in respect of each of the Directors who served dunng the finanaial year were as follows:-
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
£ E
Hugh Seaborn 70,000 59,412
Simon Marnson 33,000 32,000
Suzie Procter 33,000 32,000
David Watson 43,000 40,315
Tim Gillbanks (joined 23 January 2018) 6,388 -
Johin Clen {retired 29 july 2017) 10,409 32,000
e _ — /

Company Performance

The graph below compares, for the eight years ended 31 March 2018, the percentage change over each penod in the
share price total return to sharehclders compared to the share price total retum of benchmark, which the Board
considers to be the most appropriate benchmark for investment performance measurement purposes. An explanation of
the performance of the Company I1s given 1n the Chairman’s Statement and Manager's Report.

Directors’ Interests in Shares (audited) Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return

) far Ordinary Share Class
The interests of the Directors in the shares of the

Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appaintment, if later, were as follows
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
Ordinary Ordinary
shares of shares of
25p 25p
1 Glen N/A 3,383
S Marrison 26,086 25,338
S E Procter 16,661 16,661
H Seabom 34,668 34,668
D Watson 10,057 9,770
T Gillbanks 0 N/A
Since 31 March 2018 to the date of this report, there have

been no subsequent changes to the Directors’ interests in )
the shares of the Company.

. For and on behalf of the Board
Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

Parcentage
2018 2017 ncrease/
£'000 £'000 (decrease)
Dwvidends paid 35,067 29,521 188 Hugh Seaborn
Directors Fees 196 218 (10.1)  Chairman of the Manageme efit Copfimittee

6 June 2018
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Chairman: Mr Watson

Key Responsibilities

® Review the internal financial and non-financial controls;

® Review reports from key third party service providers;

& Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the contents of the draft Interim and Annual Reports;

® Review accounting poliaes and significant financial reporting judgements;

& Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s complfiance with financial reporting and regulatory requirements; and
® Review the performance and remuneration of the external audror.

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit and compliance departments may attend these committee meetings at
the Committee Chairman's request.

Representatives of the Company's Auditor attend the Committee meetings at which the draft Interim and Annual Report
and Accounts are reviewed, and are given the opportumty to speak to the Committee members without the presence of
the representatives of the Manager.

The Board recognises the requirement for the Audit Committee as a whole to have competence relevant to the sector
and at least one member with recent and relevant financal experience. The Charman and Mr Gillbanks are Chartered
Accountants with extensive and recent experience in the Finandial Senices Industry. The other members of the
Committee have a combination of property, financial, investment and business experience through senior posttions heid
throughout their careers.

Activity during the year

Dunng the year the Committee met twice with all members at each meeting and considered the following;

& The Group's Intemal Contrals and consideration of the Reports thereon and Risk Map

® The ISAE/AAF and SSAE16 reports or their equivalent from F&C and BNP Paribas

o Whether the Company should have its own internal audit function.

& The impact and processes relating to the new regulation particularly MiFID, the requirements under PRUPS and
GDPR

® The External Auditor's Planning Memorandum setting out the scope of the annuaf audit and proposed key areas of
focus

® The reports from the Auditors concerning their audit of the Financial Statemenis of the Company and Consideration of
Significant issues in relation to the Financial Statements

* The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the accounting policies of the Campany, ncluding the reasonableness of
any judgements required by such policies

& The Viability Staternent and consideration of the preparation of the Financial Statements on a Gaing Cancern Basis
taking account of forward looking income forecasts, the: liquidity of the investrent portfolic and debt profile

50 TR Property Investment Trust



Report of the Audit Committee

continued

e The financial and other disclosures in the Financial Statements

® The information presented i the Interim and Annual Reports to assess whether, taken as a whole, the Reports are
fair, balanced and understandable and the information presented will enable the sharehelders to assess the
Company's performance, business rmodet and strategy

® The performance of the external auditors, to approve their audit fees and consider the assessment of independence

Internal controls and management of risk

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of Internzl Cantrols and for reviewing their effectivenass.
Key nsks dentified by the Auditors are cansidered by the Audit Committee to ensure that robust intemnal controls and
monitoring procedures in respect of these are in place on an ongoing basis. Further details can be found on pages 28
to 30

The Audit Committee received and considered reports on Internal Controls from the key service providers No areas of
concemn were highlighted.

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to identify any new risks and whether any adjustrments were required to
existing risks, and the controls and mitigation maasures in place in respect of these nsks.

Based on the processes and controls in place within the BMO Group and other significant service providers, the Board
has concurred that there is no current need for the Company to have a dedicated internal audit function.

Significant Issues in relation to the Financial Statements

The Committee has considered this report and finanaal statements and the Viability Statement cn page 31

The Committee considered the Auditor's assessment of risk of material misstatement and reviewed the internal controls in
place in respect of the key areas identfied and the process by which the Board monitors each of the procedures to give
the Cormmittee comfort on these risks on an ongoing basis. These risks are also highlighted in the Company's Risk Map

¢ Valuation of the Group’s Quoted investments — The Group's investments are priced for the daily NAV by
BNP Paribas. The quoted assets are priced by the Administrator’'s Global Priang Platform which uses independent
external pricing sources The control process surrounding this is set out in the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Intermnal
Controls Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the period reported to 31 December 2017 did not reveal
any significant exceptions. The quarterly contro! report to the Board frorn BNP Paribas coverng the period up to
31 March 2018 had no ssues to report. In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using an alternative pricing
source on 2 daily basis as an ndependent check.

® Valuation of the Group’s Direct Property Investments — The physical property portfolio is valued every
six months by professional independent valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation ~ Professional
Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA 1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements, which apply the
definition of Fair Value adopted by the Intemationa! Financial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13 defines Far Value as.

“The amount for which an usset could be exchanged, a hability settled, or an equity instrument granted could be
exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing porties in an arm’s length transaction”

In undertaking their valuation of each property, Knight Frank have made their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analyss of appropnate comparable investments, rental and sale transactions, together with evidence of demand
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GOVERNANCE

Report of the Audit Committee

continued

within the vicinity of each property. This information has then been applied to the properties, taking into account size,
lacation, terrns, covenant and other matenal factors

There has been nothing brought to the Committee’s attention in respect of the financial statements for the penod ended
31 March 2018, which was material or significant or that the Committee felt should be brought to shareholders’
attention.

Auditor assessment and independence

The Company’s external auditor is KPMG LLP. In March 2016, the Company conducted a full audit tender process as the
previous auditors, Emst and Young, being in office for in excess of 20 years would have been required to retire under the
new legislation following the 2019 audit. As a result of the tender process, KPMG LLP were appointed by shareholders at
the 2016 AGM. The Commuttee expects to repeat a tender process in 2026 in respect of the audit for the year ended

31 March 2027, in line with the latest Corporate Governance provisions and EU Requirements.

During the year, KPMG presented their Audit Plan for the year end at the interim Committee meeting and the Committee
considered the audit process and fee proposal. The Commuttee also reviewed KPMG's independence policies and
procedures including quality assurance procedures, it was considered that these policies are fit for purpose and the
Directors are satisfied that KPMG are independent.

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of the audit far the year to 31 March 2018 were: £70,000, (2017 £72,000),
which were appraved by the Audit Committee.

Addttionally, during the year fees of £15,000 were paid to the Auditor in respect of the audit of subsidianes of the
Company for pnor-period audits

The Committee has approved and implemented a policy an the engagement of the Audrtor to supply non-audtt services,
taking into account the recommendations of the Accounting Practices Board with a view to ensuring that the external
Auditor does not provide non-audit services that have the potential to impair or appear to /mpair the independence of
their audit role. The Committee does not befieve there to be any impediment to the Auditor's objectwity and
independence.

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 March 2018 were nil (2017: nil).
Fult details of the Auditor’s fees are provided in note 6 to the accounts on page 69.

Following each audt, the Comrmittee reviews the audit process and considers its effectiveness and the quality of the
services provided to the Company. The review following the completion of the 2018 Audit concluded that the Committee
was satisfied with the Auditor's effectiveness and performance The Committee felt that KPMG had run an effective and
efficient audit process with appropnate challenge. The Committee was extremely satisfied with the auditors’ performance
and a resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as the Company's Auditar will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

/o finfae

David Watson
Chairman of the Audit Committee
6 June 2018

52 TR Property Investrnent Trust



Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation to
the Group financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the group and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and
applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and far view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
® make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable,
® state whether they have been prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU,

® assess the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

® use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to iquidate the group or the parent company or
tc cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the parent company
and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are responsible for
such internal contral as they deterrmine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of finandial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularies

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the cosporate and financial information included on the
company's website. Legislation in the UK govemning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from [egislation in other junsdictions.

Responsibility statement
Each of the directors listed on page 33 confirms that to the best of their knowledge:

¢ the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company and the undertakings included n
the consolidation taken as a whole; and;

e the Annual Report, Includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Trust, together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that it faces; and

e the accounting records have been properly maintained; and

® the Annuai Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the necessary information for
shareholders to assess the company’s position and performance, business madel and strategy

By order of the Board

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman
6 June 2018
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to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of TR
Praperty Investment Trust plc {"the Company”) for
the year ended 31 March 20718 which compnse the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, Group
and Company Statement of Changes in Equity,
Group and Company Balance Sheets, Group and
Company Cash Flow Statements, and the related
notes, including the accounting poficies in note 1

In our opimon.

— the financial staterments give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the
parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2018
and of the Group's return for the year then
ended,

— the Group financial staterments have been
properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as
adopted by the EU);

— the parent Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

— the financial statements have been prepared in
accardance with the requirements of the
Comparves Act 2006; and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation.

Basis for opinian

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Audming (UK} {"1SAs
{UK}"} and applicable law  Qur responsibilities are
described below We beheve that the audit
gvidence we have obtained 1s a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion - Qur audit opinion
1s consistent with our report to the audit
committee

We were appointed as audntor by the shareholders on 2
November 2016. The period of total unintesrupted
engagement s for the two financial years ended 31
March 2018. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibiities
under, and we remain independent of the Group in
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entives No nen-audit services prohibited by that
standard wera provided

Overview

Materiality: group financal £13 7m

statements as a whole
1% of Total Assets

Risks of material misstaternent

Recurring risks  Carrying amount of quoted <4 »

investments

Valuation of direct property 4« »
investments




2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, 1n our professional judgement, ware of mast significance in the audtt of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified
by us, mcluding those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team We summarise below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit
significance, In arrving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as
regusred for public interest entities, our results from those procedures These matters were addressed, and our results are
based on procadures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate
opmnion n these matters.

The risk Qur response

Carrying amount of quoted High value balance Our procedures included-
;g‘:iitmae:;sparent Company) The Group's portfolio of quoted — Tests of detail: Agreeing the valuation of
P v Investmentis makes up 89 1% of the 99.7 per cent of Investments in the portfolio
{£1,217.9m, 2017 £1,047.5m} Group's total assets {by value) and is 1o externally quoted prices; and
considered to be oneg of the key drivers

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 99.7 per

Refer to pages 50 to 52 (Audit of results. We note that the portfolio )

Comnuttee Repart), page 65 comprises hquid, quoted investments, tce?nt dog '”zzzt;ge':;:;?'r&gi::‘dme portfoio
faccounting policy) and pages 72 however, due to their matenality in the c%nﬂm?;mns fr\ém mveZtment Ejgtytod ans
ifinancial disclosures). context of the financial statements as a :

whole, they ara considered to be one of Qur results
the areas which had the greatest effect
an our overall audit strategy and
allocation of resources in planning and
campleting our audit,

— We found the carrying amount of quoted
equity investments to be acceptable.

Valuation of direct property Subjective valuation Our procedures included
investments
9 ' — H ’ falc:
{Group and Parent Comparty) 7 2%f the Gro up's total assets (by Assessing valuer’s credentials: We
value) 1s held in investment properties assessed the objectivity and professional
{£98 Om, 2017 £97 3m) where no quoted market prnice 15 qualifications of the Group's external valuer,
available through discusstons with the valuer and

Refer to pages 50 to 52 (Audit analysing therr valuation report,

Commuttee Report), page 64 Each property 1S unique and

. : vev) and 72 determination of the fair value requires — Methodology choice: We held discussions
{?CCO”” ;";9 p? ey a’; page judgement over the choice of valuation with the external valuer to understand the
nancial aisclosures, methodology to apply. as well as valuation methodology used:

estimabon, in particular over the key
assumptions of the estimated rental
value and the yield The key assumptions
will be impacted by a number of factors
including location, quality and condition of
the building and tenant credit rating

-—- Benchmarking assumptions: We held
discussions with the external valuer to
understand movements in property values
We challenged the key valuation
assumptions by making a comparison ¢ our
own understandmg of the market and to
industry benchmarks;

— Test of detail: We compared a sample of
rental income used in the valuations to lease
contracts,

— Assessing transparency’ we considered the
adequacy of the Group's disclosures about
the degree of estimation and sensitivity to
key assumptions made when valuing
investment properties.

Our results

— We found the carrying amount of direct
property investments to be acceptable




Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiahty for the group financial statements as a
whole was set at £13.7m (2017 £11.9m},
determined with reference to a benchmark of
total assets, of which, it represents 1% (2017:

1 %)

In addition, we: applied materalty of £2.3m (2017:
£2 0my}, to investment income, gross rental
income, net revenue returns on contracts for
difference, management and performance fees,
finance costs and taxation, for which we believe
misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality
for the financial statements as a whole could
reascnably be expected to influence the
company’s mermbers’ assessment of the financial
performance of the Group

Materality for the parent Company audit was set
at £12.9m (2017 £11.3m), determined as 0.9%
of tha total assets of the parent Company (2017
0 9%}

We reported to the Audit Committee any
uncorrected identifled misstatements exceeding
£683,000 {2017. £595,000), in addition to other
identified misstatements that warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds For those areas to which a
lower matenality was appled, we reported any
rmisstatements exceeding £1 14,000 (2017.
£101.000}. For the audit of the parent Company
we reported any misstatements exceeding
£645,000 (2017, £563,000)

Qur audit of the Company was undertaken to the
matenality level specified above and was
performed at the administrator's head office in
Dundee

The audit team performed the audit of the Group
as if it was a single aggregated set of financial
information. This approach is unchanged from
the prior year. The audit of the Group was
perfarmed using the Group materiality level set
out above.

Total Assets
£1,367m (2017: £1,180m)

# Total Assets
nGroup matenality

Group Materiality
£13.7m {2017: £11.9m)

£13.7m

Whole financial
staternents materiality
2017 £11.8m)

£12.9m

Parent matenality
2017 £113m)

£0.7m
Misstatements reported to the
audrt committee (2017, £0 Bm)



4. We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if

— we have anything material to add or draw attention to
in relation to the directors’ statemeant in note 1 to the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company's use of that basis for a pericd of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the
finencial statements; or

-— if the related statement under the Listing Rules set out
on page 3615 matenally inconsistent with our audit
knowledge

We have nothing to report in these respects

. We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presented n the Annual Report together with the financial
statements Our opinion on the finangial statements does
not cover the other infermation and, accardingly, we do not
express an audit opinlon or, except as exphcttly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Qur responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether, based on our financiat
statements audit work, the informatien therein 1s matenally
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge Based solely on that work we have
nat wentified matenal misstatements i the ather
information

Strategic report and directors' repart
Based solely on our work on the other information

— we have not identified material misstatements in the
strateqic report and the directors’ report,

— 1n our opinion the information given in those reports for
the financial year I1s consistent with the financial
statements, and

— ih our opinton those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Compantes Act 2006.

Directors' remuneration report
In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration

Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2008

Disclosures of principal nsks and lenger-term viability

Based on the knowledge we acquired durnng our financial
staterments audit, we have nothing matenal to add or draw
attention to In relation to.

— the Direciors’ confirmation within the Viability Statement
on page 31 that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group,
inciuding those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency and liquidity,

— the Prnincipal Risks and Uncertainties disciosures
descrnbing these risks and explaining how they are being
mznaged and mitigated; and

— 1the directors’ explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they
considerad that period to be appropnate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue In
operation and meet 1ts hablities as they fall due over the
period of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
Vighility Statement, We have nothing to report in this
respect.

Corporate governance disciosures
We are required to report ta you if

— we have identified material inconsistencies between the
knowiedge we acquired dunng our financial statements
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider
that the annual report and financial statements taken as
a whole 1s fair, balanced and undsrstandable and
provides the mformation necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s position and performance, business
mode! and strategy, or

— the section of the annual report describing the work of
the Audit Committee does not approprately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committes

We are required to report to you if the Corporate
Governance Statement does not properly disclose a
departure from the eleven provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review.

We have nothing to report in these respects



6. We have nothing to report on the other matters on

which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

— the parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are notIn agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

we have not received al! the informatien and
explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report in these respects

Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explainad more fully in ther statement set out on page
53. the directors are responsible for. the preparation of the
financial statements including being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
staternents that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and
parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease aperations, or hava no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to gbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud, other
rregularities {see below), or error, and to issue our opinion
in an auditor's report  Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always datect

a material misstatement when it exists Msstatements can

anse from fraud, other irregularities or error and are
consideraed matenal If, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements

A fuller description of our responsibilities 1s provided on the
FRC's website at www frg org uk/auditorsresponsibilibies

8.

frrequiarities - ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expeacted to have a matenal effect on the
financial statements from our sector experience and
through discusston with the Directors, the manager and the
adrmsnistrator {as required by auditing standards)

We had regard to laws and regufations in areas that directly
affect the financiat statements including financial reporting
including related company legrsiation} as well as the
Company's qualification as an Investment Trust under UK
tax legislation, any breach of which could lead to the
Company losing various deductions and exemptions from
UK corporation tax  We considered the extent of
compliance with those laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement items

We communicated identfied laws and regulations
throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non-comgliance throughout the audit.

As with any audit. there remained a higher risk of non-
detection of non-comphance with relevant laws and
regulations (irregularities), as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrapresentations, or the
overnde of internal controls

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as 2
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose  To the fuliest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's mambers, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have forméd

Richard jtlly (Senior Statutory Auditor]

for on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
artered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5GL

6 June 2018



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2018 Year ended 31 March 2017
Revenue Capital Revenue Capual
Return Return Total Retum Retuin Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £'000 £050 £000
Income
Investment income 2 40,267 - 40,267 35,574 - 35,574
Other operating income 4 495 - 495 62 ~ 62
Gross rental income 2 3,971 - 3,971 3,781 ~ 3,781
Service charge income 3 i,397 - 1,397 1,549 -~ 1,549
Gains on investments held at
fair value 10 - 140,470 140,470 - 52,693 52,693
Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - {2,845) (2,845} - {1,130) (1,130)
Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash
equivalents - 921 921 - 2,450 2,450
Net returns on contracts
for difference 10 4,624 6,358 10,982 4,457 (1,487) 2,970
Total Income 50,754 144,904 195,658 45423 52,526 97,949
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 {1,389) {14,355} {15,734) (1,314) (5,092) (6,406)
Direct property expenses, rent
payable and semvice charge costs 3 {(1,947) - (1,947} (2,078) - (2,078)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,308) (558) {1,866) (1,213) (546} (1,759)
Yotal operating expenses {3.643) (14,913) (19,557} {4,605} (5,638} {10,243)
Operating profit 46,110 129,991 176,101 40,818 46,888 87,706
Finance costs 7 {772) {2,070} (2.842) (621) (1,842) (2,453)
Profit from operations
before tax 45,338 127,921 173,259 40,197 45,046 85,243
Taxaticn 8 (3,383} 2,326 (1,857) (4,080) 1,822 (2,258)
Total comprehensive income 41,955 130,247 172,202 36,117 46,868 82,985
Earnings per Ordinary share 9 13.22p 41.04p 54.26p 11.38p 14.76p 26.14p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance
with IFRS, The Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance
published by the Association of Investment Companies. All items In the above statement denve from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that 1s not included in the above statement therefore "Total
comprehensive income” is also the profit for the year.

All inceme is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes on pages 63 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Group
Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premi demption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Crdinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Netes £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43,162 43,971 951,953 1,118,424
Net profit for the year ~ - - 172,202 172,202
Dividends paid 17 - - - {35,067} {35,067)
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,089,088 1,255,559
Company
Share Share Capital Retalned
Capital Aremi! Redempti Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Notes £D0D £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43,162 43,971 951,953 1,118,424
Net profit for the year - - - 172,202 172,202
Dividends paid 17 ~ -~ - (35,067) (35,067}
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43,162 43,9711 1,089,088 1,255,559
Group
Share Share Copital Retaned
Capital Premuurm Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Qrdinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2017 £000 #0600 £'000 €000 £000
At 31 March 2016 79,375 43,162 43,934 898948 1,065419
Net profit for the year - - - 82,985 82,985
Shares repurchased 14 (37) - 37 (459) (459)
Dividends pad 17 - - - (29,521) (29,521)
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43,162 43971 951,953 1,118,424
Company
Share Share Capital Retaned
Capnral Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordimary Account Reserve Ordirary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 E£'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2016 79,375 43,162 43,934 898,948 1,065,419
Net profit for the year - - - 82,985 82,985
Shares repurchased 14 (&3] - 37 (459) (459)
Dwidends paid 17 - - - (29,521)  (29,521)
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43,162 43,971 951,953 1,118424

The notes on pages 63 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets

as at 31 March 2018

Group Company Groug Company
2018 2018 2017 217
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 0 1,316,046 1,316,046 1,144,776 1,144,776
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 50,470 ~ 50,531

1,316,086 1,366,516 1,144,776 1,195,307
Deferred taxatton asset 12 243 243 243 243

1,316,289 1,366,759 1,145,019 1,195,550

Current assels
Debtors 12 32,574 32,452 38,809 38,687
Cash and cash equvalents 18,114 18,110 6,445 6,420
50,688 50,562 45,254 45,107
Current habslties 17 (52,543) (102,887) (14,081)  (64,465)
Net current (habilites)/assets {1,855) {(52,325) 31,173 {19,358)
Total assets less current habilities 1,314,434 1,314,434 1,176,192 1,176,192
Non-current habilities 13 (58,875) (58,875) (57768)  (57,768)
Net assets 1,255,559 1,255,559 1,118,424 1,118,424

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43,971 43971
Retained earnings 16 1,089,088 1,089,088 951,953 951,953
Equity sharecholders’ funds 1,255,559 1,255,559 1,118424 1,118424

Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 395.64p 395.64p 352.42p 352.42p

These Financial Statements were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust ple (Company No: 84492)
and authorised for issue on 6 June 2018.

H Seabotn
Director

The notes on pages 63 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

as at 31 March 2018

Group Company Croup Company
2018 2018 207 2017
£000 £'Go0 £'0a0 E£000
Reconciliation of profit from operations before
tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit from operatons before tax 173,159 173,259 85,243 85,050
Finance costs 2,842 2,842 2,463 3,455
Gains on investments and derivatives held at
fair value through profit or loss (146,828) (146,767) (51,2086) (48,571)
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes 186 186 669 669
Decrease/(increase) in accrued income 218 218 (624) (1,016)
Net (purchases)/sales of investments (19.446) {19.446) 4,606 4,606
Decrease/(increase) in sales settlement debtor 8,288 8,288 (5,591) (5,581)
Decrease in purchase settlemnent creditor (5,869) (5.869) (3,216) (3,216)
Increase in other debtors (2,710) (2,710) (1,595) (1,602)
Increase/(decrease) in other creditors 9,194 9,154 (1,575) (4,237)
Scrip dividends included in investment income and
net returns on coniracts for difference (4,920) (4,920) {1,450) (1,450)
Net cash inflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 14,214 14,235 27724 27,997
Interest paid (2,774) (2.773) (2,437) (3.042)
Taxation paid {1,625) (1,625) (4,066) (3,746)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 9,815 9,836 21,221 21,209
Financing activities
Equity dwidends paid (35,067) (35,067) (29,521) (29,521)
Drawdown/(repayment of loans) 36,000 36,000 (10,000) (10,000}
Repurchase of shares - - (459) (459)
Net cash from/(used) in financing actvities 933 933 (39,980) (39,980)
Increase/(decrease) in cash 10,748 10,769 (18,759) (8771
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 6,445 6,420 22,754 22,74%
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash equivalents 921 921 2,450 2,450
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18,114 18,110 6,445 6,420
Note
Dividends received 42,097 42,097 35,834 35,820
Interest received 484 434 4] 4)

The notes on pages 63 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Accounting policies

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared on a gaing concern basis, it accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (JFRS), which compnse stendards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), together with interpretations cf the Intermaticnal Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee approved by the International Accounting Standards Commuttee (IASC) that remain in effect, to the
extent that they have been adopted by the European Uruon and as regards the Comnpany financial staternents, as apphied in
accerdance with the prowisions of the Comparies Act 2006, The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recormmended Practice (SORP), “Financial Staternents of Investment Trust Compames and Venture Capital
Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which 15 therr functional and presentational currency
Sterling 15 the funictional cutrency because it is the currency of the pnmary econormic environment n which the Group operates
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (E'D00) except where otherwise indicated

The preparation of the financiel statements necessanly requires the exerase of judgement, both in apphcation of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates These estmates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis end are continually evafuated based on hustorical expenence and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estmates Such judgements are discussed further in section {f) of this note

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial staterments of the Company and its subsidianes to 31 March 2018 All
the subsidianes of the Company have been consalidated in these financial staterments.

In accordence with IFRS 10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
e It obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management senvices;

® It comemits to s investors that its business purpose ss to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and mvestment
ncerne, and

® |t measures and evaluates performance of substanually all of its investments on a fair value basis

Each of the subsidianes of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating or supporting the tnvestrent operations of
the Company (ncuding rasing additional financing), and 1s not tself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets cut that in the case cf controlled
entities that support the investment actnaty of the investment entity, thase entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value Accordingly the Cormpany has consolidated the resutts and finanaal positons of those subsidianes,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of thewr acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases The financial slatements of subsidiaries used in the preparation
of the consclidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies Alt intra-group balances and transactions,
including unrezlised profts ansing therefrom, are elminated This 15 consistent with the presentation in previous years

b) Income

Dwvidends recewable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-divwdend basis Where no ex-dwdend date 1s
avallable, didends receivable an or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Prowision 1s made for any dwvidends not
expected to be received Where the Group has elected to recewe these dividends in the form of additional shares rather than cash
the amount of cash dwidend foregone is recogmised as mcome. Differences between the value of shares received and the cash
dwidend foregone are recogrsed n the capital retums of the Group Statement of Comnprehensive Income. The fixed returns on debt
secunties are recogmsed on a time apportonment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such secunty. Interest recevable
from cash and short term deposits 15 accrued to the end of the year Stock lending income 1s recogrused on an accruals basis.
Underanting comimsston 15 taken to revenue, unless any shares undenwritten are required to be taken up, i which case the
proportionate commussion recewed 15 deducted from the cost of the mvestment.

Recognition of property rental income 1s set out in section (f) of this note.
¢) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into revenuc and
caprtal tems 15 given in note 16 In armving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue tems except as follows

® Expenses which are inadental to the acquisiton or disposal of an vestment,
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Accounting policies continued

® Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the investments
can be demanstrated, this includes irrecaverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential leases as
premiums recewved for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

® One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of long term wvestment retumns All performance fees are charged to capital return;

e The fund admunistration, depositary, custody and company secretanal services are charged directly to the Company and are
ncluded within ‘Other admimistrative expenses’ 1n note 6 These expenses are charged on the same basss as the base
management fee, one quarter to income and three quarters to capital

d) Finance costs
The finance cost 1n respect of capital instruments other than equuity shares (s calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital return

e} Taxation
Current tax assets and habilines are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantwely enacted by the balance sheet date

Income tax 1s charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to ttems that are credited or charged to equity Othenwise income
tax 15 recognised »n the Group Statement of Cornprehensive Income

The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effectwe rate of tax for
the year. The charge for taxaton is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP, the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
aganst capital returas in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s the “marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income 1s capable of baing offset entrely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief 1s ransferred to the capital column,

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carying amounts of assets and habdites in the
Balance Sheet and the comresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accountad for using the balance sheet
habulity method. Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised fo the
extent that it1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable agamst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company 1s an investment trust under s.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not hable for tax on capital
gains Capital gains ansing in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gans tax.

f) Investment property

Investment praperty 1s measured inally at cost including transaction costs Transaction costs indude transfer taxes, professional
fees for legal senvices and initial leasing commissions te bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating The carmyung amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is
ncyrred if the recognition critena are met The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
uncondiional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to intal recognition, Investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
are induded in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they anise.

Investrnent property 15 derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses are recogrised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income i the
year of disposal,

Gans or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group cames its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in far
values being recognised in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income The Group engaged Krught Frank LLP as
mndependent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2018
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1 Accounting policies continued

Valuations of investment properties
Deternmination of the farr value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS valuation Standards
6th Edition {The Red Book) as follows,

“The estimated arnount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a wilfing buyer and & walling seller i an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion?”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue strearrs, capital values
of fictures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the averal! repair and condition of the property} and
discount rates applicable to those assets These assumptians are based on local market conditons existing at the balance sheet date

In arriving at therr estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2018, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only relied salely on histoncal transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be
seen in the sensitaty analysis disclosed in note 1O(T)

Rental income
Rental income recewvable under operating leases 1s recogmsed on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental incorme which s recognised when it anses

Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements are spread evenly over the lease term, even if the payments are not made
on such a basis The lease term is the non-cancellable penad of the lease together with any further term for which the tenant has
the opticn to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will
exercise that optrion Premiums received to terminate or extend leases are recognised in the capital account of the Group
Staternent of Comprehensive Income when they anse,

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Incame ansing from expenses recharged to tenants 1s recogmised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered Service charges and other such recewpts are included gross of the related costs n revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as pnnapal in this respect.

g) Investments
When a purchase or sale 1s made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the tmeframe of the relevant market,
the investnents concerned are recognised or derecogrised on the trade date

Al the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as farr value through profit or loss but are also
descrnbed in these financial statements as investments held at far value.

All investments are designated upon initial recognstion as held et farr value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, 15 deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange SETS is the London Stock Exchange electrenic trading senice covening
most of the market including all the FTSE All -Share and the most hquid AiM constituents. Unguoted investments of investments
for which there 15 only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with [PEVCA guidebnes and using current market prices, trading condions and the general economic chmate

In its financial statements the Company recogrises its Investments in subsidianes at adjusted net asset value. The subsidianes
have historically been hoiding vehicles for direct property investment or financing vehicles. No assets are currently held through
the subsidiary stracture and all financing instruments are directly held by the company

Changes in the fair value are recogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Staterent of Comprehensive Income

Derivatives

Denvatives are held at fair value based on traded prices, Gains and losses on derwvative transactions are recogrised n the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income Gans and losses on CFDs resulting from mevernents in the pnee of the underlying stock
are treated as capital Owidends fror the underlying investiment and finanang costs of CFDs are treated as revenue/revenue
EXPENSES.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital
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Accounting policies continued

Contracts for Difference ("CFDs") are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values,
The sources of the returns under the dervative contract (e.g. notonal divdends, finanaing costs, interest retums and capital
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP. Notional dwvidend income or expenses arising on long or short pesitons
are apporiicned wholly to the revenue account. Motional interest expense on long positions 1s apportioned between revenue and
capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company {currently determined to be 25% to the
revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relaling to underfying price movements of securities in relation
to CFD expusures are allacated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan nates and debentures
Alt loans and debentures are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration receved, less issue costs where
applicable. After initial recognition, alt interest bearing loans and borrowsngs are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlernent, The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitahsed and amartised over the e of the loan on an effective interest rate basis

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions invelving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabikes are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
tntenm dividends are recogrised in the penod in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders

I} Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting pokcies adopted are consistent with those of the previeus consolidated financal statements

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards 1ssued before the reporting date that become effecuve after 31 March 2018 will nat have a matenal effect on
equity or profit for the subsequent period The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reporting Standard or
Interpretation Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group
financial statements are Yisted below:

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (2014) replaces 1AS 39 and deals with a package of improvernents including principally a revised
madel for classfication and measurement of financial instruments, a forward looking expected loss impairment model and a
revised framework for hedge accounting In terms of classification and measurernent the revised standard is principles based
depending on the business model and nature of cash flaws. Under this approach, mstruments are measured at either amortised
cost or farr value, though the standard retains the fair value option aflowng designation of debt instruments at intial recognition to
be measured at fair value, The standard is effective from 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted

The Group has not early adopted this standard and expects the eventual impact to be insignificant for its current investment
portfolo, which 1s substantially comprised of quoted equities.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Custemers (effective 1 January 2018) specifies how and when an entity should
recognise revenue and enhances the nature of revenue disclosures, Given the nature of the Group's revenue streams from
financial instruments, the provisions of this standard are not expected to have a materal impact,

Amendments to IFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (effective 1 January 2018). The
amendments relate to specific areas of dassificanon and measurermnent and are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Group's financal statements as such transactions are not undertaken.
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1 Accounting policies continued

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to 1AS 40) (effective | January 2018) The amendments clanfy when an enaty
should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or out of investment property The
amendments are not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Fransaction and Advance Consideration (effective | fanuary 2018)

The interpretation dlarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on inibial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income on the derecognriion of & non-menetary asset or non-monetary hability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction 1s the date on which an entty inmally recogrises the non-monetary asset or nen-monetary habdiity arising from the
advance consideration.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (effective 1 January 2018) (Amendments to $FRS 1 First time Adoption of IFRSs
and IAS 28 Investments in Assodiates and Jaint Ventures).

IFRS 16 — Leases {effectve 1 January 2019) The Group does not expect the financial impact of thus standard on the financial
staternents to be material The standard requires more extensive disclosutes than are currently required.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective 1 January 2019}

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9) (effective 1 January 2013)
Long-term Inlerests 1 Assocates and foint Ventures (Amendments to 1AS 28) {effective 1 january 2019)
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to 1AS 19) (effectve 1 January 2019)

Annual Improvemnents to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cyde - vanous standards (effective | January 2019).
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021).

None of the above are expected 1o have a matenal impact on the Group's finangal statements.

2 Investment income

2018 2017

€000 £1000

Disdends from UK listed investments 3,658 2,660
Dividends from overseas lsted investments 24,806 26,018
Scrip dwidends from listed investments 4,623 935
Interest from listed investments - 21
Property income distnbutions 7,180 5,940
40,267 35,574

3 Net rental income

2018 2017

£'000 £000

Gross rental income 3,971 3,781
Senvice charge incorne 1,397 1,549
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,947) (2,078)
3,421 3252
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Net rental income continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered intc cormmercial leases on wts property portfoho Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and nclude clauses to enable penadic upward rewsion of the rental charge according to prevailing
market conditions Some leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future mirimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows

2018 2017
€000 E000
within § year 4,100 3,850
After | year but not more than 5 years 12,000 12,000
More than 5 years 18,850 15,500
34,950 31,350

Other operating income
2018 2017
£000 E000
Interest recevable 35 7
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 460 -
Underwnting commission - 55
495 62

Underwniting 1s part of the process of introducing new secunties to the market. The Company may partiaipate in the underwnting
of nvestee companies’ securities, as one of a number of partcipants, for which compensation in the form of commission 15
received. The Company only participates in underwnting having assessed the risks involved and in secunties in which 15
prepared ta increase its holding should that be the outcorme. The commission earmed 1s taken {0 revenue unless any secunties
underwritten are required to be taken up in which case the proportonate commission Is deducted from the cost of the
investment. Dunng the year the Company participated in no (2017: one) underwnting and no commussion was eamed, All
commussion earned n 2017 was taken to revenue

Management and performance fees

2018 2018 2018 2007 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Caprtal Total

Return Returmn Return Retyrn
€000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'00G
Management fee 1,389 4,167 5,556 1,314 3,994 5,258
Performance fee - 10,188 10,188 - 1,148 1,148
1,389 14,355 15,744 1,314 5,092 6,406

A summary of the terms of the management agreement 1s given in the Report of the Directers on pages 46 to 47
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6  Other administrative expenses

2018 2017
£000 £000
Cirectors’ fees (Dwectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 48 to 49) 196 218
Auditors’ remuneration.
~ for audut of the consolidated and parent company finandial statements 70 72
— for audit of prior penod financal statemenis of subsidianes 15 -
Legal fees 17 2
Taxation fees 172 117
Other administrative expenses 184 177
Other expenses 499 444
Irrecoverable VAT 155 183
Expanses charged to Revenue 1,308 1,213
Expanses chacged to Capital 558 546
1,866 1,759

The audit of the pnor penod financsl statements of subsidianes related to the 18 month penod from 1 Apnl 2015 to
30 September 2016

Other administrative expenses mnclude deposttory, custody and company secretamal senvces These expenses are charged on the
same basts as the base management fee, one quarter to iIncome and three quarters to capital

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Director National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and histing
fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs These expenses are charged solely 1o the revenue
account

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residental leases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital
account

7  Finance costs

2018 2017
£°000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,364 1,094
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,596 1,362
HMRC interest 82 7
2,842 2463

Amount allocated to capital return (2,070} £1,842)
T2 621
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8  Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2018 2018 2018 2017 017 27
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Caprtal Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £0600 £'000 F000
UK corperation tax at 19% (2017 20%) 2,374 {2,374) - 2,180 (2,180) -
Overseas taxation 2,864 44 2,908 2,060 - 2,060
5,238 (2,330) 2,908 4,240 (2,180) 2,060
(Over)/under provision 10 respect of prior years (1,855) 4 (1.851) (160) 358 198
Current tax charge for the year 3,383 {2,326) 1,057 4,080 (1,822) 2,258

70

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s lower {2017. lower) than the standard rate of corporate tax in the UK for a large company of 19%

(2017. 200%).
The difference is explained below
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retum
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Net profit on ordinary activities before taxation 45,338 127921 173,259 40,197 45,046 85,243
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2017 20%) 8,614 24,305 32919 8,032 9,009 17,048
Effects of*
Non taxable gains on investments - (26,689) (26.,689) - (10,539} (10,539}
Currency movements not taxable - 366 366 - (264) (264)
Tax relief on expenses credited/{charged) to capttal - 803 803 - {683) (683)
Non-taxable returns - (1,208) (1,208) - 297 297
Non-taxable UK dividends {936) - (936) (719) - (719)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (5.350) - (5.350)  (5,208) - {5,208)
Overseas withholding taxes 2,864 44 2,908 2,060 - 2,060
{Over)/under prowision in respect of prior years {1,855) 4 (1.851) (160) 358 198
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 23 - 23
Deferred tax not provided 27 49 16 44 - 44
Rate change on deferred tax - - - 1 - 1
3,383 (2,326) 1,057 4,080  (1,822) 2258

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £1,802,000 (2017: £1,096,000) arising as & result of losses carried forward
It 1s considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be avalable to

offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised

Due to the Company's status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to obtain
approval for the forseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluanon or
disposal of investments. In respect of properties held n subsidaries, prowsion for capital gains tax has been made for revaluation
surpluses not sheltered by brought forward capital losses or non-trade debits.
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8  Taxation continued

¢} Provision for deferred taxation
The amaurits for deferred taxation provided at 199 (2017° 20%) compnse

2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
Group £'000 €000 E'0D0 E'000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances 107 - 107 107 - 107
Unutibsed losses carnied forward - (350) (350) - {350) (350)
Shown as
Deferred tax ability/(asset) 107 (350) (243) 107 {350) (243)
2018 2018 1018 2017 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Tota!
Return Return Return Return
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000
Accelerated caprtal allowances 107 - 107 107 - 107
Unutiised losses carned forward - {350) (350) - (350) (350)
Shown as
Deferred tax habiiry/(asset) 107 {350} {243} 107 {350) {243)
The movemnent 1n provision in the year 15 as follows:
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenye Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
Group £000 E000 £000 E'000 £000 £000
Prowision at the start of the year 107 (350) (233) 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances - - - - - -
Provision at the end of the year 107 (350) {243) 107 {350) (243)
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capttal Total
Return Return Return Return
Company £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Prawvision at the start of the year 107 {350) (243) 1G7 {350) (243)
Accelerated caprtal allowances - - - - - -
Provision at the end of the year 107 {350) (243) 107 (350} (243)
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9  Eamings per share

Earnings per Ordinary share

The eatnings per Crdinary share can be analysed between revenue and capial, as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2018 2007

£000 £000

Net revenue profit 41,955 36,117
Net capital profit 130,247 46,868
Net total profit 172,202 82,985
Weighted average number of shares in issue dunng the year 317,350,980 3174350380
pence pence

Revenue earmings per share 13.22 1138
Capital earnings per share 41.04 14.76
54.26 26.14

Earnings per Ordinary share

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same

10 Investments held at fair value

2) Analysis of investments

Group Company Group Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

£000 £'000 £000 E£'00C

Listed in the United Kingdom 401,967 401,967 329,151 329,151
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 153 153 2 2
Listed Qverseas 815,915 815,915 718,319 718,319
Investment properties 98,011 98,011 57,304 97,304
Investrments held at farr value 1,316,046 1,316,046 1,144,776 1,144,776
Investments in subsidianes at fair value - 50,470 - 50,531
1,315,046 1,366,516 1,144,776 1,195,307

b) Gains on investments held at fair value

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

20619 2017

£000 £'000

Gains on sale of investments 71,647 81,756
Movement i investment holding gains 62,823 (29,083)
Gains on investments held at farr value 140,470 52,693

72 TR Property investment Trust



Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

10

Investments held at fair value continued

¢} Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

3t March addimons/ apprecation/ 31 March 31 March 3t March

2017 (disposais) {depreciation) 2018 2018 2017

E'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Listed imvestments 1,047.47C 40,952 129,460 1,217,882 40,267 35514
Unhsted investrnents 2 - 151 153 28 -
Direct property! 97,304 (10,152} 10,859 98,011 5.368 5,330
1,144,776 30,800 140,470 1,316,046 45,663 40,904

Contracts for difference? 2,146 (8,009) 6,358 495 4,624 4,357
1,146,922 22,79 146,828 1,316,541 50,287 45,361

In seeking to achieve its Investment objective, the Comipany invests in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also m investment property located in the UK The Company therefore considers
that there are two distinct reporting segments, listed investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance
and allocation of resources The Board, which s the principal decision maker, receves information on the two segments on

a regular basis Whilst revenue streams and direct property costs can be attnbuted to the reporting segments, general
adrministrative expenses cannat be sphit to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and grass revenues for
each segment are shown above.

The property costs incuded within note 3 are £1,947.000 (2017 £2,078,000) and deducting these casts from the direct
property gross revenue above would result in net income of £3,421,000 (2017, £3,252,000) for the direct property reporting
segment

d) Geographical segment reparting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net valuation revenue revenue

31 March addinons/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2017 (dhsposals) (deprecation} 2018 2018 007

E£'000 E'000 £'000 £000 £000D £000

UK hsted equities and convertibles 229,151 35,799 37017 401,967 10,838 8,600
UK unhsted equities 2 - 151 153 28 -
UK direct property’ 97304 (10,152) 10,859 98,011 5,368 5,336
Contnental European histed equities 718,319 5153 $2,443 815,915 29,429 26,953
European fixed interest - - - - - 21
1,144,776 30,800 140,470 1,316,046 45,663 40,904

UK contracts for difference’ 1,323 {6,635} 6,232 920 2,383 2,081
European contracts for difference? 823 (1,374} 126 (425) 2241 2,376
1,146,922 22,791 146,828 1,316,531 50,287 45,361

Included 1n the above figures are purchase costs of £470,000 (2017° £768,000) and sales costs of £211,000
{2017+ £298,000) These comprise manly stamp duty and commission

! Net additions/(disposals) indudes §930.000 (2017 E£1,177,000) of capital expenditure Net appreciation/(depreciatian) ndudes amounts in respect of rent
free penods
2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dnidends recewable, on an ex dmwdend basis, on the underiying positons held

e) Substantial share interests

The Group held interests n 3% or more of any class of capital in 8 companies we invest in. None of these investments 15
considered significant in the context of these financial statements See note 21 on page 86 for further detatls of subsidiary
nvestments
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Investments held at fair value continued

f} Fair value of financial assets and financial liahilities

Financial assets and financial habilites are carmed in the Balance Sheet either at ther far value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount 1s a reasonable approxmation of far value (due from brokers, dividends and interest recevable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1s significant to the far value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets
Leve! 2 — valued by reference to valuation techmques using observabie inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1(f) and 1(g)

The table below sets cut fair value measurements using IFRS 13 far value herarchy

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2018 £'000 £'000 £000 E000
Equity investments 1,217,882 - 153 1,218,035
Investment properties - - 98,011 98,011
Contracts for difference - 495 - 495
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 644 - 644
1,217,882 1,139 98,164 1,317,185

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2017 £000 £'000 E'000 £°000
Equity investments 1,047,470 - 2 1,047,472
Investment properties - - 97,304 97304
Contracts for difference - 2,146 - 2,146
1,047,470 2,146 97,306 1,146,922

The table above represents the Group’s far value hierarchy The Company's faw value hierarchy 15 identical except for the
inclusion of the fair value of the svestment in Subsidianes which at 31 March 2018 was £50,470,000 (2017: £50,531,000)
these have been categonsed as leve 3 1n both years. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2018
was £1,367,655,000 (2017 £1,197,453,000).

The movernent in the year of £61,000 1s the depreciation {2017: £2,521,000, £421,000 depreciation and £2,100,000
reclassification to a subsidiary intercompany account) n the perod
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Investments held at fair value continued

f) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

3i March Appreciation 31 March

2017 Purchases Sales (Depregation) 2018

At 31 March 2018 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Unlisted equity investments 2 - - 151 153
Investment Properties

— Mixed use 53,087 91 (292} 1,194 53,380

— Industrial 31,269 429 {4,290} 8,399 35,807

- Offices 12,948 410 (5,800) 1,260 8,824

97,304 830 (11,082) 10,859 98,011

97306 930} {11,082) 11,010 98,164

Al appreciation /{depreciation) as stated above relates to unhsied equity snvestrments and investment properties held at 31 March
2018 The Group held one unquoted mvestment at the year end (see 17 6 overleal)

Transfers between hierarchy levels

There were no transfers during the year between level 1 and level 2 nor between levels 1 or 2 and level 3
Key assumphions used in value in use calculations are explained in the accounting pohices in nate 1(f).
Sensitivity information

The significant unobservable inputs used in the far value measurement categonsed within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
Investment properties are

e [stimated rental value' £5-£50 per sq ft (2017 £4-£50 per sq ft)
e Capitalisabion rates: 3 20%-9 00% (2017 3 50%-9 75%).

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rentat value and rent growth in 1solation would result in a significantly higher
(lower) far value measurement. A sigmificant increase {decrease) i long-term vacancy rate in 1sclaticn would result in
a significaritly lower (tugher} fair value measurement,

Financial Instruments

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group nvests in equities and other nstruments for the fong term in the pursuit of the Investment Objective set out on

page 24. The Group 1s exposed to a vanety of nsks that could result in exther a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distrbution by way of dividends

The principal nisks the Group faces 1n 1ts portfolio management actvities are:
& Markel nisk {compnsing prce nsk, curency nsk and interest rate nsk).

® Liquidity nsk

e Credit sk,

The Manager's policies and processes for managing these risks are summansed on pages 28 to 30 and have been applied
throughout the year
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Financial Instruments continued

11.1  Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfolic actvity and performance at each board \
meeting. The Board monitors the investmenl activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives

The Group’s exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property pertfoho, was
as follows:

2018 2017
£000 £'000
Investments held at fair value 1,316,046 1,144,776
CFD long gross exposure 125,677 114,186

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out 1n the Investment Policies on page 25, there are gudehines to the amaount of exposure to a single company,
geographical region or direct property These guidelines ensure an appropnate spread of exposure to individual or sector price
nsks. As an Investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group (s exposed to price movements across
the property asset class as a whole

Price risk sensitivity

The following table lustrates the sensitty of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fa values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level
of change is consistent with the lllustration shown in the previous year The sensitmty based on the Group's equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other vanables held constant

2018 2018 2017 2017

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value n fair value n fair value

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Staternent of Comprehensive Income ~ profit after tax

Revenue return (92) 92 (77} 77
Captal retumn 197,241 {197,241) 171,832 (171,832)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/shareholders’ funds 197,149 (197,149) 171,755 (171,755)
Change to total earnings per Crdinary share 62.12p (62.12)p 54.12p (54.12)p

11.2 Currency risk
A proportion of the Group's porifalio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates,

Management of the risk

The Board recewes a report at each board meeting on the preportion of the investment portfolio held in Sterdling, Euros or other
currercies The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozane by funding mvestments in
overseas secunties with unsecured loans denominated 1n the same currency or through forward currency contracts

Cash deposits are held 1n Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11.2  Currency risk continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure.
(Sterhng has been shown for reference)

Currency 2018 2017
Sterhing 29.1% 35 1%
Eura 56.9% 51.9%
Swedish Krena 8.0% 7 3%
Other 6.0% 5 7%

Ihe following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency nsk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the

net monetary assets and habilites:

Swedish

Sterling turo Krona Other

2018 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Recewables (due from brokers, dnvadends and other income recenvable) 71,535 24,450 - -
Cash at bank and on deposit 3,523 12,773 561 1,257
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (56,000) (43,875} - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) {11,428) (170) - -
FX forwards (78,883} 63,282 (16,940) 33,185
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary iterms {135,253) 56,460 {16,379} 34,442
I'vestments held at fair value 500,131 658,333 116,951 40,631
Norcurrent assets 243 - - -
Total currency exposure 365,121 714,793 100,572 75,073

Swedish

Stethng Eure Krona Other

2017 E'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Recevables (due from brokers, dividends and other income recewable} 30,993 7,030 786 -
Cashi at bank and on deposit 3,403 2,157 446 459
Bark loans, loan notes and overdrafts (20,000) (42,768) - -
Payables (due (o brokers, accruals and cther creditors) (3617) (1,460} (474} (2,736)
FX forwards (70,277 47,070 - 22,413
CFD Positions (Gross exposure) 65,119 48,067 - -
Total foregn currency expasure on net manetary tems 5,621 61,076 758 20,136
investments held at fair value 426,457 578,309 88,931 51,079
Non-current assets 243 - - -
Total currency exposure 432 371 639,385 89,689 71,215

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitvity of the profit after tax for the year on the Croup’s equity i regard to the exchange

rates for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies

It assurnes the following changes 1 exchange rates.
Sterling/Euro +/-15% (2017°15%)
Sterling/Swedish Krona +/-15% (2017:15%)
Stering/Other +/~15% (2017:15%)
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Financial Instruments contnued

11.2 Currency risk continued
Foreign currency sensitivity continued

If Sterling had strengthened against the currenaies shown, this would have the following effect:

Year ended March 1018

Year ended March 2017

Swedish Swedish

Euro Krona Other Euro Krona Cther

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000
Staterment of Comprehenswe Income — profit after tax
Revenue return {2,841) {231) (235) (2,454) (288) 307
(apital retumn (80,441} (15,231} (5.291) (68,933) (13,093) (6653)
Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds (B3,282) (15,462) (5526) (71,447) {13,381) (6346)
2018 2017
Change to total eamings per Ordinary share (32.86)p (28 72)p
If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect
Year ended March 3018 Year ended March 2017
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Other Euro Krona Gther

£000 £000 £000 £'G00 £00C £000
Statement of Comprehenswe Income -~ profit after tax
Reveriue returm 4,483 271 310 3,960 354 770
Capital retumn 115241 20,622 7164 101,810 17,727 9,000
Change to the profit after tax for the year/shareholders’

funds 119,725 20,893 7474 105,770 18,081 9,770
2018 2017

Change to total earmings per Ordmary share 46.67p 4209p

11.3 Interest rate risk

interest rate movements may affect”

the far value of any investments in fixed interest secunties;

the far value of the loan notes;

the level of income recewvable from cash at bank and on depostt,
the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans, and

” ® & 8 9

the prices of the underlying secunties held in the pertfolios

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account

wher making mvestment deasions Property compames usually have borrawings themselves and the level of gearing and
structure of 1ts debt portiolio 15 a key factor when assessing the investment 1n a property company.

The Group has fixed and variable rate borrowings The interest rates on the Ioan notes 1s fixed, detalls are set outin note 13 In
addition to the loan notes the Group had unsecured, mutti-currency revolving loan faciliies which carry vanable rates of interest
based on the currencies drawn, plus a margin. These facilines total £65,000,000 (2017 £70,000,000).

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (ie the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the "see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underying investments, when considerng the
investment portfoho These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.
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11.3 Interest rate risk continued

Management of the risk continued
The majerty of the Group's investment portfolio 15 non-interest bearng, As a result the Group's financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of nsk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates

Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financal liabilines to nterest rate nsk 15 shown by reference to

» floating interest rates when the interest rate 1s due to be ra-set,

e fixed interest rates when the finandial instrument 1s due to be repad

The Group's exposure 1o floating interest rates on assels 1s £42,564,000 {2017: £27,943,000)

The Group's exposure to fixed nterest rates on assets” Enil (2017: £nil)

The Group's exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilites £58,875,000 (2017 £57,768,00C)

The Group's exposure to floaung isterest rates on habiliies £41,000,000 (2017 £5,000,000).

Interest recewvable and finance costs are at the following rates

e Interest receved on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at @ margin over LIBOR or s foreign cumency egunvalent (2017: same)

® Interest paid on borrowings under the mult-currency loan facilitics, s at & margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivelent
for the type of loan (2017 same)

& The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates of 1 920 and 3.53% respectively

The year end amounts are not representative of the expasure to interest rates dunng the year as the level of exposure changes as

nvestments are made in fixed interest secunties, borrowsngs are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between

floating and fixed interest rates changes

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% an interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2018 1018 2017 2017

1% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decsease

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Change to sharehalders’ funds {928) 928 (557) 557
Change to total earings per Ordinary share {0.29)p 0.29p {(018)p o18p

This level of change 15 not representative of the year as a whale, since the exposure changes throughout the penod This
assessment does not take wite account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the nvestments the Group
holds,

i1.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted snvestments in the portfolio are subject to hquidity nsk The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end
{see 11 6 below).

In certain market conditions, the iquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2018, 7% (2017: 8%j of
the Group’s investment portfoho was held in direct property investments

AL 31 March 2018, 93% (2037; 92%) of the Group's investment portfolio 1s held in listed securities which are predormunantly
readdy realisable

Bank fcan facilities are short term revolving loans which it 15 intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain
Loan notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to setile the Group’s current habilives together with anticipated interest costs
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Financial Instruments continued

11.4 Liquidity risk continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile:

Within Within Within Within Within  More than

1 year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears  4-5years 5 years Total

At 31 March 2018 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 €000 £000

Bank loans* 41,000 - - - - - 41,000

Loan notes - - - - - 58,875 58,875
Projected interest cash flows on bank and

loan notes 1,888 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 6,834 13,246

Accruals and deferred income 11,160 - - - - - 11,160

Other creditors 383 ~ - - - - 383

54,431 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 65,7093 115,664

within within Within within withn  More than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total

At 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Bank lpans* 5,000 - - - - - 5,000

Loan notes — - - - - 57768 57768
Projected interest cash flows on bank and

loan notes 1,43 1,360 1,360 1,360 1,360 8,130 14,983

Securities and properties purchased for
future settlement 5,869 - - - - - 5,869
Foreign exchange forward contracts for

setllement 794 - - - - - 794

Accruals and deferred mcome 2,090 - - - - - 2,090

Other creditors 328 - - - - - 328

15,494 1,360 1,360 1,360 1,360 65,898 86,832

* A E40m one year multucurrency faclity wath RBS expred in January 2018, £35m was renewed for one year untl January 2012 £31m was drawn an this
facilty 2t the balance sheet date. A £30m one year facility with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2017 £10m was drawn on this faciny at the balance
sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property iInvestments. These are
set aut in the Investment Polices on page 25 All unguoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments
with a value over £5m must be approved by the Board for purchase

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well
ahead of facility renewal dates In additon the Company s exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing
basis.

11.5 Creditrisk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the penod end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £24,450,000 (2017 E22,882,000).

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are camead cut with 2 number of brokers, whose credit standing 1s reviewed penodically by the Manager,
and limuts are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings
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11.5 Credit risk continued
Credit risk exposure

In summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 March was as follows.

2018 2018 2017 2017

Balance Maximum Balance Maxmum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £'600 £000 £000

Debtaors 32,574 32,574 38,809 38,809
Cash and cash equwalents 18,114 18,114 6,445 6,445
50,688 50,688 45,254 45,254

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual nghts and to secure rights that wilt help the Group mibgate 1ts counterparty nsk, the Group
may enter intc an ISDA Master Agreernent or simitar agreement with its OTC derwvative contract counterparties An ISDA Master
Agreement 1s an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC denvatives and foreign exchange
contracts and typically contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a default
and/or termination event. Under an I1SDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual nght to offset wath the counterparty
certain denvative financial instruments payables and/or recevables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net
payment n the event of default including the bankruptey or insalvency of the counterparty However, bankruptcy or insolvency
laws of a particular junsdiction may impose restnctions on or prahibions against the nght of offset in bankiuplcy, Insolvency or

other events

The disclosures set out In the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable

master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group's derivative assets and habilities (by type) are as follows
Year ended 2018

Gross

amounts of

recognised

financial

liabilities

Gross set off
amounts of in the
recognised Statement
financial of Financial

Year ended 2017

Gross
Net amounts of Net
amounts recognised amaounts
of financial finangial  of financal
assets liahues assets
presented Gross setoff  presented
inthe amounts of n the in the
Statement  recognised  Statement  Staternent

of Financial

finangal  of Financal  of Finanaial

assets Position Position assets Pasiton Position
£'000 £000 £000 £'00Q £'000 £'000
Description
CFD positions 2,228 (1,733} 495 2,305 {159 2,146
FX foraard contracts 145,783 (145,139} 644 86,919 (87713) {794)
148,011 (146,872) 1,139 89,224 (87,872 1,352
Year ended 2018 Year ended 2017
Net amounts of Met amounts of
financial assets finanaial assets
presented in the presented n the
Statement of Cash Statement of Cash
Financial collateral Financial collateral
Position pledged Position pledged
£000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Counterparties
NG 495 24,450 2,46 22,882
8NP Parnibas 644 - (794) -
1,139 24,450 1,352 22,882
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Financial instruments continued

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost, the fair values of the financial assets and financial habilmes are
etther carned in the balance sheet at thew far value (investments) or the balance sheet amount s a reasonable approximation of
fair value (debiors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments)

The fair values of the hsted investments are derived from the dlosing pnce or last traded price at winch the secunties are quoted
on the London Stock Exchange and other recogmsed exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amaount
due from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or hability accordingly.

The fair values of the properties are derved from an open market {Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet
date by an independent firn of valuers (Frank Knight)

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £153,000 {2017 Nanette, £2,000).
The amaunts of change in fair value for investments recognised in the profit or loss for the year was a profit of £146,828,000
(2017. profit of £51,192,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management objectives are

® to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concerm, and

* 10 mawmise the total retumn to 1ts equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt

The equity capttal of the Group at 31 March 2018 consisied of called up share capital, share premium, capital redermption and
revenue reserves totalling £1,255,559,000 (2017: £1,118,424,000). The Group does not regard the loan notes and loans as

permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires comphiance with a set of financial covenants, ncluding:

e Total Barrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value,

e the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all tmes be equwalent to @ muinimusm of 300% of Total Borrowings, and

e the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

Debtors
Group Company Croup Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
£'000 E£'000 E'000 £000
Amounts falling due wathin one year
Secunties and praperties sold for future settlement 269 269 8557 8,557
Tax recoverable 1,296 1,174 728 608
Prepayments and accrued ncome’ 4,537 4,537 4,755 4,755
Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 644 644 - -
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference 495 495 2,146 2,146
Other debtars® 25,333 25,333 22,623 22,623
32,574 32,452 18,809 38,687
Nan-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 243 243 243 243

ncludes amounts i respect of rent free periods
Zincludes CFD margin cash of £24,450,000 (2017 £21,498,000)
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13 Current and non-current liabilities

Group Company Croup Company
2018 2018 2017 2017
E£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 41,000 41,000 5,000 5,000
Securities and properties purchased for future settlement - - 5,869 5,869
Amounts due to subsidianes - 50,361 - 50,350
Accruals and deferred income 11,160 11,139 2,090 2,080
Other creditors 383 377 328 322
Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement - - 794 794
52,543 102,887 14,081 654,465

Nor-current habilities

1 92% Eurc Loan Notes 2026 43,875 43,875 42,768 42,768
X 5906 GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
28,875 58,875 57768 57,768

The total amount of secured creditors 1s £nil (2017: £rvl)

Loan Notes
On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued | 92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3 59% Unsecured GBP
15,000,000 Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively

The far value of the 1 92% Euro Loan Notes was £44,003,000 (2017 £42,918,000) and the 3 59% CGBP Loan Notes was
£15,271,000 (2017. £15,511,000) at 31 March 2018 Using the (FRS 13 fair vaiue hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be
categonsed within Level 2.

The foan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of finanaial covenants, including:

e Total Borrowangs shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value,

o the Adussted Total Assets shall at alt imes be equivalent to a munimum of 3000% of Total Borrowangs; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group comphed with the terms of the loan notes agreement threughout the year
Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalhng £65,000,000 (2017: £70,000,000}
at 31 March 2018, At 31 March 2018 £41,000,000 was drawn on these facilies (2017: £5,000,000)

The matunty of these faciliies and detail of their renewal 1s shown in notes 11.3 and 11 4

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term

debt debt Total

Group and Company £000 £000 £000

Opening liabilities from financing activites at 31 March 2017 57.768 5,000 62,768
Cash flows'

Drawdown of bank loans - 36,000 36,000

Movement on foreign exchange 1,107 - 1,107

Closing habilities from finanang actvities at 31 March 2018 58,875 41,000 99,875
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i

Current and non-current liabilities continued
Net debt

Net debt mdudes the value of the loan nates, foans, the notional exposure ta CFDs, less cash (including cash collaterat held by
the CFD provider which is shown as a debtor in the financial Staternents) as a proportion of equity shareholders’ funds,

The net geanng has been calculated as follows.

Group Group

2018 2017

£000 £000

Loan notes 58,875 57768
Loans 41,000 5,000
CFD positions {notional exposure) 125,677 114,186
Less Cash (18,114) (6,445)
Less' Cash collatera! (iIncluded within *Other debtors’ in Note 12) (24,450} (21,498)
182,988 143,011

Equity shareholders’ funds 1,255,559 1,118,424
Net geanng 14.6% 13.3%

Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital

The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share

capital compnsing Ordinary shares ot 25p

issued, allotted

and fully paid
Number E'000

Ordinary shares of 25p
AtV Apnl 2017 317.350,980 79,338
Shares repurchased - -
At 31 March 2018 317,350,980 79,338

The voting nghts are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 38.

During the year, the Company rmade no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (20171 150,000). In

the priar year the aggregate consideration paid by the Company for the shares was £455,000.

Since 31 March 2018 no Ordinaty shares have been purchased and cancelled

Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account

The balance classified as share prermum includes the premium abeve nominal value from the proceeds on sssue of the equity

share capral comprising Ordinary shares of 25p,

Capital redemption reserve

The caputal redemption reserve 15 used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company's own

shares in order to maintain the Company's capital.
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Retained earnings

Group Company Croup Company

2018 2018 2017 2017

£000 £'600 £'000 £'000

Investment holding gains 404,279 435,779 335,083 367644
Realised capital reserves 621,391 594,708 560,340 533,656
1,025,670 1,031,487 895,423 901,300

Revenue reserve 63,418 57,601 56,530 50,653
1,089,088 1,089,088 951,853 951,953

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2018 include a £1,179,000 loss (2017 £1,348,000 loss) relating to unhisted
nvestments and gans of £41,246,000 (2017: £33,518,000) relating to investment properties.

Company Investment holding gains at 31 March 2018 include gains of £72,568,000 (2017 £64,730,000) relating to unlisted
and subsidiary investments with a £40, 106,000 revaluaton gan (2017 £32,378,000 gany relating fo investment properties

Divdends are only distrbutable from the revenue reserve

Dividends
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2018 2057
E'000 £'0C0
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders In the year.
Final dwvidend for the year ended 31 March 2017 of 6 40p
{20(16: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 20,310 16,510
tnterim dwadend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 4 65p
(2017. 4.10p) per Qrdinary share 14,757 13,01
35,067 29521
Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders 10 the year:
Propased final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 7.55p
(2017. 6.40p) per Ordinary share 23,960 20,310

The final dividend has not been included as a hability in these financial statements 1n accordance with IAS 10 “Events after the

Balance Sheet Date”

Set out below 1s the total dwidend to be paid in respect of the year This 15 the basis on which the requirements of s 1158 of the

Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 21 March
2008 2017
£000 £000
Intenm dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 465p

(2017: 4 10p) per Ordinary share 14,757 13,001

Proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 7.55p
(2017: 6.40p) per Ordinary share 23,960 20,310
38,17 33,321

e
il

SINIWIIVLS TWIDNYNIS



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

20

21

86

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has nat presented its own Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The net profit after taxation of the Comparny dealt with in the accounts of the Group was
£172,202,000 (2017, £82,985,000)

Net asset value per Ordinary share

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attnbutable to Ordinary shares of £1,255,558,000 (2017
£1,118,424,000) and on 317,350,980 (2017. 317.350,980) Ordinary shares in 1ssue at the year end.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 the Group had no capital commitments or contingent habilites

Subsidiaries

The Group has the following subsicianes, all of which are registered and operating in Scetland, England and Wales:

Name Reg. Number Principal activity
New England Properties bimited 788895 Non-trading company
The Cclonnades Limued 2826672 Non-trading company
Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading cormpany
Trust Unien Propertes Residential Developments Lirmted 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Limited 2415846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Inyestment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading cormnpany
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018 Nor-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limted 2415836 Non trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Uron Properties (Nurnber Ten) Lirmited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Urvon Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Nen-trading company
Trust Union Propetties {Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Nen-trading company
Trust Urion Properties {(Number Thirteen) Lirmited 2415818 Nor-trading company
Trust Union Properyies (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading cornpany
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Nen-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading cormpany
Trust Urion Properties {(Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment
Frust Union Properties (Cardiffy Limited 2415772 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 2416031 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properyes (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company
Skillion Finance Limited 2420758 Nan-trading company
Trust Urwon Finance (1991) Plic 2663561 Investment financing
FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Nor-trading compary
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited {E18030) 568799 Non-trading company
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Subsidiaries continued

Name Reg. Number Principal activity
FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Non-trading company
NEP (1994) Limitad 977481 Non-trading company
New England Developments Lirnited 1385909 Non-trading company
New England Investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Norrtrading company
Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading cormpany
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company
Trust Urion Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company
TR Property Finance Limited 2415941 Investment holding and finance company
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-rading company

The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidianes in order for them to take the exemption from the
requrement of an audit, in ine with the requirements of 5.479A of the Comparies Act 2006

All the subsidianes are wholly owned and al! the holdings are ordinary shares

All companies have the registered office of 11 12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which 1s registered to 50 Lothwan Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY

Related party transactions disclosures

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consahdaton

Amounts due by the Company to subsidianes per note 13

2018 2017

E'000 £000

The Colennades Limited 12,619 22,619
TR Property Finance Limited 27,762 27,791
New England Properties Limited (20) (20)
50,361 50,390

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
speafied in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneraton Report on pages 48
and 49.

Directors' transactions

Transactions 1n shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of therr role as directors
Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’' Remuneration Report on page 49 Dividends ttalling
£10,000 (2017. £8,000) were paid in the year n respect of shares held by the Company's directers.
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive ("AIFMD")

in accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation to the Company's leverage and remuneration of the Company's AIFM, F&C
investment Business Limited, is required to be made available to investors. Detailed regulatory disclosures including those on the
AIFM'’s remuneraticn policy are available on the F&C website or from F&C on request. The numencal remuneration disclosures in
relation to the AIFM's first relevant accounting period will be made available in due course

Leverage
Under the AIFM Directive, it is necessary for AlFs to disclose their leverage in accordance wath prescribed calculations

Althaugh leverage is often used as ancther termn for geanng, under the AIFMD leverage is speafically defined Two types of
leverage calculations are defined, the gross and commitment methods These methods summanly express leverage as a ratio of
the expasure of the AIF against its net asset value, ‘Exposure” typically inciudes debt, the value of any physical properties subject
ta mertgage, non- sterling currency, equity or currency hedging at absolute notional values (even those held purely for risk
reduction purposes, such as forward foreign exchange contracts held for currency hedging) and dervative exposure (converted
nte the equivalent underlyng posiions) The commitment method nets off denvative instruments, while the gross method
aggregates them

The tabie betow sets out the current maximum permitted frmit and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2018

Leverage exposure Gross method Commitment method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 127% 125%

The leverage limits are set by the AIFM and approved by the Board and are in ine with the imits set out in the Company's
Articles of Association

This should not be confused with the gearing set out in the Finanaal Highlights which is calculated under the tradiional method
set out by the Assocation of Investment Companies The AIFM 15 also required to comply with the geanng parameters set by the
Board in relation to borrowings.

TR Property Investment Trust



Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE 15 IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you should seek your own adwice from a stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other

independeant profassional adwiser

If vou have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares, please pass this document, together with the accompanying documents to the
purchaser, or transferee, or to the persen who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents to the person who now

holds the shares.

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the "Compary™) will be held at
2 00 pm on 24 July 2018 at Royal Automobile Club, 89/91

Pall Mall, Londen SW1Y 5HS for the purpese of transacing the
following business.

To consider and, f thaught fit, pass the following Reselutions,
of which Resolutions 1 to 11 will be proposed as QOrdinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 and 13 shall be proposed as
Special Resolutions

1 To receve the Report of the Dwectors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018.

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 March 2018

To declare a final drdend of 755p per Ordinary share.
To re-elect Simon Marmison as a director

To reelect Suzie Procter as a director,

To re-elect Hugh Seaborn as a director

To re-efect David Watson as a director

To elect Tim Giilbanks as a director

W 0O =~ o B W

To re-appont KPMG LLP as auditers of the Company to hold
office unti the conclusion of the next Annual General Meefing
of the Company

10 To authonse the directors to determine the remuneration of
the audchtors,

11 THAT the directors be generally and uncondrionally authonsed
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the "Adt”) to exerase all the powers of the
Company to allat shares in the Company and to grant nghts to
subscnbe for, or fo convert any secunty into, shares in the
Company up to a nominal value of £25,181,455 {being
approximately 33% of the total 1ssued share capnal of the
Company as at the latest prachcable date pnor to publication of
this Notice) provided that this authonity shall expire at the date of
the next Annual Ceneral Meeting of the Company (or, f earlier, at
the dose of business an 24 October 2019), save that the
Company shall be entided to make offers or agreements before
the expiry of this authonty which would or rmght require shares
to be allotted or nghts to be granted after such expiry and the
directors shail be entitled to allot shares and grant rights pursuant

to any such offers or agreements as if this authorty had not
expired.

12 THAT

(a) (subject to the passing of Resolution 11 set cut above) the
directors be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and
Section 57% of the Act to allot equity secunties {as defined
in Section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authorty
conferred by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares
held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as if
Sechion 567(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be lmited to

{n the allotment of equity secunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash in connection with an offer of, or
nwitaton to apply for, equity secunues:

(a3} to sharebolders in proporhon (as nearly as may
be practicable} to therr existng holdings, and

(bb)to holders of other equity secunties, as required
by the nghts of those secunties, or as the Board
otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any kmits or
restnctions and make any arrangements which it
considers necessary or apprapriate to deal wath treasury
shares, frachional entitlemnents, record dates, legal,
regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of,
any temitcry or any other matter; and

(v} in the case of the authonty granted under Resolution 11
and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares for
cash, to the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph () above) of equity secunties or sale of
treasury shares up to a rorminal amaunt of £3,966,887
(being approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the netice of mesting),

(b) the power grven by this resclution shall expire upon the
expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 11 above,
save that the Company shall be entitled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securites to be allotted after such
expiry and the directors shall be entitied to allot equity
securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if
the power conferred hereby had not expired
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13 THAT the Cormpany be and 1s hereby generally and
uncondiionally authonsed n accordance with Section 701
of the Act to make market purchases (within the mearing
of Secticn 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each
in the capital of the Company on such terms and n such
manner as the directors may from time to ume determine
provided that

(a) the maxmum number of Ordinary shares hereby
authonsed to be purchased shall be 14 99% of the
Company’s Ordimary shares in 1ssue at the date of the
Annual General Meeting (equivalent to 47,570,911
Ordinary shares of 25p each at 5 June 2018, the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this Notice),

(b) the maxmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shaff not be more than the
higher of:

() 105% of the average of the middle rmarket
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken from the
Landon Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days immediately preceding the date
on which the Company agrees to buy the shares
concerned: and

(1) the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Ordinary share in the Company on the trading venue
where the purchase is carded out at the relevant time;

a0 TR Property Investment Trust

(<) the mmimum pnce {exclusive of expenses) which may

(d

~—

be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, being the
nominal value per Ordmary share; and

the authority hereby conferred shall exprre at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company 1n 2019, save that the Company shall be
entiled to enter into a contract to purchase Ordinary
shares which will, or may, be completed or executed
wholly ar partly after the power expires and the Company
may purchase Ordinary shares pursuant to such contract
as if the power conferred hereby had not expired

Registered Officer

Registered in England No. 84492
1112 Hanover Street

tondon

W15 1YQ

By Order of the Board

For and on behalf of

Link Company Matters
Secretary

6 June 2018
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DireCﬂOHS Pall Mall Clubhouse

The Royal Automaobile Club has a dress code: Jacket
and tie

Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Members are enutled to appont 2 proxy to exeraise all or any
of therr nghts 1o attend and to speak and vote on their behalf
at the meeting. A sharehelder may appoint more than one
proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”)
provided that each proxy is appomted to exercise the nghts
attached to a different share or shares held by that
shareholder. A groxy need net be a shareholder of the
Company To appeint moere than one pioxy, the proxy form
should be photocopied and the name of the proxy to be
appeinted ndicated on each proxy form together with the
number of shares that such proxy ts appointed n respect of

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing

a proxy must be returned by post, by couner or by hand to the
Company's Registrars, Computershare Investor Senices PLC,
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bnstol B599 6ZY, or
alternatively, by going to www eproxyappointment.com and
following the instructions provided. All proxies must be
appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of the
AGM. The retum of a cempleted proxy farm or other such
instrument will not prevent a shareholder attending the AGM
and voting m persan if he/she wishes to do so.

In arder to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meetng (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may cast), a persen must have
his/her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 6,00 pm on 22 July 2018 {or 600 pm on the

date two days before any adjoumed meeung) Changes to
entnes on the Register of Members after this tme shall be
disregarded n determining the nghts of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may
be required to publish on a website a statement setting out
any matter refating to: (i) the audit of the Company's accounts
(ncluding the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit)
that are to be laid before the AGM, or () any crcumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold
office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts
and reports were laid 1n accordance with Section 437 of the
Companies Act 2006

The Company may not require the shareholders raquesting
any such website publication to pay 1is expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where
the Company 1s required to place a staternent on a website
under Section 527 of the Comparies Act 2006, it must
forward the staternent to the Company's auditor not later than
the tme when 1t makes the statement available on the
website. The business which may be dealt with at the AGM
indudes any statement that the Company has been required
under Section 527 of the Companes Act 2006 to pubhsh on
a website

Any corporation which 15 a member of the Company can
appoint one of More corporate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so 1n relabion to the same shares.

The nght to appeint & proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on thewr behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to receve communication from the
Company in accordance with Section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 (“nominaed persons™). Nominated persons may
have a nght under an agreement with the regsstered
shareholder who holds shares an their behalf to be apponted
{or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively,
if nominated persens do not have such a nght, or do nat wish
to exercise it, they may have & nght under such an agreement
to give instructions ta the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may
do so for the AGM 10 be held on 24 July 2018 and any
adjournment{s) thereof by using the precedures descnbed in
the CREST Manual CREST persanal members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appainted a votng service provider should refer to thex
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CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s), who will be able
to take the appropriate action on therr behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or nstruction made by means
of CREST to be valid, the appropnate CREST message

(a "CREST Proxy nstruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Eurodear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contan the information required for such instructions,
as descnbed in the CREST Marnual The message must be
transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent,
Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST Participant 1D,
3RA50), no later than 48 hours before the tme appointed for
the meetng For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken
to be the time (as determined by the tme stamp apphed to the
message by the CREST Application Host) from which the
Company's agent 1s able to retnave the message by enquiry to
CREST m the manner prescribed by CREST,

CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsor
or voting service provider should note that Eurodlear UK &
ireland Limited does not make available special procedures
CREST for any particular messages

Normoal systern trmings and limitatons will therefore apply in
relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions, it is the
responsibiity of the CREST member concerned to take {or, if
the CREST mernber is a CREST personal member or sponsored
member or has appainted a voting service provider, to procure
that hus CREST sponsar ar voting service provider takes} such
achion ag shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s
transmitted by means of the CREST systerm by any particular
time In this connechion, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsar or vating service provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical hmntations of the CREST system and
timings. The Company may tregt as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruchion i the arcumistances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncertficated Securties Regulations 2001.

Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask
questions The Company must cause to be answered any such
question relating to the business being deak with at the meeting
but no such answer need be gven it (2) to do so would interfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidential infarmatior; (b) the answer has already
been given on a website i the form of an answer to a question,
or (€} 15 undesirable n the interests of the Company or the
good order of the meeting that the question be answered.

A copy of this notice, and other mformation required by
section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
VAN Irproperty.com.

TR Praperty investment Tiust
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Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338 of the
Cornpanies Act 2006 may require the Company to gwe, 1o
mernbers of the Company entitled to receve notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution which those members ntend to
move {and which may propeily be moved) at the AGM

A resolunon may properly be moved at the AGM unless’

) it would, f passed, be neffectve (whether by reason of any
inconsistency with any enactment or the Company's
constitution or otherwise), (1) it is defamatory of any person;
or (i) it is frvolous or vexatous A request made pursuant to
this nght may be in hard copy or electronic form, must sdentify
the resolution of which notice 1s to be gven, must be
authenticated by the person(s) making it and must be
received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM.

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 3384 of the
Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to include 1n
the business ta be dealt with at the AGM any matter (other
than a proposed resclution) which may properly be included
in the business at the AGM. A matter may properly be
included in the business at the AGM unless: (i) it1s
defamatory of any person; or (i) 1t 1s frvolaus or vexatious

A request made pursuant to this nght may be in hard copy or
electronic form, must identify the matter to be induded in the
business, must be accompanied by a statement seting out the
grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the
person(s) making it and must be received by the Company
not later than six weeks before the date of the AGM

Biographical details of the directors are shown on page 33 of
the Annual Report & Accounts

As at 5 June 2018 (being the latest practicable day pnor to
pubhcation of this Notice), the issued share capial of the
Company 15 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each
Therefore, the total number of voting rights n the Company at
5 june 2018 1s 317,350,980.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Letters of Appeintment for directors wall
be avallable for inspection for at least 15 minutes prior to and
duning the Company's AGM

You may nat use any electronic address provided etther in this
Notice or any related docurments to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated.



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2 and 3: Accounts,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation
of the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Repert and the dedlaration of the fina!
dividend The vote to approve the remuneration report

is advisory only and will not require the Company to

alter any arangements detailed in the report should the
resolution not be passed.

Resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8: Election and
Re-election of directors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Stmon
Marrison, Suzie Procter, Hugh Seabom and David Watson.
This being the Company's first AGM since Tim Gillbanks’
appointment, he will seek election by Shareholders.

In accordance with the UK Comporate Covernance Code, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed
that they will offer themselves for re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your
Board has determined that each of the directors continues
to be effective and demonstrates therr commitment to
thair role.

Resolutions 9 and 10: Auditors

These deal with the reappcintment of the auditors, KPMG
LLP, and the authonsation for the directors to determine
their remuneration.

Resolution 11: Allotment of share capital

Qur Board considers it appropnate that an authanty be
granted to allot shares in the capital of the Company up
to a maximum nominal amount of £26,181,455
{representing approximately 33% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at 5 June 2018, being the latest
practical date prior to publication of this Notice of the
meeting). As at the date of this netice the Company does
not hold any shares In treasury.

The directors have no present intention of exeraising this
authority and would only expect to use the authonty if
shares could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net
Asset Value per share.

This authonty will expire @t the earhier of close of business
on 24 October 2019 and the conclusion of the annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019.

Resolution 12: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

This resclution would give the directors the autharity to
allot shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects
to hold in treasury) for cash without first offenng them to
existing sharehotders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings

This authority would be limited to allotments or sales 1n
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders
of other equity securities if required by the rights of those
shares or as the board otherwise considers necessary, or
otherwise up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£3,966,887. This aggregate nominal amount represents
5% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company as at
5 June 2018, the latest practicable date prior to
publication of this Notice in respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention to
follow the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's
Statement of Principles regarding cumulative usage of
authortties within a roling 3-year pencd where the
Principles provide that usage in excess of 7.5% should not
take place without prior consultation with shareholders.

The authority will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 24 October 2019 and the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019,

Resolution 13: Authority to make Market
Purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

At the AGM held on 25 July 2017, a special resolution was
proposed and passed, giving the directors authority, until
the conclusion of the ACM in 2018, to make market
purchases of the Company’s own issued shares up to

a maximum of 14.99% of the issued share capital.

Your Board is proposing that they should be given
renewed authonty to purchase Crdinary shares in the
market Your Board believes that 1o make such purchases
in the market at appropriate times and prices is a suitable
method of enhancing shareho!der value. The Company
would, within guidelines set from time o time by the
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SHAREHCOLDER INFORMATION

Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

Board, make either a single purchase or a series of
purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders.

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing
Net Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset
Value for the remaining shareholders, ft 1s therefore
intended that purchases would only be made at prices
below Net Asset Value. Your Board considers that it will be
most advantageous to shareholders for the Company to be
able to make such purchases as and when it considers the
timing to be favourable and therefore daes not propose to
set a tmetable for making any such purchases.

The Companies (Acquistion of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 enable companies in the United
Kingdom to hold in treasury any of their own shares they
have purchased with a view to possible resale at a future
date, rather than canceling them. If the Company does
re-purchase any of its shares, the directors do not currently
intend to hold any of the shares re-purchased in treasury.
The shares so re-purchased will continue 1o be cancelled.

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority imit the
maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for any such share !t shall not be more than the
higher of:

() 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
Company agrees to buy shares concerned; and

(i the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Ordinary share in the Company on the trading venue
where the purchase is carried out.

The minimum price to be pad will be 25p per Ordinary
share (being the nominal value). The Listing Rules also limit
a listed company to purchases of shares representing up to
15% of its issued share capital in the market pursuant to a
general authonty such as this. For this reason, the Company
I5 limiting its authority to make such purchases to 14.99%
of the Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the
AGM; this is equivalent to 47,570,911 Ordinary shares of
25p each (nominal value £11,892,727) at 5 June 2018,
the latest practicable date prior to publication this Notice.
The authority will last until the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in 2019.

94 TR Property Irvestment Trust

Recommendation

Your Board beheves that the resolutions contained in this
Notice of Annual General Meeting are in the best interests
of the Company and shareholders as a whole and
recommends that you vote in favour of them as your
Directors intend to do i respect of their beneficial
shareholdings.



Directors and Other Information

Directors

H Seabom {Chairman)
T Gillbanks

S Marrisgn

S Procter

D Watson

Registered Office

3rd Floor
11-~12 Hanover Street
London W1S 1YQ

Registered Number

Registered as an investment cormpany in England
and Wales No 84492

AlFM

F&C Investment Business Limited
Exchange House

Primrose Street

London ECZA 2NY

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Capital LLP, authonsed and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority

3rd Floor

1112 Hanover Street

London W15 1YQ

Telephone: 020 7011 4100

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager and Investor Relations
J L Elliott ACA

Deputy Fund Manager

A Lhonneur

Direct Property Manager
G P Gay MRICS

®
The Association of
investment Companies

Secretary

Link Company Matters Ltd
65 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7NQ

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road
Bristol B399 6ZY

Telephone: 0370 707 1355

Auditor

KPMC LLP
15 Canada Square
London E14 SGL

Stockbrokers

Cenkos Securities plc
6, 7. 8 Tokenhouse Yard
London EC2ZR 7AS

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
150 Cheapside
London EC2V 6ET

Solicitors

Slaughter and May
Gne Bunhill Row
London EC1Y 8YY

Depositary, Custodian and Fund
Administrator

BNP Paribas Securities Services
7 Harewood Avenue
London NW1 G6AA

Website

WWW.ITproperty.com

Tax Advisers

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Central Square South

Orchard Sireet

Newcastle upon Tyne NE1 3AZ
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

General Shareholder Information

Release of Results

The half year results are announced In late fNovember. The
full year resufts are announced in early lune.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM is held in London in July.

Dividend Payment Dates

Dvidends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as
follows:

Interim: January

Final: August

Dividend Payments

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
{Bankers' Autornated Clearing Semvices); mandate forms
for thus purpose are available from the Registrar,
Alternatwely, shareholders can wnte to the Registrar

(the address 1s given on page 95 of this report) to give
their instructions; these must mclude the bank accaunt
number, the bank account title and the sort code of the
bank to which payments are to be made.

Dividend Re-investment Plan (“DRIP")

TR Property Invesiment Trust plc now offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the company
through the DRIP. DRIP forms may be obtained from
Computershare Investor Services PLC through their

secure website wwwunvestorcentre.co.uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1634. Charges do apply; dealing commission
of 0.5% (subject to a minimum of £1.00}. Government
stamp duty of 0.5% also applies.

Share Price Listings

The market prices of the Company's shares are published
daily in The Financial Times. Some of the information Is
published in other leading newspapers. The Financial
Times also shows figures for the estimated Net Asset
Values and the discounts applicable.

Share Price Information

ISIN GBOOO9064097
SEDOL 0306409
Bloomberg TRY.LN
Reuters TRY.L
Datastream TRY

9 6 TR Property Investment Trust

Benchmark

Details of the benchmark 1s given in the Strategic Report
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts. The benchmark
index is published daily and can be found on Bloomberg;

FTSE EPRA/NARE!T Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return Index in Sterling
Bloomberg: TRORAG Index

Internet

Detalls of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's website
at www.trproperty.com.

Shareholders who hold their shares in certthicated form
can check their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PLC, via www computershare.com.
Please nate that to gain access tg your detatls on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand comer of your

share certificate.

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents
issued by the Company are available from the Company
Secretary. If needed, copies can be made available in

a varety of formats, including Braille, audio tape or larger
type as appropriate,

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Setvices PLC, which has installed textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired people who have their own
textphone to contact them directly, without the need for
an intermediate aperator, by dialling 0870 702 0005.
Specially trained operators are available during normal
business hours to answer queries via this service.

Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’
operator (provided by the Royat National Institute for Deaf
People) you should dial 18001 followed by the number
you wish to dial.



General Shareholder Information

continued

Nominee Share Code

Where notification has been provided in advance, the
Company will arrange for copies of shareholder
communications to be provided to the operators of
nominee accounts. Nominee swestors may attend general
meetings and speak at meetings when invited to do so by
the Chairman

CQT Base Cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a shareholder's holding
of Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder's capital
gains tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in
2007 and the redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012
should be considered.

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs {"HMRC") to
base the apporionment of the capital gains tax base cost
on the propartion of Ordinary shares that were converted
by & shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 july 2007,

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% ot
their existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 july
2007, the capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma
shares acquired would be equal to 20% of the original
capital gains tax base cost of the Ordinary shares that they
held pre-conversion. The base cost of their remaring
halding of Ordinary shares would then be 80% of the
ariginal capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary shares
held pre-conversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into
Ordinary shares in Decemnber 2012, a further agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains
tax base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be
equivalent to their capital gains base cost in the
pre-existing Sigma shares (i.e, their capital gains base cost
under the existing agreement if applicable).

If in doubt as to the consequences of this agreement
with HMRC, shareholders should consult with their own
professional advisors.

TR Property fnvestiment Trust
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SHAREHOLDER INFCRMATION

Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market Purchases

The shares of TR Property Investment Trust plc are hsted
and traded on the London Stock Exchange. Investars may
purchase shares through their stockbroker, bank or other
financial intermediary.

Holding shares in Certificated Form

Investors may hold their investment in certificated form.
Our registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which enables investors to buy and sell shares quickly and
easlly online without a broker or the need to open

a trading account Alternatively the Investor Centre allows
investors to manage portfolios quickly and securely,
update details and view balances without annual charges
Further details are available by contacting Computershare
on 0370 707 1355 or visit www.computershare.com,

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders
the opportunity ta purchase further shares in the company
through the Dwvidend Re-investment Plan (“DRIP™)
through the registrar, Computershare. Shareholders can
obtain further infarmation on the DRIP through their
secure website www investorcentre.co.uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1694. Charges do apply. Please note that to
gain access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand comer of your share
certificate.

Saving Schemes, ISAs and other plans

A number ¢of banks and wealth management organisations
provide Savings Schemes and ISAs through which UK
clients can invest in TR Property investment Trust plc.

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing and
other fees for operating the accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit their
planned investment profile. Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between provider and product.
Where dealing charges apply, in some cases these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as
a flat charge. The optimum way to hold the shares will be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of investments to be made.

Details are given below of two providers oftering shares in
TR Property Investment Trust, but there are many other
options

a8 TR Propenty investment Trust

Alliance Trust Savings

Alliance Trust provide and administer a range of self-select
investment plans, including tax-advantaged 15As and SIPPs
(Self-Invested Pension Plans) and also investment Plans
and First Steps, an Investment Plan for Children. For more
mformation Allance Trust can be contacted on

01382 573 737, or visit wwwalllancetrustsavings.co.uk,

Invastors in TR Property through the ATS Investment Plan
and [SA receive all shareholder communications A voting
instruction form is provided to facilitate voting at genera!
meetings of the Company.

F&C Asset Management Limited ("F&C”)

F&C offer a number of Private Investor Plans, Investment
Trust and Junior 1SAs and Children’s Investment Plans,
Investments can be made as lump sums or through
regular savings. For more information see inside the back
cover. F&C can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
www fandc co.uk.

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any income from them may go down as well as up. Past
performance is not a guide to future performance. You
may not get back the amount that you invest. If you are in
any doubt as to the suitability of a plan or any investment
avallable within a plan, please take professional advice.

Saving Schemes and [SAs transferred from
BNP Paribas

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of their business
that operated Savings Schemes and 15As. Investors were
given the choice of transferring their schernes to Alliance
Trust Savings ("ATS”) or to a provider of their own choice,

or to close their accounts and sell the holdings.

If investors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Panibas, their accounts were transferred to ATS.

Any questions regarding accounts transferred to ATS
should be directed to ATS on 01382 573 737.



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

continued

Share Fraud and boiler room scams

Shareholders in a number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are
informed of an opportunity to sell their shares as the
company is subject to a takeover bid. This is not true and
Is an attempt to defraud shareholders. The share fraud
also seeks payment of a "commission” by shareholders to
the parties carrying out the fraud.

Shareholders should remain alert to this type of scam and
treat with suspicion any contact by telephone offering an
attractive Investrnent opportunity, such as a premum price
for your shares, or an attempt to convince you that
payment is required in order to release a setilement for
your shares. These frauds may also offer to sell your
shares in companies which have Iittle or no value or may
offer you bonus shares. These so called “boiler room”
scams can alsa involve an attempt to obtain your persena
and/or banking information with which to commit identity
fraud.

The caller may be friendly and reassunng or they may take
a rmoere urgent tone, encouraging you to act quickly
otherwise you could lose money or miss cut on a deal

If you have been contacted by an unauthonsed firm
regarding your shares the FCA would hke to hear from you
You can report an unauthorised firm using the FCA helphne
on 0830 111 6768 or by visiting their website, which also
has other useful information, at www.fca.orguk.

It you receive any unsolicited mvestment advice make
sure you get the cotrect name of the person and
organisation. If the calls persist, hang up If you deal with
an unauthonsed firm, you will not be eligible to recewe
payment under the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme.

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager
would never make unsolicited telephone calls of
such a nature to shareholders.

TR Property livestinentt Trust
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How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust pleis through one of the savings plans run by

F&C Investmenits,

F&C Investment Trust I5A

You can use yaur ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficent investment of up to £20,000 for the
2018/19 tax year with a lump sum from £500 or
regular savings from £50 a month per Trust You
can also transfer any existing !SAs to us whist
maintaining the tax benefits

F&C Junior ISA (JISA)*

You can invest up to £4,128 for the tax year
2018/19 from £500 lump sum or £30 a month per
Trust, or a combinatian of both. Please note, if your
child already has a Child Trust Fund (CTF), then you
cannot open a separate JISA, however you can
transfer the existing CTF (held erther with F&C or
another provider) to an F&C JiSA

F&C Child Trust Fund {CTF)*

if your child has a CTF you can mvest up to £4,128
for the 2018/19 tax year, from £100 lump sum of
£25 a month per Trust, or a combination of both You
can alse transter a CTF from anather provider to an
F&C CTF. Please note, the CTF has been replaced by
the JISA and is only available to investors who
already hold & CTF

F&C Private Investor Plan (PIP)

Thus 15 2 flexble way to invest in aur range of
Investment Trusts There are no maxumum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£5G0 lump sum or £50 a month per Trust. You can
also make addtional lump sum top-ups at any time
from E250 per Trust

F&C Children's Investment Plan (CIP)

This 15 a flexible way to save for a child in our range
of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
cantributions, and the plan can easily be set up
under bare trust (where the child is noted as the
beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish
to retain contral over the investment. Investments
can be made from a £250 lump sum or £25 a
month per Trust. You can also make additione! lump
sum top-ups at any time from £10C per Trust.

*The CTF and JISA accnunts are opened in the ¢hild's name and they
have access 1© the money at age 18 **Calls may be recorded or
monrtored for trainng and quality purpases

Charges
Annual management charges and other charges apply according to the type
of plan

Annual account charge

ISA: £60+VAT

PIP: £40+VAT

JISA/CIP/CTFE: £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(in addition to any annual subscription limits)

Dealing charges
ISA: 0.2%
PIP/CIP/IISA: postat instructions £12, online instructons £8 per Trust.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but nat on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of manthly direct debits for
the PIP, CIP and JISA.

There are no dealing charges on a CTF but a switching charge of £25
applies if more than two switches are carried out In one year

Gavernment stamp duty of 0.5% also applies on the purchase of shares
(where applicable).

There may be addional charges made If you transfer a plan to another
provider or transfer the shares from your plan.

For full details of our sawngs plans and charges, please read the Key
Features and Terms and Conditions of the plan -~ avallable on our website
fandc.co.uk

How to Invest
To open a new F&C savings plan, apply anline at fandc.com/apply

Note, this 15 nct available if you are transfering an existing plan with anather
provider to F&C, or if you afe applying for a new plan i more than one
name.

New Customers

Call 0800 136 420** (830 am — 5 30 pmn, weekdays)
Email: info@fandc.com
Existing Plan Holders
Call 0345 600 3030** (9 00 am - 5 00 pm, weekdays)
Email. investor.enquiries@fandc.com
By post, F&C Pian Admirstration Centre

POBox 11114

Chelmsford

CMSS 200G

You can also invest in the trust through online dealing platforms for prvate
investars that offer share dealing and 154s. Campanies include.

Alliance Trust Savings, Barclays Stockbrokers, Halifax,

Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank,
Selftrade, TD Direct Investing, The Share Centre

The value of Investments can go down as well as up and you may not get back your onginal investment Tax benefits depend on your indwidual
crcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change. Please read our Key Features Document befare you invest and this can be found on our
website fandc.co uk FAC cannot give advice on the switability of investing 1 our mnvestment trust or savings plans If you have any doubt as to the
suitability of an nvestment, please contact a professional financial adviser

F&C Management Limited

F&C Investments and the FRC investments loge are tradermarks of FAC Managemenit Limited @ FRC Management Limited 2017 Issuad and approved by FEC Management
Limited which 15 authonsed ard regulated by the Financial Conduct Acthonty FRN 119230 and s a member of the F&C Croup of which the uitmate parent company 1s the
Bark of Montreal Registered Office Exchange House, Prmrose Street, London FC2A 2NY Registered in England & Wales No 517895 156_02/17_CM11582
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TR Property Investment
Trust ple is managed by

This document is printed on Amadeus 50 White Silk; a paper containing 50% recycled fibre and 50% virgin fibre sourced from well-managed,
responsible, FSC*® certified forests. The pulp used in this product is bleached using an Elemental Chiorine Free (ECF) process
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